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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS

OVERVIEW

Ryder System, Inc., a Florida corporationamiged in 1955, is a global leader in transpontatiod supply chain management solutions.
Our business is divided into three business segmnElget Management Solutions (FMS), which provifddisservice leasing, contract
maintenance, contract-related maintenance and cociaheental of trucks, tractors and trailers tgtmmers in the U.S., Canada and the U.K.;
Supply Chain Solutions (SCS), which provides corpnsive supply chain consulting and lead logistiemagement solutions throughout
North America and in Latin America, Europe and Asiad Dedicated Contract Carriage (DCC), which jgles vehicles and drivers as par
a dedicated transportation solution in North Aneeric

Financial information relating to each of dusiness segments is included in the Notes to @idiased Financial Statements as part of
Item 8 of this report.

INDUSTRY AND OPERATIONS
Fleet Management Solution:

Over the last several years, many key trévad® been reshaping the transportation industrjicpéarly the $57 billion U.S. private
commercial fleet market and the $25 billion U.Snooercial fleet lease and rental market. Commer@hlicles have become more
complicated requiring companies to spend a sigmifi@amount of time and money to keep up with nehirielogy, diagnostics, retooling and
training. Because of increased demand for converiespeed and reliability, companies that own aadage their own fleet of vehicles have
put greater emphasis on the quality of their prévemmaintenance and safety programs. Finally, regyulatory requirements such as
regulations covering diesel emissions and the numbeff-duty rest hours a driver must take (hoofrservice regulations) have placed
additional administrative burdens on private fle@ners.

Through our FMS business, we provide ouramsts with flexible fleet solutions that are desidrio improve their competitive position
by allowing them to focus on their core business tarredirect their capital to other parts of thrisiness. Our FMS product offering inclui
a wide range of full service leasing, commerciatakand contract maintenance solutions as wedldditional value-added fleet support
services such as insurance, vehicle administratiohfuel services. In addition, we provide our oostrs with access to a large selection of
used trucks, tractors and trailers through our wedicle sales program.

For the year ended December 31, 2005, olragleMS business accounted for 62% of our cons@iieevenue. Our FMS customers in
the U.S. range from small businesses to large matenterprises. These customers operate in avaidety of industries, the most significant
of which include beverage, newspaper, grocery, kmalnd wood products, home furnishings and metaDekember 31, 2005, we had a
U.S. fleet of approximately 137,000 commercial ksjdractors and trailers leased or rented thr@&ghlocations in 48 states and Puerto F

Our domestic FMS business is divided inte@ons: East, Central and West. During 2005, wealithated our regions from 7 to 3 as part
of our initiatives to restructure our FMS operatioBach region is divided into 8 to 16 businesssui@U) and each BU contains 7 to 15
branch offices. A branch office typically consiefsa maintenance facility or “shop,” offices folesaand other personnel, and in many cases,
a commercial rental counter. Our maintenance fasliypically include a service island for refugj safety inspections and preliminary
maintenance checks as well as a shop for prevemiaietenance and repairs.

Full Service Leasind/Ve target leasing customers that would benefit foatsourcing their fleet management function orraging their
fleet without having to dedicate a significant ambaof their own
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capital. Under a typical full service lease, wevide the vehicles contract maintenance, supplidsrelated equipment necessary for oper:
of the vehicles while our customers furnish andesuvige their own drivers and dispatch and exermisdrol over the vehicles. However, we
will assess a customer’s situation and, after csig the size of the customer, residual riskabed sheet treatment and other factors, will
tailor a leasing program that best suits the custtasmeeds. Once we have agreed on a leasing prmogra acquire vehicles and components
that are custom engineered to the customer’s rexpeints and lease the vehicles to the customeefards generally ranging from three to
seven years. Because we purchase a large numbehiofes from a limited number of manufacturers,are able to leverage our buying
power for the benefit of our customers. In additigiven our continued focus on improving the eéfiety and effectiveness of our
maintenance services, we can provide our customigisa cost effective alternative to maintainingitrown fleet of vehicles. We also offer
our leasing customers the additional fleet suppemntices described below. At December 31, 2009eased approximately 100,100 vehicles
under full service leases in the U.S. At Decemlder2®05, we had more than 11,200 full service leaséomer accounts in the U.S.

Commercial RentalWe target rental customers that have a need tdesuppt their private fleet of vehicles on a shertn basis (typicall
from less than one month up to one year in lengjthr because of seasonal increases in theirdmssior discrete projects that require
additional transportation resources. Our commereiatal fleet also provides additional vehicle®to full service lease customers to handle
their peak or seasonal business needs. Our repia@sentatives assist in selecting a vehicle Htafies the customer’s needs and supervise
the rental process, which includes execution @&raal agreement and a vehicle inspection. In addit vehicle rental, we extend to our re
customers liability insurance coverage under oistigxy policies and the benefits of our comprehemsilel services program. At
December 31, 2005, a fleet of approximately 34 \élticles, ranging from heavy-duty tractors anderaito light-duty trucks, was available
for commercial short-term rental in the U.S. Thetaéfleet's average age was 5.1 years. The uiitimaate of the U.S. rental fleet during
fiscal year 2005 was approximately 75%.

Contract MaintenanceOur contract maintenance customers typically ineladr full service lease customers as well as ousts that
want to utilize our extensive network of mainterefecilities and trained technicians to maintaia ¥iehicles they own or lease from third
parties, usually a bank or other financial institnt The Ryder Contract Maintenance service offprindesigned to reduce vehicle downtime
through preventive and predictive maintenance basetthicle type and driving habits, vehicle repadtuding parts and labor,
24-hour emergency roadside service and replacevegitles for vehicles that are temporarily outerfvice. These vehicles are typically
serviced at our own facilities. However, basedtmndize and complexity of a customer’s fleet, wg werate an on-site maintenance facility
at the customer’s location. Our maintenance féedlitypically include a service island for refuglisafety inspections and preliminary
maintenance checks as well as a shop for prevemiaietenance and repairs. At December 31, 200%haseapproximately 1,300 contract
maintenance customer accounts in the U.S.

Contract-Related Maintenanc®ur full service lease and contract maintenanctomess periodically require additional maintenance
services that are not included in their contraot. €xample, additional maintenance services mag avhen a customer’s driver damages the
vehicle and these services are performed or marag&yder. Some customers also periodically requiatntenance work on vehicles that
are not covered by a lease or maintenance conRgder may provide service on these vehicles aadgehthe customer on an hourly basit
work performed. This contract-related maintenanoekvis obtained by Ryder due to our contractuatrehship with the customer; however,
the service provided is in addition to that inclddle their contractual agreement.

2
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Fleet Support Servicel order to capitalize on our large base of leastamers, we periodically expand our fleet suppervice
offerings. Currently, we offer the following flestipport services:

Service Description
Insurance Liability insurance coverage under Ryder’s existimgurance policies which
includes monthly invoicing, discounts based oneirperformance and vehicle
specifications, flexible deductibles and claims adstration; physical damage
waivers; gap insurance; fleet risk assessr

Safety Establishing safety standards; providing safetiiing, driver certification,
prescreening and road tests; safety audits; itistityprocedures for transport of
hazardous materials; coordinating drug and alct#sting; loss prevention
consulting

Fuel Fuel purchasing (both in bulk and at the pump)oatpetitive prices; fuel planning;
fuel tax reporting; centralized billing; fuel car

Administrative Vehicle use and other tax reporting; permitting doehsing; regulatory complian
(including hours of service administratic

Environmental management Storage tank monitoring; stormwater managementr@mwental training; 1ISO
14001 certificatior

Used Vehicleswe typically sell our used vehicles at one of oBiis@les centers throughout North America, at Rjpdanch locations or
through our website atww.Usedtrucks.Ryder.comefore we offer any used vehicle for sale, our tégians assure that it Boad Ready
which means that the vehicle has passed a 43-peifarmance inspection based on specifications ditatad through the Ryder Contract
Maintenance program. Although we typically sell oased vehicles for prices in excess of book velueextent to which we are able to
realize a gain on the sale of used vehicles isrtigr® upon various factors including the genertksdf the used vehicle market, the age and
condition of the vehicle at the time of its displomad depreciation rates with respect to the vehicl

FMS Business Strategur FMS business strategy revolves around theviitig interrelated goals and priorities:
« improve customer retention leve

« successfully implement sales growth initiativ

« optimize asset utilization and managem

« deliver unparalleled maintenance, environmentalsaidty services to our custome

« offer a wide range of support services that complenour leasing, rental and maintenance busineasd

« offer competitive pricing through cost managemaitiatives and maintain pricing discipline on neuslmess

Supply Chain Solutions

The global supply chain logistics marketstimated to be $237 bhillion. Several key trendsadfecting the market for third-party logistics
services. Given the complexity of customers’ sumtigins and, consequently, the need for new aralative technology based solutions,
outsourcing all or a portion of a customer’s supgigin is becoming a more attractive alternatimeaddition, industry consolidation is
increasing as providers look to create economiesale in order to be competitive and satisfy austis’ global needs. To meet our
customerstdemands in light of these trends, we provide aggirsted suite of global supply chain solutions witphisticated technologies ¢
industry-leading engineering services, designeithabour customers can manage their supply chathsmore efficiency.
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Through our SCS business, we offer a compéatge of innovative lead logistics managementisesvthat are designed to optimize a
customer’s global supply chain and address theshaed concerns reflected by the trends previouslytibned. The term “supply chain”
refers to a strategically designed process thattlithe movement of materials, funds and relatfedmation from the acquisition of raw
materials to the delivery of finished productshe end-user. Our SCS product offerings are orgdrite three categories: professional
services, distribution operations and transpomeasiolutions. We also offer our SCS customers atadf information technology solutions,
referred to as e-fulfillment, which are an integralt of our other SCS services.

For the year ended December 31, 2005, ourl&GBiess accounted for 29% of our consolidatedmes. At December 31, 2005, we had
130 SCS customer accounts in the U.S., most oftwdnie large enterprises that maintain large, coxgleply chains. These customers
operate in a variety of industries including auttiney electronics, higlech, telecommunications, industrial, consumer gppdper and pag
products, office equipment, food and beverage,gameral retail industries. Our largest customeneea Motors Corporation, is comprised
of multiple contracts in various geographic regidn2005, General Motors Corporation accountedafiproximately 35% of SCS total
revenue, 18% of SCS operating revenue and 10%rfotidated revenue.

Unlike our FMS operations, which are manatiredugh a network of regional offices, BUs and loranffices, most of our core SCS
business operations in the U.S. revolve aroundcostomers’ supply chains and are strategicallyttat#o maximize efficiencies and reduce
costs. These SCS facilities are typically leasddDécember 31, 2005, leased SCS warehouse spatedtotrer 7 million square feet for the
U.S. and Puerto Rico. Along with those core custospecific locations, we also concentrate certagpistics expertise in locations not
associated with specific customer sites. For exapipyder’s carrier procurement, contract managemeaireight bill audit and payment
services groups operate out of our carrier manageosater in Ann Arbor, Michigan and our transptiota optimization and execution
groups operate out of our logistics centers in Fagton Hills, Michigan and Ft. Worth, Texas.

We are awarded a significant portion of 0GiSSusiness through requests for proposals or Ré¢egses. Many companies that maintain
elaborate supply chain networks, including manguwfexisting customers, submit an RFP with resfzeatl or a portion of their supply cha
A team of SCS operations and logistics design gfiets, as well as representatives from our finanea estate and information technology
departments, will formulate a bid that includes@pmsed supply chain solution as well as pricirfgrimation. The bid may include one or
more of the following SCS services.

Professional Service®ur SCS business offers a variety of consultingises that support every aspect of a customer’plgughain. Our
SCS consultants are available to evaluate a cus®ewsting supply chain to identify inefficiensieas well as opportunities for integration
and improvement. Once the assessment is complete/ork with the customer to develop a supply clsaiategy that will create the most
value for the customer and their target clientscéa customer has adopted a supply chain strategygCS logistics team and representat
from our information technology, real estate, fioamnd transportation management groups work tegéttdesign a strategically focused
supply chain solution. The solution may includehbatdistribution plan that sets forth the numbacation and function of each distribution
facility and a transportation solution that setdtfahe mode or modes of transportation and roefeection. In addition to providing the
distribution and transportation expertise necestaimplement the supply chain solution, our SQ8esentatives can coordinate and manage
all aspects of the customer’s supply chain provigdgwork to assure consistency, efficiency andilfiéity. We also provide transportation
consulting services to our SCS customers, whiawalls to leverage the expertise and resourcesrdiM$ business.

Distribution OperationsOur SCS business offers a wide range of servidaimg to a customer’s distribution operations sash
designing a customer’s distribution or warehousdifg, managing the customer’s existing distriloutifacilities or a facility we acquire in
order to provide the agreed-upon services, manapmflow of goods directly from the receiving fdiion to the shipping function (cross-
docking), coordinating warehousing and transparntetor inbound material flows, handling import and
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export for international shipments, coordinatingtjin -time replenishment of component parts to ufacturing and final assembly,
monitoring shipment and inventory status throughigeabled tracking solutions, providing logistieswces in connection with the return of
products to our customers after delivery to a tacient (reverse logistics) and providing addiabmalue-added services such as light
assembly of components into defined units (kittjppgickaging and refurbishment.

Transportation Solution®ur SCS business offers services relating to akets of a customer’s transportation network. @ant of
transportation specialists provides shipment plagiaind execution, which include shipment consdlidaioad scheduling and delivery
confirmation through a series of technological amdb-based solutions. Our transportation consultamtsonjunction with our Ryder Freight
Brokerage department, focus on carrier procureriall modes of transportation, rate negotiatiod freight bill audit and payment servici
In addition, our SCS business provides customevgetisas our FMS and DCC businesses with capacétgagement services that are
designed to create load-building opportunities ieainimize excess capacity.

SCS Business Strate@yur SCS business strategy revolves around theafimitpinterrelated goals and priorities:
« offer strategicall-focused comprehensive supply chain solutions taccastomers

« enhance distribution management as a core secifferph to grow integrated solutior

« diversify our customer bas

« leverage the expertise and resources of our FMBdss

« achieve strong partnering relationships with owstemers

« be a market innovator by continuously improving éffectiveness and efficiency of our solution detiwmodel; anc

* serve our custom’s global needs as lead manager, integrator an-value operatot

Dedicated Contract Carriage

The U.S. dedicated contract carriage magkesiimated to be $9 billion. This market is a#edby many of the trends that impact our
FMS business such as the increased cost assowitltepurchasing and maintaining a fleet of vehiclBise administrative burden relating to
regulations issued by the Department of TransportdDOT) regarding driver screening, training desting, as well as record keeping and
other costs associated with the hours of servigeirements, make our DCC product an attractiversdtéve to private fleet management. In
addition, market demand for just-in -time delivergates a need for well-defined routing and schieduydlans that are based on
comprehensive asset utilization analysis and fle#inalization studies.

Through our DCC business segment, we conthmequipment, maintenance and administrative aes\of a full service lease with
additional services to provide a customer with dickted transportation solution that is designeidi¢oease their competitive position,
improve risk management and integrate their trartapon needs with their overall supply chain. Sadalitional services include driver hiri
and training, routing and scheduling, fleet sizisafety, regulatory compliance, risk managemenhrielogy and communication systems
support including on-board computers, and othéwrtmal support. These additional services allowousddress, on behalf of our customers,
the labor issues associated with maintaining aapeifleet of vehicles, such as driver turnover,ggoment regulation, including hours of
service regulations, DOT audits and workers’ conspdnon.

Our DCC consultants examine and assess #temar’s transportation needs. In order to custeraiz appropriate DCC transportation
solution for our customers, our DCC logistics sphsis perform a transportation analysis using aded logistics planning and operating
tools. Based on this analysis, they formulate &iligion plan that includes the routing and schieduof vehicles, the efficient use of vehicle
capacity and overall asset utilization. The goahefplan is to create a distribution system that
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optimizes freight flow while meeting a customergs\sce goals. A team of DCC transportation spesfigaican then implement the plan by
leveraging the resources, expertise and technabgapabilities of both our FMS and SCS businesses.

To the extent a distribution plan includedtiple modes of transportation (air, rail, sea aighway), our DCC team, in conjunction with
our SCS transportation specialists, selects apjatepransportation modes and carriers, placefdlight, monitors carrier performance and
audits billing. In addition, through our SCS busisiewe can reduce costs and add value to a cussotigribution system by aggregating
orders into loads, looking for shipment consolidatopportunities and organizing loads for vehitheg are returning from their destination
point back to their point of origin (backhaul).

Because it is highly customized, our DCC piaids particularly attractive to companies thagige in industries that have time-sensitive
deliveries or special handling requirements, sucheavspapers and refrigerated products, as wisl @smpanies whose distribution systems
involve multiple stops within a closed loop highwayite.

For the year ended December 31, 2005, our b@hess accounted for 9% of our consolidatedmayeAt December 31, 2005, we had
259 DCC customer accounts in the U.S. Althouglgaiitant portion of our DCC operations are locas¢dustomer facilities, our DCC
business utilizes and benefits from our extensatevark of FMS facilities.

DCC Business Strateg@ur DCC business strategy revolves around theviatig interrelated goals and priorities:

« align our DCC and SCS businesses to create revappa@tunities and improve operating efficienciedath segments, particularly
through increased backhaul utilizatic

e increase market share with customers that opel@dedloop distribution systems that require a noar@prehensive transportation
solution;

« leverage the expertise and resources of our FMBiéss anc

< expand our DCC support services to create custahtiaesportation solutions for new customers art@ave the solutions we have
created for existing custome

International

In addition to our operations in the U.S.,lwewe FMS operations in Canada and the U.K. and@@8ations in Canada, Latin America,
Europe and Asia. We have made it a goal to expanthternational operations by leveraging our daimgwoduct offerings and customer
base.

Canada.We have been operating in Canada for over 40 y@ansFMS operations in Canada include full senlé@sing, commercial
rental and contract maintenance. We also offet 8apport services such as insurance, fuel seraicgsadministrative services. At
December 31, 2005, we had a fleet of approximdt&|ly00 commercial trucks, tractors and trailerséeaor rented through 38 locations
throughout 8 Canadian provinces. At December 3052®e leased vehicles to over 1,200 full servi@sé customer accounts in Canada.

Our Canadian SCS operations also includd! asfuge of services including lead logistics magragnt services and distribution and
transportation solutions. Given the proximity atimarket to our U.S. operations, the Canadianatjmers are highly coordinated with their
U.S. counterparts, managing crdss-der transportation and freight movements. Atddelger 31, 2005, we had 54 SCS customer accoun
leased SCS warehouse space totaling approxima@lpd0 square feet in Canada.

Europe.We began operating in the U.K. in 1971 and sinea thave expanded into other parts of Europe inetuttieland, Germany and
Poland by leveraging our operations in the U.S.thedJ.K. Our FMS operations in Europe include fdtvice leasing, commercial rental i
contract maintenance. We also offer fleet suppamtises such as insurance, fuel services, admatiiatrservices, driver capability and on-
board technology.
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At December 31, 2005, we had a fleet of axipmately 12,500 commercial trucks, tractors andera leased or rented through 37
locations throughout the U.K. and Germany. We alsmage a network of over 300 independent maintenfaudities in the U.K. to serve ¢
customers where we are unable to provide servieeRgder managed location. In addition to our tgpiEMS operations, we also supply and
manage vehicles, equipment and personnel for myildeganizations in the U.K. and Germany. At Decentil, 2005, we leased vehicles to
over 1,100 full service lease customer accountlsérlJ.K. and Germany.

Our European SCS operations include a compéetge of service offerings including lead logstnanagement services, distribution and
transportation solutions, and logistics consultng design services. In addition, we operate a cen@msive shipment, planning and
execution system through our European transpontatianagement services center located iaslilorf, Germany. At December 31, 2005
had 34 SCS customer accounts and leased SCS waeespace totaling approximately 200,000 squardridetrope.

Latin AmericaWe began operating in Mexico, Brazil and Argeniiméhe mid1990s and in Chile in 2004. In all of these marketsoffer
a full range of SCS services, including managirggrifiution operations and cross-docking termiratg] designing and managing customer
specific solutions. In our Argentina and Brazil cg®ns, we also offer international transportasenvices for freight moving between these
markets, including transportation, backhaul andaras procedure management. Our Mexican operatisna@anage more than 3,100 border
crossings each week between Mexico and the U.&n bighly integrated with our domestic distributiand transportation operations. At
December 31, 2005, we had 191 SCS customer accandtigased SCS warehouse space totaling appretynia® million square feet in
Latin America.

Asia.We began operating in Asia in 2000 through our &itipn of Ascent Logistics. Although our Asian epBons are headquartered in
Singapore, we also provide services in China viaShanghai office and coordinate logistics actgtin countries such as Malaysia. As part
of our strategy to expand with our customers ingganmarkets, we plan to begin operations in Ckimaetime in 2006. We offer a wide
range of SCS services to customers in the regneiyding management of distribution operations, dsiic transportation management,
coordination, scheduling and management of internak freight movement, postponement, bundling attér customization activities, and
procurement. At December 31, 2005, we had 40 SG®mer accounts and leased SCS warehouse spdeggtatgroximately
360,000 square feet in Asia.

Administration

We have consolidated most of our financiahauistrative functions for the U.S. and Canadaluding credit, billing and collections, into
our Shared Services Center, a centralized progessinter located in Alpharetta, Georgia. This adizistion results in more efficient and
consistent centralized processing of selected adtrative operations. The Shared Services Centeais objectives are to reduce ongoing
annual administrative costs, enhance customercgetiviough process standardization, create an izagamal structure that will improve
market flexibility and allow future reengineerinfjogts to be more easily attained at lower impletaéon costs.

In 2005, we retained third parties to providienarily administrative finance and support seegi outside of the U.S. in order to reduce
ongoing operating expenses and maximize our teoggaksources.

Regulation

Our business is subject to regulation byousifederal, state and foreign governmental estifibe DOT and various state agencies
exercise broad powers over certain aspects ofusinbss, generally governing such activities alaigation to engage in motor carrier
operations, safety and financial reporting. Weadse subject to a variety of requirements of natipstate, provincial and local governments,
including the Environmental Protection Agency anel ©ccupational Safety and Health Administratibat regulate safety, the management
of hazardous materials, water discharges and air
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emissions, solid waste disposal and the releaselaadup of regulated substances. We may alsoljecsuo licensing and other
requirements imposed by the U.S. Department of HamdeSecurity and U.S. Customs Service as a rebuitreased focus on homeland
security and our Customs-Trade Partnership Agdiesbrism certification. We may also become subjectew or more restrictive
regulations imposed by these agencies, or othlpsties relating to engine exhaust emissions,edsvhours of service, security and
ergonomics.

The Environmental Protection Agency has idsegulations that require progressive reductiarexhaust emissions from diesel engines
from 2007 through 2010. Some of these regulatiegsire subsequent reductions in the sulfur cordkdtesel fuel beginning in June 2006
and the introduction of emissions after-treatmentices on newly manufactured engines and vehiagmhing with the model year 2007.

Environmental

We have adopted an environmental policy tbiécts our commitment to supporting the goalsustainable development, environmental
protection and pollution prevention in our busindssward this objective, we have developed and é@mgnted environmental practices in
business operations, and regularly monitor theaetiges to identify opportunities for improveme@ur environmental team works with our
staff and operating employees to develop and aditeinprograms in support of our environmental golic

In establishing appropriate environmentakcobyes and targets for our wide range of busiaessities around the world, we focus on
() the needs of our customers, (ii) the commusitrewhich we provide services and (iii) relevaws$ and regulations. We regularly review
and update our environmental management procecamdspformation regarding our environmental atiggi is routinely disseminated
throughout Ryder.

Safety

Safety is an integral part of our strateggehse preventing injury and decreasing serviceruqtéons increases efficiency and customer
satisfaction. In 2002, we were awarded @reen Cross for Safefyom the National Safety Council for our commitmémivorkplace safety
and corporate citizenship.

Our Safety department focuses on (i) reargiind maintaining qualified drivers; (ii) improgidriver and management safety training;
(iii) implementing periodic reviews of driver rects; (iv) creating incentives for drivers with gosafety records; and (v) raising awareness of
safety-related issues on a company-wide basisS@faty, Health and Security Policy requires thatra@nagers, supervisors, and employees
ensure that safety, health and security proceseaa@rporated into all aspects of our business.

In addition, our Safety department develofged safety and training programs such as housenfice, driving ethics, security and
hazmat transport in order to promote safety, pasitustomer relations, service standards and ptiedtycAll of our drivers in the U.S. must
meet or exceed DOT qualifications. Our Safety diepant updates driver qualification files at least@ally to maintain compliance with D(
regulations.

Risk Management

The nature of our business exposes us tafisbility for damages arising primarily out pfoperty damage, customer-managed
inventory shrinkage, vehicle liability, and workeeempensation. We currently self-insure for a fwortof our claims exposure resulting from
these risks. We also maintain insurance with tpady insurance carriers above the amounts forlwivie self-insure. We are responsible for
a deductible for auto liability, physical damagergo and workers’ compensation claims. We maintearance with independent insurance
carriers that provide coverage for claims in exagsteductible amounts. Management believes thainsurance coverage is adequate.
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Competition

As an alternative to using our services,austrs may choose to provide these services forsbles, or may choose to obtain similar or
alternative services from other third-party vendors

Our FMS and DCC business segments competecathpanies providing similar services on a natioiegional and local level. Regional
and local competitors may sometimes provide seswicea national level through their participatiorvarious cooperative programs.
Competitive factors include price, equipment, mamaince, service and geographical coverage andregiffect to DCC, driver and operations
expertise. We compete with other finance lessotsadsp to an extent, particularly in the U.K., watmumber of truck and trailer
manufacturers who provide truck and trailer leasmgended warranty maintenance, rental and otaesportation services. Value-added
differentiation of the full service leasing, commiaf rental and contract maintenance service an@ Bfferings has been, and will continue
be, our emphasis.

In the SCS business segment, we competecaitipanies providing similar services on an intéomat, national, regional and local level.
Additionally, this business is subject to potentiainpetition in most of the regions it serves fraimcargo, shipping, railroads, motor carriers
and other companies that are expanding logistiagces such as freight forwarders, contract martufacs and integrators. Competitive
factors include price, service, equipment, mainterageographical coverage, market knowledge, &gpen logistics-related technology,
and overall performance (e.g., timeliness, accueax/flexibility). Value-added differentiation dfé¢se service offerings across the full global
supply chain will continue to be our overridingaségy.

Employees

At December 31, 2005, we had approximatel$@J full-time employees worldwide, of which 22,588re employed in North America,
3,000 in Latin America, 1,700 in Europe and 60@&&a. We have approximately 17,400 hourly employiedke U.S., approximately 3,500
of which are organized by labor unions. These eygae are principally represented by the Internati@notherhood of Teamsters, the
International Association of Machinists and Aerasp#lVorkers, and the United Auto Workers, and thvaiges and benefits are governed by
96 labor agreements that are renegotiated peribdiddone of the businesses in which we currentigage have experienced a material work
stoppage, slowdown or strike and we consider thateationship with our employees is good.
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

All of the executive officers of Ryder were&ed or re-elected to their present offices eitti®r subsequent to the meeting of the Board
of Directors held on May 5, 2005 in conjunctiontwRyder’s 2005 Annual Meeting. They all hold suéfices, at the discretion of the Board
of Directors, until their removal, replacement etirement.

Name Age Position

Gregory T. Swientol 56 Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offi

Tracy A. Leinbact 46 Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

Robert D. Fatovit 40 Executive Vice President, General Counsel and CGatpd&ecretar

Art A. Garcia 44 Senior Vice President and Control

Gregory F. Green 46 Senior Vice President and Chief Human Resourceiséd

Bobby J. Griffin 57 President, Ryder International Operatit

Vicki A. O’ Meara 48 President, U.S. Supply Chain Solutic

Thomas S. Reneh: 43 Executive Vice President, Sales and Marketing, Bl&et Management Solutio
Robert E. Sanche 40 Executive Vice President of Operations, U.S. Fldahagement Solutior
Anthony G. Tegneli 60 President, U.S. Fleet Management Soluti

Gregory T. Swienton has been Chairman sinag B002 and Chief Executive Officer since Novent@00. He also served as President
from June 1999 to June 2005. Before joining RyWar,Swienton was Senior Vice President of Growtitidtives of Burlington Northern
Santa Fe Corporation (BNSF) and before that Mre&tain was BNSF’s Senior Vice President, Coal andcifjural Commodities Business
Unit.

Tracy A. Leinbach has been Executive Vicesielent and Chief Financial Officer since March 2003. Leinbach served as Executive
Vice President, Fleet Management Solutions, fronndd@001 to March 2003; Senior Vice President, Safted Marketing from September
2000 to March 2001; and she was Senior Vice Prasigield Management from July 2000 to Septembe02Mk. Leinbach also served as
Managing Director-Europe of Ryder Transportationviéges from January 1999 to July 2000 and previoske had served Ryder
Transportation Services as Senior Vice PresidethiGinief Financial Officer from 1998 to January 1988nior Vice President, Business
Services from 1997 to 1998, and Senior Vice Presjdeurchasing and Asset Management for six mahthisg 1996. From 1985 to 1996,
Ms. Leinbach held various financial positions indey subsidiaries. As previously disclosed, Ms. baith plans to retire from Ryder in the
first quarter of 2006. Ms Leinbach will remain wiiyder until the conclusion of the work in clositig 2005 fiscal year.

Robert D. Fatovic has served as Executive Wiesident, General Counsel and Corporate Secstere May 2004. He previously sen
as Senior Vice President, U.S. Supply Chain OparatiHigh-Tech and Consumer Industries from Decer2d@2 to May 2004. Mr. Fatovic
joined Ryde’s Law department in 1994 as Assistant Division @l and has held various positions within the ld@partment including
Vice President and Deputy General Counsel.

Art A. Garcia has served as Senior Vice Bierdi and Controller since October 2005. Previoudly,Garcia served as Vice President and
Controller from February 2002 to September 2008, @roup Director, Accounting Services, from Septem@000 to February 2002 and
from April 2000 to June 2000. Mr. Garcia was Cliafancial Officer of Blue Dot Services, Inc., ainagl provider of heating and air
conditioning services, from June 2000 to Septer@dd80. Mr. Garcia served as Director, Corporate
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Accounting, for Ryder from April 1998 to April 200Mr. Garcia joined Ryder in December 1997 as Sevianager, Corporate Accounting.

Gregory F. Greene has served as Senior fesident and Chief Human Resources Officer sinteugey 2006. Previously, Mr. Greene
served as Senior Vice President, Strategic PlaramcigDevelopment, from April 2003 to February 2@0@ served as Senior Vice President,
Global Talent Management, from March 2002 to Ap€03. Mr. Greene joined Ryder in August 1993 as &den of Executive and
International Compensation and has since held waositions. Prior to joining Ryder, Mr. Greeneved as Director of Human Resources
for Sunglass Hut, Inc.

Bobby J. Griffin has been President, Rydégrimational Operations since July 2005. Previoudly,Griffin served as Executive Vice
President, International Operations from Novemi@¥y22to July 2005, and as Executive Vice Presidaluthal Supply Chain Operations from
March 2001 to October 2002. Prior to this appoimttmBir. Griffin was Senior Vice President, Field Magement West from January 2000 to
March 2001. Mr. Griffin was Vice President, Opevas of Ryder Transportation Services from 1997 ¢oddnber 1999. Mr. Griffin also
served Ryder as Vice President and General Mardg€fE Management and Service Company, Inc. andarfiaged Logistics Systems, |
operating units of the former Ryder Public Transgaon Services, positions he held from 1993 to7198r. Griffin was Executive Vice
President, Western Operations of Ryder/ ATE frorf@71® 1993. He joined Ryder as Executive Vice lersi, Consulting of ATE in 1986
after Ryder acquired ATE Management and Service fizomy.

Vicki A. O'Meara has been President of U.8p@y Chain Solutions since October 2005. She presly served as Executive Vice
President and Chief of Corporate Operations frony @204 to September 2005. Prior to that, Ms. O’Meserved as Executive Vice
President and General Counsel from June 1997 aGdm@®rate Secretary from February 1998. Priooitwifng Ryder, Ms. O’'Meara was a
partner with the Chicago office of the law firm &srDay. Previously, she held a variety of positwith the federal government including
service as Acting Assistant Attorney General fer BEnvironmental and Natural Resources DivisiorhefDepartment of Justice, Deputy
General Counsel of the Environmental Protectionrsgeand in the Office of White House Counsel.

Thomas S. Renehan has served as ExecutieePrasident, Sales and Marketing, U.S. Fleet ManagéeSolutions, since October 2005.
He previously served as Senior Vice President,sSatel Marketing from July 2005 to September 2085 enior Vice President, Asset
Management, Sales and Marketing from March 20Qktp 2005, as Senior Vice President, Asset Managefrem December 2002 to
March 2004 and as Vice President, Asset ManagefrantJune 2001 to December 2002. Prior to headisgeAManagement, Mr. Renehan
served as Vice President, Fleet Management Sokutiothe Southwest Region from January 2000 to 20064. Mr. Renehan joined Ryder in
October 1985 and has held various positions wittdéRgince that time.

Robert E. Sanchez has served as Executive Rfiesident of Operations, U.S. Fleet Managementi8es, since October 2005. He
previously served as Senior Vice President andf@hfiermation Officer from January 2003 to Septem@05, and as Senior Vice President
of Global Transportation Management from March 2@D2anuary 2003. Previously, he also served asf@iformation Officer from June
2001 to March 2002. Mr. Sanchez joined Ryder in3188 a Senior Business System Designer.

Anthony G. Tegnelia has served as Presidieft, Fleet Management Solutions since October 288%reviously served as Executive
Vice President, U.S. Supply Chain Solutions front&aber 2002 to September 2005. Prior to that, leeSeaior Vice President, Global
Business Value Management. Mr. Tegnelia joined Ryd&977 and has held a variety of other positiits Ryder including Senior Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of Ryder'tegrated logistics business segment and SeniorRfiesident, Field Finance.
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FURTHER INFORMATION

For further discussion concerning our busineee the information included in Items 7 and thisfreport. Industry and market data used
throughout Item 1 was obtained through a compifatibsurveys and studies conducted by industrycgsyjrconsultants and analysts.

We make available free of charge throughveeiosite at www.ryder.com our Annual Report on FottiK, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and aleadments to those reports as soon as reasonabtjcplde after such material is
electronically filed with or furnished to the Seities and Exchange Commission.

In addition, our Corporate Governance Gurddj Principles of Business Conduct (includinginance Code of Conduct), and Board
committee charters are posted on the Corporate tGanee page of our website at www.ryder.com.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

In addition to the factors discussed elsewlirethis report, the following are some of the artpnt factors that could affect our business.

Our operating and financial results may fluctuate die to a number of factors, many of which are beyondur control.

Our annual and quarterly operating and fingresults are affected by a number of econoneiguiatory and competitive factors,
including:

« changes in current financial, tax or regulatoryuiegments that could negatively impact the leasiagket;

« changes in market conditions affecting the comnaéreintal market or the sale of used vehic

» ourinability to obtain expected customer retentmrels or sales growth targe

» ourinability to maintain appropriate asset utiliaa rates through our asset management initigt

e unanticipated interest rate and currency exchaaigefluctuations

» changes in assumptions related to our pension;f

» labor strikes or work stoppages affecting us oraugtomers

» sudden changes in fuel prices and fuel shorte

» competition from vehicle manufacturers in our Ubkisiness operations; a

» changes in accounting rules, estimates, assumpimh&ccruals
Our failure to successfully implement new growth iiitiatives in our FMS business segment may negatiwelmpact our ability to
increase our leasing revenues.

We have recently undertaken initiatives stnecture our FMS operations with the intentiorinafeasing organic revenue growth in our
leasing business, better servicing our customersinegss needs, improving asset utilization andziaglcost savings in the future. The
initiatives include changing the structure of operational and sales teams, realigning our busimeg®sses and reorganizing our
management. There is no assurance that theseivgtiavill be successful or that we will not haveundertake additional initiatives in order
to achieve our growth targets.
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We bear the residual risk on the value of our vehles.

We generally bear the residual risk on tHeevaf our vehicles. Therefore, if the market fsed vehicles declines, we may experience
lower gains or suffer losses on the sale of théclket Changes in residual values also impact #eeadl competitiveness of our full service
lease product line, as estimated sales proceedsaitical component of the overall price of threguct. Additionally, sudden changes in
supply and demand together with other market fadberyond our control vary from year to year anafieehicle to vehicle, making it
difficult to accurately predict residual values di$e calculating our depreciation expense. Althoughhave developed disciplines related to
the management of our vehicles that are designpteient these losses, there is no assurancéntisst practices will sufficiently reduce the
residual risk. For a detailed discussion on oupanting policies and assumptions relating to deptien and residual values, please see the
section titled “Critical Accounting Estimates — Depiation and Residual Value Guarantees” in Managgis Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

We do not purchase vehicles for our full 8@rtease product line until we have an executedraot with a customer. In our commercial
rental product line, however, we do not purchageckes against specific customer contracts. Rathempurchase vehicles and optimize the
size and mix of the commercial rental fleet baggoinuour expectations of overall market demand liorts and long-term rentals. As a result,
we bear the risk for ensuring that we have the grreghicles in the right condition and locatioreftectively capitalize on this market dem:
to drive the highest levels of utilization and reue per unit. We employ a sales force and opermsatimaim on a full-time basis to manage and
optimize this product line.

We derive a significant portion of our SCS revenuérom a small number of customers, many of which arén the automotive industry.

During 2005, sales to our top ten SCS custsmecounted for 67% of our SCS total revenue &% 6f our SCS operating revenue
(revenue less subcontracted transportation), withe®al Motors Corporation (GM) accounting for 358@or SCS total revenue and 18% of
our SCS operating revenue. The loss of any of thes®mers or a significant reduction in the sewiprovided to any of these customers,
particularly GM, could impact our domestic and inttional operations and adversely affect our S@&htial results. While we continue to
focus our efforts on diversifying our customer bhsth outside and within the automotive industrg, mvay not be successful in doing so in
the short term.

In addition, the revenue derived from our S{OStomers is dependent in large part on theirystidn and sales volumes, which are
impacted by economic conditions and customer spgnaind preferences. Production volumes in the antigmindustry are sensitive to
consumer demand as well as employee and laboiordaDeclines in sales volumes could result irdpoion cutbacks and unplanned plant
shutdowns. To the extent that the market sharaybéour largest SCS customers deteriorates,er ffales or production volumes otherwise
decline, our revenues and profitability could beedely affected.

We are also subject to credit risk associatitial the concentration of our accounts receivditden our SCS customers. Certain of our
automotive customers have or are currently facimgricial difficulties. If one or more of these ausiers were to become bankrupt, insolvent
or otherwise were unable to pay for the servicesiged by us, our operating results and finanaaldition could be adversely affected.

Our profitability could be negatively impacted by downward pricing pressure from certain of our SCS cstomers.

Given the nature of our services and the aditiye environment in which we operate, our latdg&SS customers exert downward pricing
pressure and often require modifications to ounddad commercial terms. While we believe our ongaiost reduction initiatives have hel,
mitigate the effect of price reduction pressuresiflour SCS customers, there is no assurance thailiaee able to maintain or improve our
current levels of profitability.
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Substantially all of our SCS services arevigled under contractual arrangements with our enets. Under most of these contracts, all or
a portion of our pricing is based on certain assionp regarding the scope of services, productmomes, operational efficiencies, the mix
of fixed versus variable costs, productivity andestfactors. If, as a result of subsequent chaimgesr customers’ business needs or
operations or market forces that are outside oftoutrol, these assumptions prove to be invalidcaudd have lower margins than
anticipated. Although certain of our contracts pdevfor renegotiation upon a material change, tieer® assurance that we will be successful
in obtaining the necessary price adjustments.

We may face difficulties in attracting and retaining drivers.

We hire drivers primarily for our DCC and S8&siness segments. There is significant competitio qualified drivers in the
transportation industry. As a result of driver ghges, we could be required to increase driver emsgtion, let trucks sit idle, utilize lower
quality drivers or face difficulty meeting custondgmands, all of which could adversely affect awwgh and profitability.

In order to serve our customers globally, we mustantinue to expand our international operations, whth may result in additional
risks.

We are committed to meeting our customemsbal needs by continuing to grow our internatiar@rations in Canada, Europe, Asia and
Latin America and by entering into new markets saglChina. Our international operations, partiduler Latin America and Asia, are
subject to adverse developments in foreign politgavernmental and economic conditions, varyingpetitive factors, foreign currency
fluctuations, potential difficulties in identifyingnd retaining qualified managers and personnégnpial adverse tax consequences and
difficulties in protecting intellectual propertygtits. These factors may have a significant effaatur ability to profitably grow our
international operations or retain existing custmiikat require global expansion. In addition, eimto new international markets requires
considerable management time as well as start-pprses for market development, staffing and estaibly office facilities before any
significant revenue is generated. As a resultiainitperations in a new market may operate at laxgins or may be unprofitable.

We operate in a highly competitive industry and ourusiness may suffer if we are unable to adequatebddress potential downward
pricing pressures and other competitive factors.

Numerous competitive factors could impair ability to maintain our current profitability. The factors include the following:
* we compete with many other transportation and tagiservice providers, some of which have grezdeital resources than we (
« some of our competitors periodically reduce theicgs to gain business, which may limit our abititymaintain or increase price

« because cost of capital is a significant coitigetfactor, any increase in either our debt aniggcost of capital as a result of
reductions in our debt rating or stock price vditgtcould have a significant impact on our comped position;

« advances in technology require increased invests to remain competitive, and our customers meaye willing to accept higher
prices to cover the cost of these investments;

e competition from logistics and freight brokeeagpmpanies that do not operate trucking fleets aslwersely affect our customer
relationships and price
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We operate in a highly regulated industry, and cost of compliance with, or liability for violation of, existing or future regulations
could significantly increase our costs of doing biiisess.

Our business is subject to regulation byoussifederal, state and foreign governmental estifgecifically, the U.S. Department of
Transportation and various state and federal agsrmoiercise broad powers over our motor carrieratipas, safety, and the generation,
handling, storage, treatment and disposal of wastierials. We may also become subject to new oe mestrictive regulations imposed by
the Department of Transportation, the Occupati@adiety and Health Administration, the EnvironmeRadtection Agency or other
authorities, relating to the hours of service thatdrivers may provide in any one-time periodusitg and other matters. Compliance with
these regulations could substantially impair eq@iphproductivity and increase our costs.

New regulations governing exhaust emissianddcadversely impact our business. The Environaddhiotection Agency has issued
regulations that require progressive reductioreximust emissions from certain diesel engines gir@007. Emissions standards require
reductions in the sulfur content of diesel fuelibagg in June 2006 and the introduction of emissiafter-treatment devices on newly-
manufactured engines and vehicles utilizing engingk after January 1, 2007. Each of these requérgs could result in higher prices for
tractors, diesel engines and fuel, which are passdd our customers, as well as higher maintenaosts and uncertainty as to reliability, all
of which could, over time, increase our costs aivbesely affect our business and results of opmrati

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

There were no unresolved Commission staffrnemts at December 31, 2005.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Our properties consist primarily of vehiclaimenance and repair facilities, warehouses amer seal estate and improvements.

We maintain 756 FMS locations in the Unitedt&s, Puerto Rico and Canada; we own approximd@syof these facilities and lease the
remaining facilities. Our FMS locations generaliglude a repair shop, rental counter, fuel senglesmd and administrative offices.

Additionally we manage 185 on-site mainterafacilities, located at customer locations.

We also maintain 130 locations in the Uni&dtes and Canada in connection with our dome&tfg 8d DCC businesses. Almost all of
our SCS locations are leased and generally indudarehouse and administrative offices.

We maintain 75 international locations (lazas$ outside of the United States and Canada)upimbernational businesses. These locations
are in the U.K., Ireland, Germany, Poland, Mexismentina, Brazil, Chile, China, Malaysia and Sipgee. The majority of these locations
are leased and generally include a repair shopeheaise and administrative offices.

In April 2005, we moved our corporate headtgra facility into a new, leased 250,000 squau-fwilding, which is located within a few
miles of Ryder’s previous facility in Miami, Florgd Our new facility serves as a more cost-effeciive efficient office space that reflects the
business requirements of Ryder today and in thedut

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Our subsidiaries are involved in variousrosi lawsuits and administrative actions arisinth@course of our businesses. Some involve
claims for substantial amounts of money and (aines for punitive damages. While any proceedinlitigation has an element of
uncertainty, management believes
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that the disposition of such matters, in the agatesgwill not have a material impact on our cordatied financial condition, results of
operations or liquidity.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
There were no matters submitted to a votsuofsecurity holders during the quarter ended Déezrdl, 2005.

PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Ryder Common Stock Prices

Stock Price Dividends pel
Common

High Low Share
2005
First quarter $47.8: 41.2¢ 0.1¢€
Second quarter 42.3i 34.52 0.1€
Third quarter 39.9: 32.0¢ 0.1¢€
Fourth quarter 44.7¢ 32.21] 0.1€
2004
First quartel $38.9¢ 33.61 0.1
Second quarte 40.9: 35.1: 0.1t
Third quartel 47.1¢ 37.92 0.1¢
Fourth quarte 55.5¢ 46.21 0.1t

Our common shares are listed on the New toick Exchange under the trading symbol “R.” Atukay 31, 2006, there were 11,357
common stockholders of record and our stock pricéhe New York Stock Exchange was $44.70.
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Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table provides information witbspect to purchases we made of our common staakgithe three months ended
December 31, 2005 and total repurchases:

Total Number of Approximate
Shares Purchased a Maximum Number Dollar Value
Total Number Average Price Part of Publicly of Shares That May That May Yet Be
of Shares Paid per Announced Yet Be Purchasec Purchased Under
Purchased®).(2.(3) Share Program ().(2) Under the Program (@ the Program (1)
October 1 through
October 31, 200t 79,21¢ $33.8( 69,07 — $ NA
November 1 through
November 30, 2005 1,366,241 41.5¢ 1,364,30! NA 118,345,53
December 1 through
December 31, 200! 1,362,23. 41.72 1,260,00! NA 65,814,51
Total 2,807,68! $41.41 2,693,37.

)

@

©)

In October 2005, our Board of Directors authorize®175 million share repurchase program over a peémot to exceed two years. The share repurchasgram
replaces all unused repurchase authority remaininger the share repurchase plan approved by thedofDirectors in July 2004. The new program paes more
flexibility than the previous program, which wasiied to mitigating the dilutive impact of sharsstied under our various employee stock option ek purchast
plans. Management established a trading plan uiRlde 10b5-1 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 asgbdhe repurchase program, which allows for shar
repurchases during Ryder’s quarterly blackout pdsi@s set forth in the trading plan. Under the peog, we have purchased in open-market transactotogal of
2,624,300 shares of our common stock at Decemhe2@b, a portion of which was purchased throu¢10bt-1 trading plan.

In July 2004, we announced a I-year share repurchase program providing for thpueehase of up to 3.5 million shares of our commstmek. During the three months
ended December 31, 2005, we purchased an aggrefi&&073 shares of our common stock as part oftiye2004 program. Under the July 2004 programichiwas
replaced in October 2005, we purchased in open-etarnsactions a total of 2,388,970 shares of@mmon stock a portion of which was purchased thinca

10bt-1 trading plan.

During the three months ended December 31, 200punehased an aggregate of 2,693,373 shares o€oommmon stock as part of our share repurchase progrand ai
aggregate of 114,316 shares of our common stoeknployee-related transactions outside of the sheyparchase program. Employee-related transactiotuide:

(i) shares of common stock delivered as paymerthiéoexercise price of options exercised or tos$athe option holders’ withholding tax liabilitgsociated with our
share-based compensation plans and (ii) open-mamliathases by the trustee of Rydeateferred compensation plans relating to investeieyp employees in our comn
stock, one of the investment options available uttdeplan.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Years ended December
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amol

Operating Data:

Revenue $5,740,84 5,150,27: 4,802,29. 4,776,26! 5,006,12.
Earnings from continuing operatio® $ 227,62¢ 215,60 135,55¢ 112,56! 18,67¢
Net earning®).( $ 226,92¢ 215,60¢ 131,43¢ 93,66¢ 18,67¢
Per Common Share Data
Earnings from continuing operatio— Basic(®) $ 3.517 3.3t 2.1F 1.82 0.31
Net earning— Basic(®):(2) $ 3.5¢€ 3.3¢ 2.0¢ 1.52 0.31
Earnings from continuing operatio— Diluted () $ 3.52 3.2¢ 2.1z 1.8C 0.31
Net earning— Diluted ®).(2 $ 3.52 3.2¢ 2.0¢€ 1.5C 0.31
Cash dividend $ 0.64 0.6C 0.6C 0.6C 0.6C
Book value® $ 24.6¢ 23.4¢ 20.8¢ 17.7¢ 20.2¢
Financial Data:
Total asset $6,033,26. 5,683,16. 5,323,26! 4,789,39. 4,948,16!
Average assef# $5,922,75! 5,496,42! 4,989,56! 4,866,51! 5,173,17!
Return on average assets(® 3. 3.¢ 2.€ 1.¢ 04
Average asset turnover(%4) 96.¢ 93.7 96.2 98.1 96.€
Total debi $2,185,36! 1,783,211 1,815,901 1,551,46! 1,708,68:
Long-term deb $1,915,92! 1,393,66! 1,449,48! 1,389,09! 1,391,59
Shareholder’ equity ®) $1,527,45 1,510,18: 1,344,38! 1,108,21! 1,230,66!
Debt to equity(%®) 14z 11€ 13t 14C 13¢
Average shareholde' equity 3).(4) $1,554,71. 1,412,03 1,193,85! 1,246,06! 1,242,54.
Return on average shareholc equity(%)®). 14.€ 5.8 11.C 7.5 1.5
Net cash provided by operating activit $ 779,06: 866,84¢ 803,61: 616,68 365,30:
Capital expenditures pa $1,399,37! 1,092,15: 734,50¢ 582,22t 704,41¢
Other Data:
Average common shar— Basic (in thousand: 63,75¢ 64,28( 62,95¢ 61,57 60,08
Average common shar— Diluted (in thousands 64,56( 65,67 63,87 62,58 60,66t
Number of vehicle— Owned and lease 162,30( 164,40( 160,20( 161,40( 170,10(
Number of employee 27,80( 26,30( 26,70( 27,80( 29,50(
Note: Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifiesbhform to the current year presentat

)

@

©)
©)

Results included restructuring and other charges@veries), net of $2 million af-tax, or $0.03 per diluted common share in 2008 1$million aftertax, or $(0.17) pe
diluted common share in 2004, $2 million after-tax$0.04 per diluted common share in 2002 and i8lion after-tax, or $1.34 per diluted common séam 2001.
Results also included goodwill and intangible arnzation totaling $12 million afte-tax, or $0.19 per diluted common share in 2001addition, results included an
income tax benefit of $8 million, or $0.12 per tBld common share in 2005 related to a change im@ttome tax law, net income tax benefit of $9iomlor $0.14 per
diluted common share in 2004, associated with @@reents in various tax matters and $7 million, 8rld per diluted common share in 2001, as a rexfdt change in
Canadian tax law that reduced deferred taxes of@anadian operations

Net earnings for 2005 included (i) income from distinued operations associated with the reductibimsurance reserves related to discontinued openatresulting ir
an after-tax benefit of $2 million, or $0.03 petutiéd common share, and (ii) the cumulative efféet change in accounting principle for costs asat with the future
removal of underground storage tanks resultingriraéter-tax charge of $2 million, or $0.04 per déd common share. Net earnings for 2003 includecttimulative
effect of a change in accounting principle fon@riable interest entities resulting in an aftexteharge of $3 million, or $0.05 per diluted comnstiare, and (ii) costs
associated with eventual retirement of long-livedets related primarily to components of revenuairg equipment resulting in an after-tax chargebafmillion, or
$0.02 per diluted common share. Net earnings f@22@cluded the cumulative effect of a change moaating principle for goodwill resulting in an afttax charge of
$19 million, or $0.30 per diluted common she

Shareholders’ equity at December 31, 2005, 2Q003, 2002 and 2001 reflected after-tax equigrghs of $221 million, $189 million, $187 millic229 million and
$1 million, respectively, related to the accrualaofditional minimum pension liabilit

Amounts were computed using quarterly informat
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following Management'’s Discussion and lsia of Financial Condition and Results of Oparasi (MD&A) should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statemseand related notes contained in Item 8 of #y®rt on Form 10-K.

OVERVIEW

Ryder System, Inc. (Ryder), is a global leaderansportation and supply chain managementisois. Our business is divided into three
business segments, which operate in extremely ctitimpenarkets. Our customers select us based arermus factors including service
quality, price, technology and service offerings. & alternative to using our services, customensafso choose to provide these service
themselves, or may choose to obtain similar ormdtitve services from other third-party vendorsr Qustomer base includes enterprises
operating in a variety of industries including autdive, electronics, high-tech, telecommunicationdustrial, consumer goods, paper and
paper products, office equipment, food and beverggeeral retail industries, and governments.

TheFleet Management Solutions (FM3)siness segment is our largest segment providihgdrvice leasing, contract maintenance,
contractrelated maintenance, and commercial rental of gugkctors and trailers to customers in the (C8nada and the U.K. FMS rever
and assets in 2005 were $3.56 billion and $5.4®bijlrespectively, representing 62% of our corgatied revenue and 90% of consolidated
assets.

TheSupply Chain Solutions (SCI8)siness segment provides comprehensive supplyg cbasulting and lead logistics management
solutions throughout North America and in Latin Ama, Europe and Asia. SCS revenue in 2005 wasiddilion, representing 29% of our
consolidated revenue.

TheDedicated Contract Carriage (DC@usiness segment provides vehicles and driverara®pa dedicated transportation solution in
North America. DCC revenue in 2005 was $543 milli@presenting 9% of our consolidated revel

As discussed in more detail throughout our@&ADduring 2005:
e Our total revenue was $5.74 billion, up 11% froml$&hillion in 2004

« All business segments contributed to the teaénue growth. The growth in FMS revenue was driveincreased fuel services
revenue primarily as a result of higher averagéguees and better rental revenue due to stropgeing. The growth in SCS
revenue was driven primarily by increased volunfas@naged subcontracted transportation as weléasamd expanded business in
all industry groups. The growth in DCC revenue wagen by new and expanded business, and pricicrg#@ses associated with
higher fuel costs. Comparisons for 2005 were atgmaicted by favorable movements in foreign curremahange rates related to our
international operation:

e Earnings from continuing operations were $228 onillcompared with $216 million in 2004 while earrdnger diluted common she
from continuing operations increased to $3.53 f&8128 in 2004

o Earnings for 2005 included an income tax beéméf$8 million, or $0.12 per diluted common shaedated to a change in Ohio
income tax law

o Earnings for 2004 included a net income taxefienf $9 million, or $0.14 per diluted common shgassociated with the
resolution of various federal tax matters relatedudits from 1995 to 2000, and after-tax gainthensale of our headquarters
complex of $15 million, or $0.23 per diluted comnsirare

Excluding the non-operating items listed abowmparable earnings from continuing operations 220 million, up 15% from
$191 million in 2004. Comparable earnings per dilutommon share from continuing operations werél$3ip 17% from $2.91 in
2004.
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Net earnings were $227 million, up 5% from $216liomil in 2004.

o Net earnings for 2005 included (i) income from distinued operations associated with the reductiansurance reserves relat
to discontinued operations resulting in an afterktlanefit of $2 million, or $0.03 per diluted commshare, and (ii) the cumulative
effect of a change in accounting principle for sa$sociated with the future removal of undergratodage tanks resulting in an
after-tax charge of $2 million, or $0.04 per diluted coomshare

« All business segments contributed to the strasglts. The earnings growth was driven primasiyimproved FMS commercial
rental performance, higher gains on FMS used velsiales and reductions in operating expensesirgsiribm ongoing cost
reduction activities and process improvement astmeross all business segme

« Capital expenditures increased to $1.41 biliompared with $1.16 billion in 2004. The increaseapital spending reflects higher
vehicle replacements primarily related to the FM&sk product line

* Our debt to equity ratio increased to 143% frot8% in 2004. Total obligations (including off-aBate sheet debt) to equity ratio
increased to 151% from 129% in 2004. The increask/erage ratios were driven by our increasedifum requirements as a result
of higher vehicle capital spending, higher incoepayments and stock repurcha:

*  We repurchased a total of 3.7 million sharesasfimon stock in 2005 for $152 million. We alsorgased our annual dividend by 7%
to $0.64 per shar

Over the past several years we have maddisan transformations in our business, addresgiagy of the fundamental business
processes throughout the organization. From 20@0®3, we reduced our cost structure and strengthear balance sheet in order to deliver
long-term results to our shareholders and alsoakeniRyder more competitive in the marketplace. mpgi004, we were successful in
growing revenue in our transactional businessestandgh strategic acquisitions in our FMS busin@sging 2005, we continued this
transformation by demonstrating profitable growtreach of our three business segments and reatizingd earnings for the second
consecutive year. In 2006, targeted plans for dg\growth across all product lines while continuinglemonstrate earnings leverage include:

» focus on strong customer retention and new busitesslopment

» accelerate growth in FMS full service lease andremh maintenance product lin¢

» continue growth in SCS, DCC and FMS commercialalgmtoduct lines

e continue emphasis on prudent capital allocae— manage capital over replacement cy
« utilize balance sheet capacity to replenish fleet support growth objectives; a

» sustain focus on cost management and process impents, while investing in sales and operationghbdities.

ITEMS AFFECTING COMPARABILITY BETWEEN PERIODS
Accounting Changes

As discussed in Note 2, “Accounting Changésthe Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemesitsctive December 31, 2005, Ryder
adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board'spmegation No. (FIN) 47, “Accounting for Conditionasset Retirement ObligationsThe
adoption of FIN 47 required us to record an asstgtement obligation related to the future remaMalinderground storage tanks located a
maintenance facilities. We recognized a cumulatiifect charge upon adoption of
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$2 million on an after-tax basis, or $0.04 per @itllcommon share. We do not expect the adoptitm®Etandard to significantly impact
future results.

As discussed in Note 1, “Summary of SignificAccounting Policies — Consolidation of Varialfgerest Entities,” in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements, effective JuB0D3, Ryder consolidated three variable intezatities (VIES) in connection with the
adoption of FIN 46, “Consolidation of Variable Intst Entities,” (as revised by FIN 46-R issued &wvber 2003). The consolidated VIEs
were established as part of previous sale-leasdbatsactions of revenue earning equipment in wRigtier sold revenue earning equipment
to special-purpose entities and then leased ttentevearning equipment back as lessee under oppladise arrangements. In connection
with the sale-leaseback transactions executeckifiotm of vehicle securitizations and a synthet&sing arrangement, we provided credit
enhancements and residual value guarantees thgatso Ryder to absorb the majority of the expetitedes from such entities, if any are
realized. Therefore, FIN 46 required that theséiestbe consolidated. The consolidation of the 8/td not have a significant impact on our
consolidated net earnings; however, reported degiec expense, equipment rental and interest esgoarere impacted by the consolidation
of the VIEs. In addition, both net cash provideddpgrating activities and our free cash flow measuacreased beginning July 2003 due to
the add-back of depreciation expense on the Vi&smue earning equipment and net cash used incfimaactivities also increased due to
principal payments on VIEs’ debt. We recognizedimuglative effect charge upon adoption of $3 millmman after-tax basis, or $0.05 per
diluted common share.

FMS Acquisitions

On March 1, 2004, we completed an asset pseehgreement with Ruan Leasing Company (Ruany wideh we acquired Ruan’s fleet
of approximately 6,400 vehicles, 37 of its 111 saocations and more than 500 customers. Ryderadquired full service contract
maintenance agreements covering approximately &bitles. Effective December 31, 2003, we alsamed substantially all the assets of
General Car and Truck Leasing System (Generalgjamprivately held commercial truck leasing, maimance and rental company, incluc
General’s fleet of approximately 4,200 vehiclespifs 34 service locations and more than 700austs. The combined networks operate
under Ryder’'s name and have allowed us to levaesagexisting U.S. infrastructure in key markets iekidding new infrastructure to
strengthen our presence in targeted areas of tHe/ddit, Southeast, Mid-Atlantic and Southwest. Hwilts of these acquisitions have been
included in the consolidated results of Ryder sitheedates of acquisitions.
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Years ended December Change
2005/ 2004/
2005 2004 2003 2004 2003

(In thousands, exce
per share amount

Earnings from continuing operations before income$ $357,08t 331,12: 212,47¢ 8% 56
Provision for income taxe() 129,46( 115,51: 76,91¢ 12 50
Earnings from continuing operatio().(2) $227,62! 215,60¢ 135,55¢ 6% 59
Per diluted common sha $ 3.5 3.2¢ 2.12 8% 55
Net earning{®).(2).(3) $226,92! 215,60¢ 131,43t 5% 64
Per diluted common sha $ 352 3.2¢ 2.0€ 7% 59
Weightec-average shares outstand— Diluted 64,56( 65,67 63,87 (2)% 3

(1) 2005 included an income tax benefit of $8 million$0.12 per diluted common share, associated thighreduction of deferred income taxes due to tteseout of incorn
taxes for the State of Ohio. 2004 included an ireten benefit of $9 million, or $0.14 per diluteshemon share, associated with developments in vatemumatters. See
Note 13/ Income Taxe” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statememtsdlditional discussior

2) Results included restructuring and other charges@veries), net of $2 million af-tax, or $0.03 per diluted common share, in 2008 &(L1) million aftertax, or $(0.17
per diluted common share, in 2004. See No“Restructuring and Other Charges (Recoveries),tlie Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsélalitional
discussion

) Net earnings for 2005 included (i) income from diginued operations associated with the reductibmsurance reserves related to discontinued openatresulting ir
an after-tax benefit of $2 million, or $0.03 petutied common share, and (ii) the cumulative efféet change in accounting principle for costs asat with the future
removal of underground storage tanks resultingriraéter-tax charge of $2 million, or $0.04 per déd common share. Net earnings for 2003 includecttimulative
effect of a change in accounting principle fon@riable interest entities resulting in an aftexteharge of $3 million, or $0.05 per diluted comnstiare, and (ii) costs
associated with eventual retirement of long-livedets primarily relating to components of revenaimimg equipment resulting in an after-tax chardgest million, or
$0.02 per diluted common sha

Earnings from continuing operations beforeme taxes increased to $357 million in 2005 congpari¢h $331 million in 2004, reflecting
better FMS commercial rental results, higher gam$&MS used vehicle sales and reductions in opgratkpenses resulting from ongoing
reduction activities and process improvement astaxross all business segments, partially offs¢ehéypenefit from gains on the 2004 sals
our headquarters complex of $24 million. All busissegments reported improved results. Earnings éantinuing operations increased to
$228 million in 2005 compared with $216 million2004. Earnings from continuing operations in 20@8uded an income tax benefit of
$8 million, or $0.12 per diluted common share,tedao a change in Ohio income tax law. Earningmfcontinuing operations in 2004
benefited from aftetax gains on the sale of our headquarters comgl&t® million, or $0.23 per diluted common shaneg @ net income te
benefit of $9 million, or $0.14 per diluted commsimare, associated with the resolution of varionsrtatters. Net earnings in 2005 included
an after-tax benefit of $2 million, or $0.03 peluttd common share, related to discontinued operatind an after-tax charge of $2 million,
or $0.04 per diluted common share, for the cumsatiffect of a change in accounting principle edab the adoption of FIN 47.

Earnings from continuing operations befoimme taxes in 2004 increased to $331 million comgbavith $212 million in 2003. The
earnings improvement in 2004 compared with 2003 dva®n by the gain on sale of our headquartersptexn the positive impact of FMS
acquisitions, increased FMS rental
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pricing and utilization, higher gains on FMS usethicle sales, lower pension costs, and reductionpérating expenses resulting from cost
management and process improvement actions. Sesrd@ym Results by Business Segmédat’further discussion of operating results for
past three years.

Years ended December Change
2005/ 2004/
2005 2004 2003 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands
Revenue
Fleet Management Solutio $3,921,19. 3,602,83! 3,231,67! 9% 11
Supply Chain Solution 1,637,82 1,354,00: 1,362,42 21 (1)
Dedicated Contract Carriat 543,26 506,10( 514,73: 7 (2
Eliminations (361,439 (312,669 (306,54() (16) 2
Total $5,740,84 5,150,27! 4,802,29: 11% 7

All business segments reported revenue grow2005. Additionally, revenue comparisons fortalsiness segments were favorably
impacted by pricing increases associated with hified costs which increased fuel services reveRMS revenue was also positively
impacted by higher rental revenue resulting frorargier pricing and increased contraefated maintenance revenue from the implement:
of growth initiatives. SCS revenue growth was pritgaelated to increased volumes of managed sutbacted transportation. In addition,
SCS and DCC revenue grew in 2005 due to new anahebgal business. Revenue comparisons were alsotgddae favorable movements in
foreign currency exchange rates related to ourniaténal operations. Total revenue included a fable foreign currency exchange impac
0.9% due primarily to the strengthening of the GChawva dollar and Brazilian real.

During 2004, FMS revenue was positively intpddy acquisitions and higher rental revenue tiegufrom a larger fleet, stronger pricing
and increased activity. FMS acquisitions contriduagproximately $177 million for the year ended &uaber 31, 2004. Revenue comparis
were also impacted by increased FMS fuel servieesrue primarily as a result of higher average fiuiees, and favorable movements in
foreign currency exchange rates related to ourniaténal operations. Total revenue included a fable foreign currency exchange impac
1.6% due to the strengthening of the British poand the Canadian dollar. These increases weralbadffset by reduced FMS full service
lease revenue in our base U.S. business (excladiggisitions) and the non-renewal of certain custocontracts in our SCS and DCC
business segments.

Our FMS segment leases revenue earning eguipamd provides fuel, maintenance and other angiiervices to our SCS and DCC
segments. Eliminations relate to inter-segmentshlat are accounted for at approximate fair vakid the sales were made to third parties.
The increases in eliminations in 2005 and 2004ctdlthe pass-through of higher fuel costs fronFHH& segment to SCS and DCC.

Years ended December Change
2005/ 2004,
2005 2004 2003 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands
Operating expense (exclusive of items shown seglg: $2,572,24. 2,305,32. 2,039,151 12% 13
Percentage of reveni 45% 45% 42%

Operating expense grew for 2005 and 200&jmadly from higher fuel costs due to higher aver&gel prices. Fuel costs are largely a
pass-through to customers for which we realize mahichanges in profitability during periods of stganarket fuel prices. The overall
growth in revenue, excluding fuel, also
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contributed to the increases in operating expem2005 and 2004. For 2004, operating expense \gadrapacted by higher maintenance
costs, resulting from a larger and older vehiadet] and added operating costs attributed to th& Bdfuisitions.

Years ended December Change
2005/ 2004
2005 2004 2003 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands
Salaries and employ-related cost $1,262,16! 1,233,03 1,242,93 2% (1)
Percentage of reveni 22% 24% 26%

Salaries and employee-related costs gre®@0b compared with 2004 as a result of headcouwaditb support the growth in our SCS
business segment, which was offset slightly by cedyperformance-based incentive compensation avel lemployee benefit costs. Average
headcount increased 2% in 2005 compared with ZD0& number of employees at December 31, 2005 isete@% to approximately 27,8(
compared with 26,300 at December 31, 2004, primdrik to the growth in our SCS business segment.

Pension expense decreased $4 million in 20859 million compared with 2004 and principaltygacted FMS. The decrease in pension
expense reflects the positive impact of higheragtension asset returns in 2004. We expect persipense on a pre-tax basis to increase
approximately $9 million to $68 million in 2006. ©2006 pension expense estimates are subject myelzmsed upon the completion of
actuarial analysis for all pension plans. See #uti@n titled “Critical Accounting Estimates — PansPlans” for further discussion on
pension accounting estimates. The anticipated &serén pension expense would primarily impact ddSFbusiness segment.

Salaries and employee-related costs decraéa2f4 compared with 2003 as a result of lowerspEn expense and lower headcount in
our SCS and DCC business segments caused by themenval of certain contracts, offset in part byhar performance-based incentive
compensation. Average headcount decreased 1% th@dfipared with 2003.

Years ended December Change
2005/ 2004
2005 2004 2003 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands
Subcontracted transportati $638,31¢ 424,99: 414,28 50% 3
Percentage of reveni 11% 8% 9%

Subcontracted transportation representshteiganagement costs on logistics contracts for kvivie purchase transportation from third
parties. During 2005, subcontracted transportagigense in our SCS business segment grew duergasez volumes of freight managenr
activity from new and expanded business and higlierage pricing on subcontracted freight costsiltiag from increased fuel costs.
Subcontracted transportation expense increase@0#h Gompared with 2003 principally as a resultddexd transportation management-based
business and higher average pricing on subconttdictight costs resulting from increased fuel costs

Years ended December Change
2005/ 2004/
2005 2004 2003 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands
Depreciation expens $740,41! 706,02¢ 624,58( 5% 13
Gains on vehicle sales, r (47,099 (34,504 (15,780) 37 11¢
Equipment rente 102,81t 108,46¢ 200,86¢ (5) (46)
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Depreciation expense relates primarily to F%nue earning equipment. The growth in deprieciaxpense during 2005 is due to
higher vehicle replacement activity within our tkuand tractor fleets as well as the conversiorea$éd vehicles to owned status, partially
offset by a decline in our average trailer flegesiThe growth in depreciation expense during 2@flécted the consolidation of VIEs
effective July 1, 2003 (approximately $40 milliothe impact of vehicles added as part of the FMfuadions, the conversion of leased units
to owned status as a result of lease extensionthangplacement of expiring leased units with csvanits.

The improvements in gains on vehicle salez0io5 and 2004 were due to an increase in the nuofilumits sold combined with improved
average pricing on vehicles sold over the precepergpds.

We periodically review and adjust residudlies, reserves for guaranteed lease terminatiaresand useful lives of revenue earning
equipment based on current and expected operaginds and projected realizable values. See thimgditted “Critical Accounting
Estimates — Depreciation and Residual Value Gueagsitfor further discussion. While we believe ttit carrying values and estimated
sales proceeds for revenue earning equipment gregnate, there can be no assurance that a dettoio in economic conditions or adverse
changes to expectations of future sales procedteatioccur, resulting in losses on sales.

Equipment rental primarily consists of rerttabts on revenue earning equipment in FMS. Theedse in equipment rental in 2005 from
2004 is due to a reduction in the average numbkrasid vehicles when compared with 2004. Thefgignit decrease in 2004 compared \
2003 was due to a reduction in the average nunfdeased vehicles (compared with owned) resultiogifthe consolidation of VIES
effective July 1, 2003 (approximately $50 millioth)e conversion of leased units to owned statwsrasult of lease extensions and the
replacement of expiring leased units with ownedsuni

Years ended December Change
2005/ 2004/
2005 2004 2003 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands
Interest expens $120,47- 100,11- 96,16¢ 20% 4
Effective interest rat 5.6% 5.5% 5.8%

Interest expense grew in 2005 reflecting bighverage debt levels, resulting from increasgitalsspending, income tax payments and
share repurchases. The growth in interest exp@erd@0d4 over 2003 reflects higher average debtdewtluding debt of consolidated VIEs.
Excluding interest expense from consolidated Viesnparisons for 2004 were favorably impacted byral/&wer market interest rates and
reduced effective interest rates as a result ofingdransactions, which principally benefited FMS.

Years ended December Change
2005/ 2004/
2005 2004 2003 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands
Miscellaneous income, n $(8,944) (6,625 (12,15¢) 35% (46)

Miscellaneous income, net consists of investihincome on securities used to fund certain bigplehs, interest income and other non-
operating items. Prior to the consolidation of VHfective July 1, 2003, miscellaneous income,at&t included servicing fee income for
administrative services provided to vehicle leagsts in connection with vehicle securitizatiomsactions. Miscellaneous income, net
increased in 2005 compared with 2004 due to thetiomerecovery of $3 million for project costs imoed in prior years and better market
performance of investments classified as tradimgisges used to fund certain benefit plans. Misredous income, net decreased in 2004
compared with 2003 because of
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the elimination of servicing fee income relatedtéotain VIES. As a result of consolidating the wéisecuritization trusts, we no longer
recognize service fee income.

Years ended December

2005 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands
Restructuring and other charges (recoveries) $3,37¢ (17,67¢) (230

2005 Activity

During 2005, Ryder recorded net restructudand other charges of $3 million that consistedraployee severance and benefits, contract
termination costs, and closure of leased facilpiagially offset by reversals of prior year severaand employee-related accruals. The
majority of these charges were recorded duringdhgh quarter and related primarily to the restudag of our U.K. operations, and the
offshoring of some administrative finance and supfimctions that will allow for future cost savingWe expect to realize annual pag-cos
savings of approximately $7 million from the 20@&ifth quarter actions, which are expected to bepbeted in the second half of 2006.

During 2005, Ryder approved a plan to elirteregpproximately 160 positions as a result of omgaiost management and process
improvement actions in Ryder’s domestic and intéonal FMS and SCS business segments and Cenfpglb8Services (CSS). The charge
related to these actions included severance antbgagrelated costs totaling $3 million. Cost rethres associated with these actions will
benefit salaries and employee related costs bewirinithe first quarter of 2006. Many of the elilai@d positions in our domestic operations
were impacted by Ryder’s decision to outsourceategdministrative finance functions to lower-cfiseign providers and maximize our
technology resources. Transition actions will begifebruary 2006 and continue through the remaiotil2006. We also closed two
administrative offices in the U.S. as a resulthaf testructuring of our FMS domestic business djpgraand recorded a charge for future cash
payments related to lease obligations. As parngbing cost management and process improvemenhaciRyder management approved
and committed to a plan to transition certain outsed telecommunication services to Ryder emplaydeder the terms of the agreement,
Ryder was obligated to pay termination costs inghent of termination prior to the expiration daf2010. In accordance with the terms of
the services agreement, Ryder notified the infoionatechnology services provider of its intentéominate the services and recorded charges
totaling nearly $1 million for contract terminatiensts. The transition activities are expectedetedmpleted in the first half of 2006 and cost
reductions associated with the termination of treesgices will benefit operating expenses staritinidpe latter part of 2006. These charges
were partially offset by reversals of prior yeavesmnce and employee-related accruals due to neéints in estimates.

2004 Activity

During 2004, Ryder recorded net restructudand other recoveries of $18 million that consisiedains from the sale of the previous
headquarters complex and reversals of severanceraplbyee-related accruals partially offset by cactttermination costs.

During 2004, we recognized $24 million inm@from properties sold in connection with the calion of our headquarters. In May 2004,
we completed the sale of our corporate headqudgeitity for $39 million in cash and recognize&22 million gain from the sale. In
conjunction with this sale, we entered into a lemgeement with the purchaser to lease back thegesters facility until we relocated to our
new headquarters in April 2005. Also during 2004, ecognized gains totaling $2 million from theesal properties ancillary to our main
headquarters facility. In 2004, as part of ongaingt containment initiatives, Ryder management@ma and committed to a plan to
transition certain outsourced information technglograstructure services to Ryder employees. Utldletterms of the agreement, Ryder was
obligated to pay termination costs in the everteahination prior to the expiration date of
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2010. In accordance with the terms of the sendggsement, Ryder notified the information technglegrvices provider of its intent to
terminate the services and recorded charges tgtd8million for contract termination ($6 millioand transition costs incurred since
termination ($2 million). By December 31, 2004, tadinsition activities were completed and cost otidns associated with the termination of
these services benefited operating expenses stanti2z005.

2003 Activity

During 2003, Ryder approved a plan to elirteregpproximately 140 positions as a result of omgaiost management and process
improvement actions in Ryder’s FMS and SCS busisegments and CSS. The charge related to thesasaticluded severance and
employee-related costs totaling $6 million. Whilamg of these employees had not been terminatedebgmber 31, 2003, such actions were
substantially finalized by March 31, 2004. Estindaéanual pre-tax cost savings in salaries and graploelated costs realized from these
actions approximate $11 million. These charges wéset by reversals of severance and employe¢eckkccruals totaling $1 million due to
refinements in estimates, recovery of $4 milliconfrthe settlement of a commercial dispute pertgitdnprior billings with an information
technology vendor and gains of $1 million on saleswned facilities identified for closure in prioestructuring charges.

See Note 5, “Restructuring and Other Cha(Besoveries),” in the Notes to Consolidated FinanStatements for further discussion.

Years ended December Change
2005/ 2004/
2005 2004 2003 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands
Provision for income taxe $129,46( 115,518 76,91¢ 12% 50
Effective tax rate 36.3% 34.9% 36.2%

The 2005 effective tax rate includes a taxelfi¢ of $8 million associated with the State ofi@banacted tax legislation, which phases out
the Ohio corporate franchise (income) tax and phasa new gross receipts tax called the Commefaitvity Tax (CAT) over a five-year
period. While the corporate franchise (income)was generally based on federal taxable incomeCt#iE is based on current year sales and
rentals in Ohio. As required by Statement of Finaln&ccounting Standards (SFAS) No. 109, “Accougtfar Income Taxes,the eliminatior
of Ohio’s corporate franchise (income) tax overregt five years resulted in a favorable adjustnemteferred income taxes.

The 2004 effective tax rate includes a nebinefit of $9 million associated with the compatof the audit of our federal income tax
returns for the 1995 to 1997 period, partially effey provisions made for loss contingencies rdl&dehe 1998 through 2000 period. See
Note 13, Income Taxes,” in the Notes to Consolidated FinanStatements for further discussion.

27




Table of Contents

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — (Co ntinued)

OPERATING RESULTS BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

Years ended December Change
2005/ 2004/
2005 2004 2003 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands
Revenue
Fleet Management Solutiol $3,921,19 3,602,83! 3,231,67! 9% 11
Supply Chain Solution 1,637,82 1,354,00: 1,362,42 21 Q)
Dedicated Contract Carriay 543,26¢ 506,10( 514,73: 7 2
Eliminations 361,439 (312,66¢) (306,54() (26) ()
Total $5,740,84 5,150,27 4,802,29. 11% 7
NBT:
Fleet Management Solutiol $ 354,35 312,70t 194,94( 13% 60
Supply Chain Solution 39,39: 37,07¢ 40,06¢ 6 @)
Dedicated Contract Carria 35,12¢ 29,45( 35,25¢ 19 (16)
Eliminations (32,660 (32,729 (33,586) — 3
396,21! 346,50 236,67 14 46
Unallocated Central Support Servic (35,75) (33,06)) (24,437) (8 (35)
Restructuring and other (charges) recoveries (3,376 17,67¢ 23C NM NM
Earnings from continuing operations before incomes$ $ 357,08t 331,12: 212,47! 8% 56

We define the primary measurement of our segtfinancial performance as “Net Before Tax” (NBWhich includes an allocation of
CSS and excludes restructuring and other (chargesyeries, net. CSS represents those costs indaripport all of our business segme
including sales and marketing, human resourceania, corporate services, information technologglth and safety, legal and corporate
communications. The objective of the NBT measurdngeto provide clarity on the profitability of daof our business segments and,
ultimately, to hold leadership of each businessrsag and each operating segment within each bissssggnent accountable for their
allocated share of CSS costs.

Certain costs are considered to be overhetdttributable to any segment and remain unalémtat CSS. Included within the unallocated
overhead remaining within CSS are the costs foesitor relations, corporate communications, pulifira and certain executive
compensation. See Note 26, “Segment ReportingliérNotes to Consolidated Financial Statementa fiescription of how the remainder of
CSS costs is allocated to the business segments.

Our FMS segment leases revenue earning eguipamd provides fuel, maintenance and other angiiervices to our SCS and DCC
segments. Inter-segment revenue and NBT are aambtmt at approximate fair value as if the transast were made with third parties. NBT
related to intesegment equipment and services billed to custofeergpment contribution) is included in both FMSJidhe business segm
which served the customer, and then eliminatecsgmed as “Eliminations”).
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The following table sets forth equipment ciimttion included in NBT for our SCS and DCC segisen

Years ended December
2005 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands

Equipment Contributior

Supply Chain Solution $15,86( 14,97: 15,31¢
Dedicated Contract Carrias 16,80( 17,757 18,267
Total $32,66( 32,72¢ 33,58¢

Segment results are not necessarily indieaifithe results of operations that would have necbhad each segment been an independent
stand-alone entity during the periods presented.

Fleet Management Solution:

Years ended December Change
2005/ 2004/
2005 2004 2003 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands
Full service leas $1,785,60! 1,766,67! 1,668,99: 1% 6
Contract maintenanc 134,49: 136,32° 142,60: 1) 4
Contrac-related maintenanc 194,66( 178,04¢ 162,89¢ 9 9
Commercial rente 686,34 649,84" 540,69: 6 20
Other 63,83( 69,74 75,75¢ (8) (8)
Operating revenu®) 2,864,93: 2,800,64. 2,590,94i 2 8
Fuel services revent 1,056,26! 802,19¢ 640,72 32 25
Total revenue $3,921,19; 3,602,83! 3,231,67! 9% 11
Segment NB $ 354,35« 312,70¢ 194,94( 13% 60
Segment NBT as a % of total rever 9.0% 8.7% 6.0% 3Cbps  27Cbps
Segment NBT as a % of operating reve@) 12.4% 11.2% 7.5% 12Cbps 37Cbps

(1) We use operating revenue, a non-GAAP finamoidsure, to evaluate the operating performanceuiofd/1S business segment and as a measure of saleiya Fuel
services revenue, which is directly impacted bgtélations in market fuel prices, is excluded fram @perating revenue computation as fuel is largelyass-through to
customers for which we realize minimal changegafifability during periods of steady market fuelqes. However, profitability may be positivelyrgatively impacte
by sudden increases or decreases in market fue¢puduring a short period of time as customer pgdor fuel services is established based on mduettcosts

2005 versus 2004

Total revenue grew in 2005 reflecting highesl services revenue as a result of higher avefiaggrices. Operating revenue for 2005
increased as a result of higher commercial remidlcantract-related maintenance revenue and thadhgf acquisitions. FMS acquisitions
contributed approximately $21 million of total atioinal revenue in 2005. FMS total revenue and dpeyaevenue comparisons for 2005 &
benefited from favorable foreign currency excharajes. FMS total revenue included a favorable épreurrency exchange impact of 0.6%.

Full service lease revenue increased in 200Barily from the acquisition completed in Marc®2 and growth in Canada as a result of
favorable foreign currency exchange rates and higblemes. These increases were partially offsetblyiced full service lease revenue in
our base U.S. business (excluding
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acquisitions) in the first half of 2005. Our U.S$isiness showed improved revenue growth trendseiselcond half of 2005 as a result of
positive net sales. In 2006, we expect growth lhservice lease revenue due to recent sales sctind improving retention results. During
the fourth quarter of 2005, we also restructuredrMS operations to better service customers aivé future growth in full service lease.

Contract maintenance revenue decreasedessift of lost business. Contract-related mainte@aecenue, which generally represents
ancillary services supporting core product lines)dfited from ongoing initiatives aimed at growthgse service offerings.

Commercial rental revenue increased as at r@fsstronger pricing and revenue contributiortsilatited to the acquisition completed in
March 2004. We expect commercial rental revenuepasisons to continue to improve in 2006 based @rawed pricing discipline. The
following table provides rental statistics for teS. fleet, which generates approximately 85% tdltcommercial rental revenue:

Years ended December Change
2005/ 2004/
2005 2004 2003 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands
Non-lease customer rental rever $296,43! 292,24 252 ,96¢ 1% 16
Lease customer rental rever(®) $284,18 257,82¢ 206,65: 10% 25
Average commercial rental fleet si® 36,50( 36,00( 32,80( 1% 10
Average commercial rental power fleet s2).(3) 26,10( 25,00( 22,90( 4% 9
Commercial rental utilizatio 74.6% 76.9% 72.1% (230bps  48Cbps

Q) Lease customer rental revenue is revenue from restacles provided to our existing full servicase customers, generally during peak periods iir therations.
2) Number of units rounded to nearest hundi
(3) Fleet size excluding trailer

FMS NBT grew $42 million in 2005 as a resdliroproved commercial rental results from highdacimg, higher gains on disposal of used
vehicles resulting from stronger volume and priciaigd lower overhead costs, including performarasel incentive compensation.

2004 versus 200

Total revenue grew in 2004 reflecting highesl services revenue as a result of higher avefizggrices and higher volumes attributed to
acquisitions. FMS acquisitions contributed appraagety $177 million of revenue in 2004. FMS totaleaue and operating revenue
comparisons for 2004 also benefited from favorédmeign currency exchange rates. FMS total revémcleded a favorable foreign currency
exchange impact of 1.6%.

Full service lease revenue increased in 200darily from acquisitions that added approximafél000 vehicles to our lease fleet.
Comparisons were also favorably impacted by higheenue in Canada and the U.K. as a result of &éolerforeign currency exchange rates
and higher volumes. These increases were partfidet by reduced full service lease revenue intmse U.S. business (excluding
acquisitions) as a result of weak leasing demar008 and flat net sales in 2004.

Contract maintenance revenue decreasedessith of lost business. Contract-related maintemaagenue increased due to initiatives
implemented to drive growth in these service offgs. Commercial rental revenue increased as a @shigher rental pricing and utilization
in each of our markets and a
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larger fleet size. Commercial rental revenue inf28B0o benefited from revenue contributions attaduo acquisitions.

FMS NBT grew $118 million in 2004 as a resflthe acquisitions that allowed us to leverageendsting infrastructure, improved
commercial rental results from higher rental prcand utilization, higher gains on disposal of usagnue earning equipment from stronger
pricing and volume, and lower pension costs. Thasich of these items was partially offset by lowdr $ervice lease and contract
maintenance revenue in our base business (exclagupgired contracts).

Our global fleet of owned and leased revezar@ing equipment and contract maintenance vehksmmarized as follows (number of
units rounded to the nearest hundred):

Years ended December Change
2005/ 2004/
Number of Units 2005 2004 2003 2004 2003
End of period cour
By type:
Trucks 63,20( 63,70( 62,40( (2)% 2
Tractors 52,70( 51,70( 48,90( 2 6
Trailers 40,60( 43,10( 43,20( (6) —
Other 5,80( 5,90( 5,70( ) 4
Total 162,30( 164,40( 160,20( (2)% 3
By product line:
Full service leas 118,40( 119,70( 118,90( ()% 1
Commercial rente 40,50( 41,70( 38,50( 3 8
Service and other vehicl 3,40( 3,00( 2,80( 13 7
Total 162,30( 164,40( 160,20( (1)% 3
Owned®) 156,50( 157,00( 150,20( —% 5
Leasec 5,80( 7,40( 10,00( (22 (26)
Total 162,30( 164,40( 160,20( (1)% 3
Full year averag 164,90( 164,30( 160,00( —% 3
Customer vehicles under contract maintenance (Epdrad) 26,40( 28,50( 29,00( ()% 2

Q) Effective March 1, 2004, approximately 6,400 uniese added to the fleet as part of the Ruan actijpiisi
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The totals in the table above include theofsihg non-revenue earning equipment for the U&etf(number of units rounded to the nearest
hundred):

December 3:
Number of Units 2005 2004 Change
Not yet earning revenue (NYI 1,70C 1,90(C (11)%
No longer earning revenue (NLE
Units held for salt 4,70C 4,80( 2
Other NLE units 2,20( 1,60( 38
Total @) 8,60( 8,30( 4%

(1) Nor-revenue earning equipment for FMS operations oettié U.S. totaled approximately 1,500 vehicled®5 and 2004, which are not included abc

NYE units represent new vehicles on handdhatbeing prepared for deployment to a lease cstominto the rental fleet. Preparations
include activities such as adding lift gates, paietcals, cargo area and refrigeration equipmeriE dhits represent vehicles held for sale, as
well as vehicles for which no revenue has beenegbimthe previous 30 days. These vehicles magtedrarily out of service, being
prepared for sale or awaiting redeployment. In 2089& total number of NLE units increased due &ohigher level of lease vehicle
replacement and increased out-servicing activitseofal vehicles. In 2006, we expect the numbeNIdE units to remain at the current levels.

Supply Chain Solutions

Years ended December Change

2005/ 2004/
2005 2004 2003 2004 2003

(Dollars in thousands

U.S. operating revenu

Automotive and industrie $ 449,37t 425,10¢ 419,65! 6% 1
High-tech and consumer industri 252,03: 230,03( 247,47¢ 10 @)
Transportation manageme 24,994 20,33 15,07¢ 23 35
U.S. operating revent 726,40: 675,46: 682,20t 8 @
International operating reven 289,43. 263,22° 270,31¢ 10 (3)
Total operating revent(®) 1,015,83. 938,69: 952,52! 8 @)
Subcontracted transportati 621,99. 415,31: 409,90t 50 1
Total revenue $1,637,82I 1,354,00. 1,362,42 21% @
Segment NB1 $  39,39: 37,07¢ 40,06¢ 6% (7
Segment NBT as a % of total rever 2.4% 2.7% 2.9% (30) bps  (20) bps
Segment NBT as a % of operating reve(® 3.9% 4.0% 4.2% (10) bps  (20) bps
Memo: Fuel cost $  91,97¢ 65,68¢ 57,80 40% 14

Q) We use operating revenue, a non-GAAP finamoidsure, to evaluate the operating performancaiofSCS business segment and as a measure of séldty/a
Subcontracted transportation is deducted from toégkenue to arrive at our operating revenue comfioteas subcontracted transportation is largelyasg-through to
customers. We realize minimal changes in profitgbés a result of fluctuations in subcontractedrtsportation.
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2005 versus 200

SCS total revenue growth in 2005 was prirgatile to increased volumes of managed subcontrivetesportation. The favorable revenue
comparisons for 2005 also reflect new and expalbdsthess in all industry groups, Canada and LatteAca. In 2004, total revenue and
operating revenue included $7 million associateth &n international inventory procurement contrtw, terms of which were favorably
renegotiated late in the first quarter of 2004lbmimate inventory risk, that required net revemegorting on a prospective basis. SCS total
revenue and operating revenue also included adbleforeign currency exchange impact of 2.0% aBeél] respectively. Our largest
customer, General Motors Corporation, is comprigeaiultiple contracts in various geographic regidns2005, General Motors Corporation
accounted for approximately 35% of SCS total reeemud 18% of SCS operating revenue. Based on actiegy to date, we expect revenue
improvements to continue over the near term.

SCS NBT improved $2 million in 2005 as a testioperating revenue growth from new and exparulesiness and lower overhead
spending. These items were partially offset by low@umes on certain automotive accounts, includiregimpact of plant shutdowns and
launch costs associated with new business and lmaggins in our Brazil operations during the fingte months of the year.

2004 versus 200

SCS total revenue and operating revenuerds=tin 2004 due to the non-renewal of certain Hrffl. international customer contracts.
Additionally, international operating revenue ind30ncluded $21 million associated with an inveptprocurement contract, the terms of
which were favorably renegotiated in the first qeapf 2004 to eliminate inventory risk, that reguai net revenue reporting on a prospective
basis. The unfavorable operating revenue comparig@ne partially offset by new contract start-upd axpansions in the U.S., Canada and
Latin America and favorable foreign currency exadmnates. Both SCS total revenue and operatingievimcluded a favorable foreign
currency exchange impact of 1.6%. In 2004, Gendaibrs Corporation accounted for approximately 30R&CS total revenue and 19% of
SCS operating revenue.

SCS NBT declined $3 million in 2004 primardye to lower operating revenue partially offseréguced overhead spending resulting
from continued profit improvement actions.
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Dedicated Contract Carriage

Years ended December Change
2005/ 2004/
2005 2004 2003 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands
Operating revenu®) $526,94: 496,42: 510,35! 6% 3)
Subcontracted transportati 16,327 9,67¢ 4,37¢ 69 121
Total revenu $543,26¢ 506,10( 514,73 7% 2
Segment NB1 $ 35,12¢ 29,45( 35,25¢ 19% (16)
Segment NBT as a % of total rever 6.5% 5.8% 6.8% 7Cbps  (10C) bps
Segment NBT as a % of operating reve® 6.7% 5.9% 6.9% 8Cbps  (10C) bps
Memo: Fuel cost $ 94,05! 72,52¢ 63,87¢ 30% 14

Q) We use operating revenue, a non-GAAP finanmigdsure, to evaluate the operating performanceaioCC business segment and as a measure of saiegya
Subcontracted transportation is deducted from toégkenue to arrive at our operating revenue comfioteas subcontracted transportation is largelyasg-through to
customers. We realize minimal changes in profitgbils a result of fluctuations in subcontractedrsportation.

2005 versus 2004

DCC revenue in 2005 increased as a resulewfand expanded business and pricing increasesiatesl with higher fuel costs. DCC
NBT improved $6 million reflecting the earnings égage from new and expanded business and lowey safd other operating cos
resulting from cost management and process impremeactions.

2004 versus 200

DCC total and operating revenue decreas@@®d due to the non-renewal of certain custometraots, partially offset by the pass-
through of higher average fuel prices. DCC NBT otexd $6 million in 2004 as a result of lower revepincreased driver costs and higher
safety and insurance expenses, partially offsébwer overhead spending.
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Central Support Services

CSS expenses were as follows:

Years ended December Change
2005/ 2004/
2005 2004 2003 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands

Sales and marketir $ 9,14 7,63¢ 9,15¢
Human resource 14,64° 13,98 18,00(
Finance 56,96+ 56,13¢ 55,18(
Corporate services and public affe 13,02¢ 9,19¢ 7,314
Information technolog 63,56¢ 69,457 78,08¢
Health and safet 8,717 7,952 7,682
Other 41,23 48,05( 37,59¢

Total CSS 207,30: 212,40¢ 213,01¢ (2)% —

Allocation of CSS to business segme (171,55) (179,349 188,58/ 4 5

Unallocated CS:! $ 35,75: 33,06 24,43: 8% 35

2005 versus 200.

Total CSS costs declined in 2005 primarilg ¢ cost benefits associated with the insourcijranegotiation of several information
technology infrastructure services and lower penmcebased incentive compensation costs. This improvemas partially offset by high
spending in corporate services for moving and ttiamscosts associated with the relocation to aewpnsmaller headquarters facility.
Unallocated CSS expenses were up in 2005 largaytalthe headquarters relocation costs and higirporate initiatives spending. We
expect reductions in CSS spending levels over ¢ae term based on continuing cost containment aockps improvement actions.

2004 versus 200

Total CSS costs decreased in 2004 as a esoiigoing cost containment and process improvémeions, most notably in information
technology (IT). This decrease was partially offsghigher performance-based incentive compensatsts attributed to the improved
overall performance. Technology costs were low&084 due primarily to reduced pricing on purchadeservices. Unallocated CSS
expenses were up in 2004 largely due to Sarbanést@ampliance costs that were not allocated tdteness segments and higher
performance-based incentive compensation.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY
Cash Flows

The following is a summary of our cash flofinem operating, financing and investing activities:

Years ended December
2005 2004 2003
(In thousands

Net cash provided by (used il

Operating activitie: $ 779,06: 866,84 803,61:
Financing activitie: 241,50! (195,76() (232,796
Investing activities (988,85!) (720,119 (543,169
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ (3,956 9,36¢ 8,73¢
Net change in cash and cash equival $ 27,75¢ (39,656 36,39(
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A detail of the individual items contributing the cash flow changes is included in the Cadat#d Statements of Cash Flows.

Cash provided by operating activities deagddns 2005 compared to 2004 due to U.S. federainmctax payments of $176 million made
in connection with the resolution of our federalome tax audit for the 1998 to 2000 tax period $tt¥ million of estimated 2004 and 2005
tax payments made during 2005. Cash provided byatipg activities increased in 2004 compared wB32due primarily to improved
operating performance and the add-back of depresiakpense attributed to VIEs that were consadidaffective July 1, 2003.

Cash provided by financing activities increién 2005 compared with cash used in financiniyities in 2004 due to higher debt
borrowings used to fund increased capital requirdsand federal income tax payments. Cash usedanding activities decreased in 2004
compared with 2003 as higher debt borrowings andeg®ds from stock option exercises were partidflset by increased stock repurchases.

Net cash used in investing activities incegbisi 2005 compared with 2004 due primarily to leigbapital expenditures, principally lease
vehicle spending for replacement and expansiomustoener fleets. The increase in capital spendirgpeatially offset by lower acquisition-
related payments and higher proceeds associathdsalis of used vehicles. Cash used in investitigitaes increased in 2004 compared with
2003 due to higher capital expenditures and paysmeatle in connection with FMS acquisitions. Captqdenditures increased in 2004 due
to planned higher levels of vehicle replacement&éuipment under lease to our customers and rese Isales. The increase in capital
spending was partially offset by higher proceedsifthe sale of used vehicles, the sale of our catpdeadquarters complex and sale-
leaseback transactions completed during 2004.

We manage our business to maximize operatsp flows and proceeds from the sale of revenugngpequipment as the principal
sources of liquidity. We refer to the net amounta$h generated from operating activities and tivggctivities as “free cash flow.”
Although free cash flow is a non-GAAP financial reeee, we consider it to be an important measumooiparative operating performance.
We believe free cash flow provides investors wittiraportant perspective on the cash available ét dervice and for shareholders after
making capital investments required to support amgbusiness operations. Our calculation of freshddow may be different from the
calculation used by other companies and therefomgparability may be limited.

The following table shows the sources of foee cash flow computation:

Years ended December

2005 2004 2003
(In thousands
Net cash provided by operating activit $ 779,06: 866,84 803,61:
Collections on direct finance leas 70,40¢ 63,79¢ 61,36¢
Sales of operating property and equiprr 6,96: 42,83¢ 13,39:
Sales of revenue earning equipm 326,75: 288,67 196,19¢
Sale and leaseback of revenue earning equip — 118,53 13,181
Purchases of property and revenue earning equig (1,399,37) (1,092,15)) (734,509
Acquisitions (15,110 (148,79) (96,519
Other, ne 21,51 6,99t 3,727
Free cash flov $_(209,79) 146,73t 260,44¢

We used $210 million of free cash flow in 8Gfmpared to generating $147 million in 2004 dukigher capital spending levels and
income tax payments made in connection with theluéien of our federal income tax audit for the 838 2000 tax period and estimated tax
payments which were partially
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offset by lower acquisition spending. Free castvfttecreased in 2004 compared with 2003 as higlptatapending and payments made in
connection with FMS acquisitions offset better @pieig performance, higher proceeds from sales @d ughicles, the sale of our corporate
headquarters complex and siaseback transactions. Net cash provided by apgrattivities and free cash flow comparisons m fihst hall
of 2004 were also positively impacted by the addklat depreciation expense of approximately $40ionilattributed to VIEs that were
consolidated as a result of the adoption of FINA@uly 1, 2003. We anticipate negative free chsh fevels to improve in 2006 as a result
of better operating performance and lower incometyments.

Capital expenditures are generally used tol@ase revenue earning equipment (trucks, tradraiters) primarily to support the full
service lease product line and secondarily to suphe commercial rental product line within our BNdusiness segment. The level of capital
required to support the full service lease prodinetvaries directly with the customer contracinéigs for replacement vehicles and growth.
These contracts are long-term agreements that raquiedictable cash flows to us typically oveheee-to seven-year term. The commercial
rental product line utilizes capital for the purshaf vehicles to replenish and expand the fleailable for shorter-term use by contractual or
occasional customers. Operating property and ecgripexpenditures primarily relate to FMS and SC&hdjng on items such as vehicle
maintenance facilities and equipment, computertalE@ommunications equipment, and warehouse fiasilénd equipment. The following is
a summary of capital expenditures:

Years ended December
2005 2004 2003
(In thousands

Revenue earning equipme@)

Full service leas $1,082,33; 862,99: 459,23¢
Commercial rente 251,27¢ 241,85t 219,88
1,333,61! 1,104,85: 679,11¢

Operating property and equipme 77,36( 59,76 46,01
Total capital expenditure 1,410,97 1,164,61! 725,13(
Changes in accounts payable related to purchaseseriue earning equipme (11,59) (72,467) 9,37¢
Cash paid for purchases of property and revenugrgpequipmen $1,399,37! 1,092,15! 734,50¢

(1)  Capital expenditures exclude non-cash additioihapproximately $0.4 million, $54 million and $@ifllion in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, gsets held under
capital leases resulting from the extension oft;dsoperating leases and other additio

Capital expenditures grew in 2005 and 2004gtirearily to increased replacement activity in fult service lease business. Vehicle
capital spending levels were relatively low fronD2Go 2003 as we focused efforts on extending feadth existing customers, redeploying
surplus assets and right-sizing our fleet. Accaljincapital spending levels should be relativatyhier from 2004 to 2006 because of
increased replacement activity. As a result offtaet age and anticipated higher levels of newssatel replacement activity, total capital
expenditures are anticipated to increase to apmrately $1.6 billion in 2006, including lease vehicképlacements of approximately
$1.1 billion and spending for anticipated increnabfgase growth of approximately $200 million. Wipect to fund 2006 capital expenditu
with both internally generated funds and additidire@ncing.

In both 2005 and 2004, Ryder completed amiadtpn related to the FMS segment. In the foupdlarter of 2003, Ryder completed two
acquisitions related to the FMS segment. Total ickenation paid for these acquisitions was $15 onillin 2005, $149 million in 2004 and
$97 million in 2003. Approximately $4 million is duo the sellers at December 31, 2005 and willdid gubject to holdback
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provisions set forth in the purchase agreementsNéde 4, “Acquisitions,” in the Notes to Consotield Financial Statements for a further
discussion. We will continue to evaluate selectiequisitions in FMS, SCS and DCC in 2006.
Financing and Other Funding Transactions

We utilize external capital to support growtlour asset-based product lines. The varietynaifcing alternatives available to fund our
capital needs include long-term and medium-termipamd private debt, asset-backed securities, bemk loans, leasing arrangements, bank
credit facilities and commercial paper.

The following table shows the movements inaebt balance:

Years ended December

2005 2004
(In thousands

Debt balance at January $1,783,21 1,815,90i

Casl-related changes in del
Net change in commercial paper borrowil 188,27: 79,03
Proceeds from issuance of med-term notes 600,00( 135,00(
Proceeds from issuance of other debt instrurr 162,12: 147,15:
Retirement of debentur (200,000 (72,000
Other debt repaid, including capital lease obligyat (343,93) (384,93)
406,46 (95,74¢)

Non-cash changes in del

Fair market value adjustment on notes subject tiging (4,152) (9,380
Addition of capital lease obligatiol 43: 54,09«
Changes in foreign currency exchange rates and odr-cash item: (599 18,34¢
Total changes in del 402,15( (32,689
Debt balance at December $2,185,36! 1,783,211

In accordance with our funding philosophy, ateempt to match the average remaining repridfiegf our debt with the average
remaining life of our assets. We utilize both fixede and variable-rate debt to achieve this maichgenerally target a mix of 25% - 45%
variable-rate debt as a percentage of total defstanding. The variable-rate portion of our totialigations (including notional value of swap
agreements) was 32% at December 31, 2005, compéite87% at December 31, 2004.

Ryder’s leverage ratios and a reconciliabbbalance sheet debt to total obligations werkmwvs:

December 31, % to December 31 % to
2005 Equity 2004 Equity
(Dollars in thousands
On-balance sheet de $2,185,36! 143% $1,783,211 118%
Off-balance sheet debt — PV of minimum lease paysen
and guaranteed residual values under operatingddas
vehicles®) 117,06: 161,13¢
Total obligations $2,302,42 151% $1,944,35. 129%

Q) Present value (PV) does not reflect payments Rydeid be required to make if we terminated theteeldeases prior to the scheduled expiration de

Debt to equity consists of balance sheet fitgtithe period divided by total shareholders’ eguiitotal obligations to equity represents
balance sheet debt plus the present value of mmitease payments and guaranteed residual values apdrating leases for vehicles,
discounted based on our
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incremental borrowing rate at lease inceptiondiziided by total shareholders’ equity. Althoughatatbligations is a non-GAAP financial
measure, we believe that total obligations is Usedut is a more complete measure of our exidimancial obligations and helps better assess
Ryder’s overall leverage position.

The increase in leverage ratios in 2005 wa®d by our increased funding needs as a resuiighfer vehicle capital spending
requirements, higher income tax payments and stqmkrchases. Our long-term target percentage alfdbligations to equity is 250% to
300% while maintaining a strong investment gradimga\We believe this leverage range is appropfiateur business due to the liquidity of
our vehicle portfolio and because a substantialpmmant of our assets are supported by long-tertomes leases.

Our ability to access unsecured debt in gpatal markets is linked to both our short-term &m-term debt ratings. These ratings are
intended to provide guidance to investors in detgirg the credit risk associated with particulard@y securities based on current informa
obtained by the rating agencies from us or froneiofources that such agencies consider to be leeliadwer ratings generally result in hig
borrowing costs as well as reduced access to tamitkets. A downgrade of Rydsrdebt rating below investment grade level woutdtliour
ability to issue commercial paper. As a resultwaeild have to rely on other established fundingsesidescribed below.

Our debt ratings at December 31, 2005 wefelkmsvs:

Short-term Long-term QOutlook
Moody'’s Investors Service p2 Baal Stable (June 2004
Standard & Poor’s Ratings Service: A2 BBB+ Stable (April 2005
Fitch Ratings F2 A- Stable (July 2005

Ryder can borrow up to $870 million througblabal revolving credit facility with a syndicaté lenders. The credit facility is used
primarily to finance working capital internationatind provide support for the issuance of commepaper. The credit facility can also be
used to issue up to $75 million in letters of ctétliere were no facility-supported letters of d¢reditstanding at December 31, 2005). At
Ryder’s option, the interest rate on borrowingsarrttie credit facility is based on LIBOR, primedéeal funds or local equivalent rates.
During May 2005, the terms of the credit facilitgre amended thereby extending the expiration ofatiéty one year to 2010 and reducing
the current annual facility fee from 15.0 basisnp®io 11.0 basis points. The annual facility fpplies to the total facility of $870 million, a
is based on Ryder’s current long-term credit rairighe credit facility contains no provisions rigsing its availability in the event of a
material adverse change to Ryder’s business opagthowever, the credit facility does contain dtad representations and warranties,
events of default, cross-default provisions, anthae affirmative and negative covenants. In otdemaintain availability of funding, Ryder
must maintain a ratio of debt to consolidated thlegnet worth, as defined in the agreement, oftleas or equal to 300%. The ratio at
December 31, 2005 was 128%.

During 2005, we issued $600 million of ungecumedium-term notes, of which $225 million matiré\pril 2010, $175 million mature
in April 2011 and $200 million mature in June 20TRe proceeds from the notes were used for generpbrate purposes. During 2005, we
repaid $200 million of debentures.

In September 2005, Ryder filed a new univeskalf registration statement with the Securiied Exchange Commission to issue up to
$800 million of securities, including $65 milliorf available securities that were carried forwaafhfrthe previous shelf registration statem
The universal shelf registration statement becdffieeteve in November 2005. Proceeds from debt issaa under the universal shelf
registration statement are expected to be usegkiweral corporate purposes, which may include abgipenditures, share repurchases and
reduction in commercial paper borrowings. At
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December 31, 2005, Ryder had $800 million of debusties available for issuance under the latgistration statement.

In September 2005, Ryder Receivable Funding,L.C. (RRF LLC), a bankruptcy remote, consalidd subsidiary of Ryder System, It
entered into a Trade Receivables Purchase andA\§edement (the Trade Receivables Agreement) wittoua financial institutions. Under
this program, Ryder sells certain of its domestdé accounts receivable to RRF LLC who in turn sl on a revolving basis, an
ownership interest in certain of these accountsivable to a receivables conduit and (or) commigtecthasers. Under the terms of the
program, RRF LLC and Ryder have provided represients warranties, covenants and indemnities treatastomary for accounts receive
facilities of this type. Ryder entered into thi®gram to provide additional liquidity to fund itperations, particularly when the cost of such
sales is cost effective compared with other fungirggrams, notably the issuance of unsecured coniah@aper. This program is similar to
Ryder’s previous accounts receivable facility, whéxpired in December 2004, except that this progréll be a 364-day facility. This
program will be accounted for as a collateralizedricing arrangement. The available proceeds thgthe received by RRF LLC under the
program are limited to $200 million. RRF LLC’s cesinder this program may vary based on changegder® unsecured debt ratings and
changes in interest rates. If no event occurs wiighld cause early termination, the program wilbiex on September 12, 2006, unless
extended by the parties. At December 31, 2005¢neivables were sold pursuant to the Trade Redeiw#greement.

At December 31, 2005, Ryder had the followamgounts available to fund operations under theeafentioned facilities:

(In millions)
Global revolving credit facility $474
Shelf registration statement 80C
Trade receivables facility 20C

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangement:

Sale and leaseback transactiolge periodically enter into sale and leaseback &etitsns in order to lower the total cost of fundg
operations, to diversify our funding among diffaretasses of investors (e.g., regional banks, pengians and insurance companies) and to
diversify our funding among different types of fumgl instruments. These sale-leaseback transaai@nsften executed with third-party
financial institutions that are not deemed to bE&/IIn general, these sale-leaseback transactsn# in a reduction in revenue earning
equipment and debt on the balance sheet, as p@ead the sale of revenue earning equipment anegpity used to repay debt.
Accordingly, sale-leaseback transactions will resufeduced depreciation and interest expenseéramelased equipment rental expense.

During 2004, we completed two sale and opegdéaseback transactions of revenue earning etgnipwith third-party financial
institutions not deemed to be VIEs and these t@imwes qualified for off-balance sheet treatmembdeeds from such sale-leaseback
transactions totaled $97 million. These leasesaiofimited guarantees by us of the residual vabfehe leased vehicles (residual value
guarantees) that are conditioned upon disposéleofetased vehicles prior to the end of their léaga. Proceeds from other sale-leaseback
transactions that did not qualify for off-balantest treatment were $22 million. We did not entéo any sale and operating leaseback
transactions during the years ended December 85, 20d 2003.

GuaranteesRyder has executed various agreements with thiibpahat contain standard indemnifications thaymequire Ryder to
indemnify a third party against losses arising framariety of matters such as lease obligationgnting agreements, environmental matters,
and agreements to sell business assets. In edlcbsef instances, payment by Ryder is contingetit@other party bringing about a claim
under the procedures outlined in the specific agere. Normally, these procedures allow
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Ryder to dispute the other party’s claim. AdditityaRyder’s obligations under these agreements belmited in terms of the amount and
(or) timing of any claim. We cannot predict the rimastm potential amount of future payments underaierdf these agreements due to the
contingent nature of the potential obligations #reldistinctive provisions that are involved in le@edividual agreement. Historically, no si
payments made by Ryder have had a material ade&feset on our business. We believe that if a lossawncurred in any of these matters,
loss would not result in a material adverse impacbur consolidated results of operations or fimgnmosition. The total amount of maximum
exposure determinable under these types of praxgsib December 31, 2005 and 2004 was $16 milliond26 million, respectively, and we
have accrued $3 million as a corresponding liabiltee Note 17, “Guarantees,” in the Notes to Claeted Financial Statements for further
discussion.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

As part of our ongoing operations, we emés arrangements that obligate us to make futuyepats under contracts such as debt
agreements, lease agreements and unconditiondlgagobligations. The following table summarizeseogected future contractual cash
obligations and commitments at December 31, 2005:

2006 2007 - 2008 2009 - 2010 Thereafter Total
(In thousands)

Debt $268,71t 438,88 865,83 610,11: 2,183,541
Capital lease obligations 722 871 171 56 1,82(
Total debt 269,43t 439,75: 866,00¢ 610,16¢ 2,185,36!
Interest on debt® 113,33 174,25: 120,93: 223,01t 631,53
Operating leases(@ 102,47: 132,25! 62,53¢ 66,067 363,33:
Purchase obligations®) 28,79 33,54 8,97¢ — 71,31.
Total contractual cash obligations 244,60( 340,04¢ 192,44 289,08¢ 1,066,17!
Insurance obligations® 111,16: 99,10° 40,15¢ 52,81« 303,24(
Other long-term liabilities ©).(6) — 13,11¢ 1,001 17,10+ 31,22(
Total $625,20: 892,02. 1,099,61 969,17( 3,586,00!

Q) Total debt matures at various dates througbdigear 2025 and bears interest principally aefixrates. Interest on variable rate debt is caltedbbased on the
applicable rate at December 31, 2005. Amounts aset on existing debt obligations, including cadiases, and do not consider potential refinansin§expiring debt
obligations.

2) Represents future lease payments associated witble®s, equipment and properties under operatirsgés. Amounts are based upon the general assuntpéibthe
leased asset will remain on lease for the lengttinoé specified by the respective lease agreemipteffect has been given to renewals, cancellatioontingent rentals
or future rate change:

(3) The majority of our purchase obligations areygs-you-go transactions made in the ordinary cewsbusiness. Purchase obligations include agressrte purchase
goods or services that are legally binding and thaecify all significant terms, including: fixed minimum quantities to be purchased; fixed mininmumariable price
provisions; and the approximate timing of the traction. The most significant item included in tib@wee table are purchase obligations related torimfation technolog'
services. Purchase orders made in the ordinary sewf business are excluded from the above tableafmounts for which we are liable under purchaskecs are
reflected in our consolidated balance shee" Accounts payab” and“ Accrued expenses and other current liabili”

(4) Insurance obligations are primarily comprised offtinsurance accruals
(5) Represents other lo-term liability amounts reflected in our consoliddtbalance sheets that have known payment str@dmasnost significant items included were
derivative contracts, deferred compensation obl@a and legal contractual obligation

(6) The amounts exclude our estimated pension ibariwns. For 2006, our pension contributions, indihg our minimum funding requirements as set fostiERISA and
international regulatory bodies, are expected tdd@& million. Our minimum funding requirements 2806 are dependent on several factors. Howeverestimate the
the present value of required contributions over tiext 5 years is approximately $115 million (pae}tfor the U.S. plan (assuming expected long-terte of return
realized and other assumptions remain unchanged)aldb have payments due under our other postre&érg benefit (OPEB) plans. These plans are notireduo be
funded in advance, but are f-as-yoL-go. See further discussion in Note “ Employee Benefit Plar” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme
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Pension Information

In connection with the accrual of the addiibminimum pension liability, we had an accumulatet pension equity charge (after-tax) of
$221 million and $189 million at December 31, 2@®fl 2004, respectively, which increased at Dece®bg2005 as reductions in discount
rates offset the appreciation in value of pensiam pssets during the year. Total asset returnguiol).S. qualified pension plan (our primary
plan) were 7% in 2005.

The funded status of our pension plans iddent upon many factors, including returns onstae assets and the level of certain market
interest rates. We review pension assumptions aglgldnd we may, from time to time, make volunteoptributions to our pension plans.
During 2005, total pension contributions, includmg international plans, were $12 million companeth $70 million in 2004. After
considering the 2005 contributions, the projectexsent value of estimated contributions for our.yl8n that would be required over the
next 5 years totals approximately $115 million ¢(tae). Changes in interest rates and the markeevad the securities held by the plans
during 2006 could materially change, positivelynegatively, the underfunded status of the plansadiett the level of pension expense and
required contributions in 2007 and beyond.

Share Repurchases and Cash Dividenc

In October 2005, our Board of Directors auiter a $175 million share repurchase program avegriod not to exceed two years. Share
repurchases of common stock are made periodicatipen-market transactions and are subject to rmedkalitions, legal requirements and
other factors. At December 31, 2005, we had re@s®eth and retired approximately 2.6 million shareden the October 2005 program at an
aggregate cost of $109 million. Management hadbbsieed a prearranged written plan under Rule 1Dbbthe Securities Exchange Act of
1934 as part of the October 2005 program, whiahwelfor share repurchases during Ryder’s quarbdalgkout periods as set forth in the
trading plan. We expect to complete the Octobeb23ffdgram in the first quarter of 2006.

In July 2004, our Board of Directors authedz two-year share repurchase program intendextitpate the dilutive impact of shares
issued under our various employee stock optionsémek purchase plans. Under the July 2004 progsaares of common stock were
purchased in an amount not to exceed the numisdravés issued to employees upon the exerciseakf spdions or through employee stock
purchase plans since May 1, 2004, which totaledcqpately 2.4 million shares at December 31, 200% July 2004 program limited
aggregate share repurchases to no more than 3di@nsihares of Ryder common stock. During the fogptarter of 2005, we replaced the
July 2004 program with the October 2005 prograneaqtreviously. In 2005 and 2004, we repurchasedetivéd approximately 1.0 million
and 1.4 million shares, respectively, under thg 2004 program at an aggregate cost of $43 millioth $62 million, respectively.
Management was granted the authority to establiséiding plan under Rule 10b5-1 as part of the 2004 program.

In 2003, our Board of Directors authorizetva-year share repurchase program intended to aigtjgn part, the dilutive impact of shares
issued under our various employee stock optionsémek purchase plans. Under the 2003 program, sledi@mmon stock were purchases
a dollar amount not to exceed the proceeds gemefiam the issuance of common stock to employeesesianuary 1, 2003 up to
$90 million. During the second quarter of 2004,a@enpleted the 2003 program. In 2004 and 2003, werohased and retired approximately
2.4 million and 117,500 shares, respectively, utider2003 program at an aggregate cost of $87omiind $3 million, respectively.

Cash dividend payments to shareholders ofmwomstock were $41 million in 2005, $39 million2004 and $38 million in 2003. During
2005, we increased our annual dividend to $0.64pare of common stock. In February 2006, our Bo&firectors declared a quarterly
cash dividend of $0.18 per
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share of common stock. The dividend reflects aZ%hbrease from the $0.16 per share of common sjoekterly cash dividend paid in 20(

Market Risk

In the normal course of business, Ryder posgd to fluctuations in interest rates, foreigmency exchange rates and fuel prices. We
manage these exposures in several ways, incluiingrtain circumstances, the use of a varietyepivdtive financial instruments when
deemed prudent. We do not enter into leveragedatere financial transactions or use derivativafinial instruments for trading purposes.

Exposure to market risk for changes in irgerates relates primarily to debt obligations. @iterest rate risk management program
objective is to limit the impact of interest rateanges on earnings and cash flows and to loweat\mrrowing costs. We manage our
exposure to interest rate risk through the proportif fixed-rate and variable-rate debt in theltd&bt portfolio. From time to time, we also
use interest rate swap and cap agreements to maoafiged-rate and variable-rate exposure andetteb match the repricing of debt
instruments to that of our portfolio of assets. Be¢e 16, “Financial Instruments and Risk Managetfiémthe Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for further discussion ontanting interest rate swap and cap agreementscaniier 31, 2005 and 2004.

At December 31, 2005, we had $1.5 billioriixéd-rate debt (excluding capital leases) witheighted-average interest rate of 5.5% and a
fair value of $1.5 billion, including the effect§interest rate swaps. A hypothetical 10% decreasecrease in the December 31, 2005 m:
interest rates would impact the fair value of axed-rate debt by approximately $26 million. At @ecber 31, 2005, the fair value of our
interest rate swap agreement totaled $0.2 milkarDecember 31, 2004, we had $1.1 billion of fixede debt (excluding capital leases) with
a weighted-average interest rate of 6.3% and arédire of $1.2 billion, including the effects otémest rate swaps. A hypothetical 10%
decrease or increase in the December 31, 2004 triat&eest rates would impact the fair value of ixed-rate debt by approximately
$13 million. We estimated the fair value of derivas based on dealer quotations.

At December 31, 2005, we had $661 milliovarfiable-rate debt, including the effects of ingtrate swaps, which effectively changed
$185 million of fixed-rate debt instruments withvaighted-average interest rate of 6.7% to LIBORebatoating-rate debt at a current
weighted-average interest rate of 6.2%. Chang#wifiair value of the interest rate swaps are bfigechanges in the fair value of the debt
instruments and no net gain or loss is recognizezhinings. At December 31, 2005, the fair valueusfinterest rate swap agreements totaled
$0.8 million. At December 31, 2004, we had $607iamilof variable-rate debt, including the effectdrderest rate swaps, which effectively
changed $285 million of fixed-rate debt instrumenith a weighted-average interest rate of 6.7%IBQR-based floating-rate debt at a
current weighted-average interest rate of 4.6%.falmesalue of our interest rate swap agreemenBeaember 31, 2004 totaled $5 million. A
hypothetical 10% increase in market interest rat@sld impact 2006 pre-tax earnings by approximas&ymillion.

Exposure to market risk for changes in faneigrrency exchange rates relates primarily toforgign operations’ buying, selling and
financing in currencies other than local curreneied to the carrying value of net investments neiffn subsidiaries. The majority of our
transactions are denominated in U.S. dollars. Thesipal foreign currency exchange rate risks tacltwe are exposed include the Canadian
dollar, British pound sterling, Brazilian real akigxican peso. We manage our exposure to foreigreooy exchange rate risk related to our
foreign operations’ buying, selling and financimgcurrencies other than local currencies by ndtuddisetting assets and liabilities not
denominated in local currencies. A hypotheticafanm 10% strengthening in the value of the dolidative to all the currencies in which our
transactions are denominated would result in aedeser to pre-tax earnings of approximately $6 mnillle also use foreign currency option
contracts and forward agreements from time
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to time to hedge foreign currency transactionalsxpe. We generally do not hedge the translatiposxre related to our net investment in
foreign subsidiaries, since we generally have ray-term intent to repatriate funds from such subsiels. At December 31, 2005 and 2004,
we had a $78 million cross-currency swap used tlgé@ur net investment in a foreign subsidiary fanavhich we recognized a liability
equal to its fair value of $10 million and $16 nafi, respectively. At December 31, 2004, we alsw foaward foreign currency exchange
contracts with an aggregate fair value of $0.1liotill The potential loss in fair value for such mstents from a hypothetical 10% adverse
change in quoted foreign currency exchange rategdame approximately $9 million at both December 3105 and 2004, respectively. We
estimated the fair values of derivatives basedeaiedt quotations.

Exposure to market risk for fluctuations ireff prices relates to a small portion of our sendontracts for which the cost of fuel is integral
to service delivery and the service contract dagsiave a mechanism to adjust for increases inpftieés. At December 31, 2005, we had
various fuel purchase arrangements in place torergrlivery of fuel at market rates in the eventuel shortages. We are exposed to
fluctuations in fuel prices in these arrangemeintsesnone of the arrangements fix the price of fadde purchased. Increases and decrea
the price of fuel are generally passed on to ostauers for which we realize minimal changes irfifability during periods of steady mark
fuel prices. However, profitability may be positiy®r negatively impacted by sudden increases oredeses in market fuel prices during a
short period of time as customer pricing for fumivices is established based on market fuel cdstshelieve the exposure to fuel price
fluctuations would not materially impact Ryder'sudts of operations, cash flows or financial positi

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The operations of Ryder involve storing aispdnsing petroleum products, primarily diesel fuegulated under environmental protec
laws. These laws require us to eliminate or migghe effect of such substances on the environrirergsponse to these requirements, we
continually upgrade our operating facilities angbiement various programs to detect and minimizearomation.

Capital expenditures related to these prograntaled approximately $1 million in 2005, $2 ioifi in 2004 and $1 million in 2003. We
incurred environmental expenses of $9 million, $iilion and $12 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003, gestively, which included remediation
costs as well as normal recurring expenses sulitessing, testing and waste disposal fees. Basatirent circumstances and the present
standards imposed by government regulations, emviemtal expenses and related capitalized costddshotiincrease materially from 2005
levels in the near term.

The ultimate cost of our environmental ligles cannot presently be projected with certadg to the presence of several unknown
factors, primarily the level of contamination, thifectiveness of selected remediation methodsstége of management'’s investigation at
individual sites and the recoverability of suchtedsom third parties. Based upon information pntlgeavailable, we believe that the ultimate
disposition of these matters, although potentialbterial to the results of operations in any siryglar, will not have a material adverse effect
on Ryder’s financial condition or liquidity. See t¢®4, “Environmental Matters,” in the Notes to Golidated Financial Statements for
further discussion.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements infoomity with U.S. GAAP requires us to make estiesaaind assumptions. Our significant
accounting policies are described in the NotesdnsGlidated Financial Statements. Certain of tipedieies require the application of
subjective or complex judgments, often as a rasithie need to make estimates about the effectadtfers that are inherently uncertain. These
estimates and assumptions are based on histoxigatience, changes in the business environmenotued factors that we believe to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Different agtisrthat could have
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been applied in the current period or changesdratitounting estimates that are reasonably likafyresult in a material impact on Ryder’s
financial condition and operating results in therent and future periods. We periodically review trevelopment, selection and disclosure of
these critical accounting estimates with Ryder'slidCommittee.

The following discussion, which should bed&aconjunction with the descriptions in the Note<€onsolidated Financial Statements, is
furnished for additional insight into certain acnting estimates that we consider to be critical.

Depreciation and Residual Value Guaranté&® periodically review and adjust the residual ealand useful lives of revenue earning
equipment of our FMS business segment as desdarikiddte 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Padis — Revenue Earning
Equipment, Operating Property and Equipment and@&uqtion” and “Summary of Significant Accountinglities — Residual Value
Guarantees and Deferred Gains,” in the Notes ts@@ated Financial Statements. Reductions in vegidalues (i.e., the price at which we
ultimately expect to dispose of revenue earningpeqant) or useful lives will result in an incredrelepreciation expense over the life of the
equipment. We review residual values and usefekliof revenue earning equipment on an annual basi®re often if deemed necessary for
specific groups of our revenue earning equipmeevidvs are performed based on vehicle class, génsubcategories of trucks, tractors
and trailers by weight and usage. We consider facioch as current and expected future market peoels on used vehicles, expected life of
vehicles included in the fleet and extent of alatirre uses for leased vehicles (e.g., rental fesed, SCS and DCC applications). As a result,
future depreciation expense rates are subjectadngehbased upon changes in these factors. At thefétd05, we completed our annual
review of the residual values and useful livesavenue earning equipment. Based on the resultgrairmalysis, we will adjust the residual
values and useful lives of certain classes of regerarning equipment on January 1, 2006, whichoailise depreciation expense in 2006 to
decrease by approximately $13 million compared ®@05. Based on the mix of revenue earning equipeieDecember 31, 2005, a 10%
decrease in expected vehicle residual values winatdase depreciation expense in 2006 by approgign&85 million.

Ryder also leases vehicles under operatagelagreements. Certain of these agreements ctinta@d guarantees for a portion of the
residual values of the equipment. Results of thieves described above for owned equipment areagptied to equipment under operating
lease. The amount of residual value guaranteesteghto be paid is recognized as rent expensetbgerxpected remaining term of the le:
At December 31, 2005, total liabilities for resitlualue guarantees of $5 million were included Actrued expenses and other current
liabilities” (for those payable in less than onageand in “Other non-current liabilities.” Whileenbelieve that the amounts are adequate,
changes to management’s estimates of residual galantees may occur due to changes in the nfarkesed vehicles, the condition of the
vehicles at the end of the lease and inherentdiits in the estimation process. Based on théimgimix of vehicles under operating lease
agreements at December 31, 2005, a 10% decreaspénted vehicle residual values would increaseexgmense in 2006 by approximately
$2 million.

Pension Planskyder sponsors several defined benefit plans cogermiost employees. These plans generally provideipants with
benefits based on years of service and careergeemnpensation levels. We apply actuarial metbhodetermine the annual net periodic
pension expense and pension plan liabilities oararual basis. Each December, we review actual exyer compared with the more
significant assumptions used and make adjustmemsrtassumptions, if warranted. In determiningamual estimate of periodic pension
cost, we are required to make an evaluation atafifactors such as discount rate, expected leng-tate of return, expected increase in
compensation levels, retirement rate and mortdlitgcount rates are based upon a duration anaysispected benefit payments and the
equivalent average yield for high quality corporfited income investments as of our December 3Lianmeasurement date. In order to
provide a more accurate estimate of the discouatredevant to our plan, we use models that matojegted benefits payments of our prirr
U.S. plan to coupons and maturities
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from a hypothetical portfolio of high quality comate bonds. Long-term rate of return assumptioadased on actuarial review of our asset
allocation strategy and long-term expected assetm® Investment management and other fees paid pk&n assets are factored into the
determination of asset return assumptions. The ogitipn of our pension assets was 76% equity séesiand 24% debt securities and other
investments. The rate of increase in compensagieels is reviewed with the actuaries based upambekperience. Retirement rates are
based primarily on actual plan experience, whgaaard actuarial tables are used to estimate ntgrtal

Accounting guidance applicable to pensiompldoes not require immediate recognition of tiiect$ of a deviation between these
assumptions and actual experience or the revidian estimate. This approach allows the favorabteunfavorable effects that fall within an
acceptable range to be netted. Although this reeticturs outside the basic financial statemenssjalure of the net amount is presented as
an unrecognized net actuarial gain or loss in 8te'Employee Benefit Plans,” in the Notes to Cdiateded Financial Statements. We have
an unrecognized loss of $428 million at the en@@F5 compared with a loss of $371 million at thd eh2004. The increase in the net
actuarial loss in 2005 results from actuarial lessgsociated with a reduction in discount ratesassets earning a rate of return below the
assumed rates offset in part by the amortizatiadh®bpening balance. To the extent the amounit aheecognized gains and losses exceed
10% of the larger of the benefit obligation or pkasets, such amount is amortized over the aveeaggining service life of active
participants. The amount of the unrecognized loggest to amortization in 2006 will be $281 milliohhe effect on years beyond 2006 will
depend substantially upon the actual experiencaioplans.

Disclosure of the significant assumptionsduisearriving at the 2005 net pension expensedsemted in Note 23, “Employee Benefit
Plans,” in the Notes to Consolidated FinancialStants. A sensitivity analysis of projected 2006p@nsion expense to changes in key
underlying assumptions for our primary plan, th& Lpension plan, is presented below.

Effect on
Impact on 2006 Net December 31, 2005
Assumed Rate Change Pension Expense Projected Benefit Obligation

Discount rate increase 5.90% + 0.25% - $5 million - $39 million
Discount rate decreast 5.90% -0.25% + $5 million + $41 million
Expected long-term rate of return

on assets 8.50% +/- 0.25% -/+ $2 million
Rate of increase in compensation

levels 4.00% +/- 0.50% +/- $2 million

Self-Insurance Accrual¥Ve use a variety of statistical and actuarial méshihat are widely used and accepted in the insaramlustry to
estimate amounts for claims that have been repbuedot paid and claims incurred but not reportedpplying these methods and assessing
their results, we consider such factors as frequand severity of claims, claim development andnpat patterns and changes in the nature
of our business, among other factors. Such fact@@analyzed for each of our business segmentan@nnual basis, third-party actuaries
perform a separate analysis of our se#farance accruals for reasonableness. Our esmag be impacted by such factors as increasés
market price for medical services, unpredictabitifythe size of jury awards and limitations inhérerthe estimation process. While we
believe that self-insurance accruals are adeqthere can be no assurance that changes to ouaéssimay not occur. Based on self-
insurance accruals at December 31, 2005, a 5% selebange in actuarial claim loss estimates wawrbase operating expense in 2006 by
approximately $12 million.

Goodwill ImpairmentWe assess goodwill for impairment, as describedate 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” in the Nate<onsolidated Financial Statements, on an artragé or more often if deemed
necessary. To determine whether
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goodwill impairment indicators exist, we are reqdito assess the fair value of the reporting urdt@mpare it to the carrying value. A
reporting unit is a component of an operating segrfer which discrete financial information is aledile and management regularly reviews
its operating performance. Our valuation of failueafor each reporting unit is determined based discounted future cash flow model.
Estimates of future cash flows are dependent orkimowledge and experience about past and curremtgeand assumptions about conditi
we expect to exist. These assumptions are basachamber of factors including future operating parfance, economic conditions and
actions we expect to take. In addition to theseofagour SCS reporting units are dependent orrakkey customers or industry sectors. The
loss of a key customer may have a significant ihgmone of our SCS reporting units, causing uastess whether or not the event result

a goodwill impairment loss. For example, the patdfitity and valuation of fair value for our SASK. reporting unit is dependent in large
to a significant customer contract. While we bedi@ur estimates of future cash flows are reasonti#es can be no assurance that a
deterioration in economic conditions, customertiehships or adverse changes to expectations ofdyierformance will not occur, resulting
in a goodwill impairment loss. Our annual impairmist, performed as of April 1, 2005, did not feguany impairment of goodwill. At
December 31, 2005, goodwill totaled $156 million.

Revenue Recognitiom the normal course of business, we may act as@ian agent in executing transactions with ouoowsrs. The
accounting issue encountered in these arrangensentether we should report revenue based on tiesgmount billed to the customer or
on the net amount received from the customer pigments to third parties. To the extent revenuesexorded on a gross basis, any
payments to third parties are recorded as expeustt the net amount is reflected in net earniAgsordingly, the impact on net earning:
the same whether we record revenue on a gross basis.

Determining whether revenue should be redasgegross or net is based on an assessment dfenhet are acting as the principal or the
agent in the transaction and involves judgmentdasethe terms of the arrangement. To the exterareecting as the principal in the
transaction, revenue is reported on a gross bEsithe extent we are acting as an agent in thedidion, revenue is reported on a net basis.

In the majority of our arrangements, we ating as a principal and therefore report revenua gross basis. However, in certain
instances (typically when we manage transportdtiolour customers), we may be acting as an agehteport revenue on a net basis. In
transportation management contracts where we aut agent, we have complete discretion in selettiagneans, route and procedures to be
followed in the handling, transportation and detjvef freight. In addition, we may provide serviagetated to freight bill audits and payme
During 2005, we entered into a significant SCS myadasubcontracted transportation contract thateterchined, after a formal review of the
terms and conditions of the services, that we \&etimg as principal in the arrangement. As a resudtrecognized an additional $135 million
in revenue and subcontracted transportation co2605 by reporting revenue on a gross basis.

Income TaxeRRyder’s overall tax position is complex and regsiicareful analysis by management to estimate theoted realization of
income tax assets and liabilities.

Tax regulations require items to be includgethe tax return at different times than the iteans reflected in the financial statements. As a
result, the effective tax rate reflected in thefinial statements is different than that reponteithé tax return. Some of these differences are
permanent, such as expenses that are not dedumtiltkes tax return, and some are timing differensesh as depreciation expense. Timing
differences create deferred tax assets and liesiliDeferred tax assets generally represent iteaican be used as a tax deduction or cre
the tax return in future years for which we haveady recorded the tax benefit in the financidkestents. Deferred tax assets amounted to
$235 million and $257 million at December 31, 2@l 2004, respectively. We record a valuation adlove for deferred tax assets to reduce
such assets to amounts expected to be realizdzhtAtDecember 31, 2005 and 2004,
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the deferred tax valuation allowance principallyibtited to foreign tax loss carryforwards in thHe@SSbusiness segment was $12 million. In
determining the required level of valuation allowanwe consider whether it is more likely than thait all or some portion of deferred tax
assets will not be realized. This assessment istbais management’s expectations as to whetheciguifitaxable income of an appropriate
character will be realized within tax carryback aadryforward periods. Our assessment involvesnaséis and assumptions about matters
are inherently uncertain, and unanticipated eventircumstances could cause actual results terdifbm these estimates. Should we change
our estimate of the amount of deferred tax askatsvie would be able to realize, an adjustmertieosaluation allowance would result in an
increase or decrease to the provision for incomestién the period such a change in estimate wagmad

We are subject to tax audits in numerousglictions in the U.S. and around the world. Taxitaual their very nature are often complex
and can require several years to complete. Indhenal course of business, we are subject to chggdlefrom the Internal Revenue Service
(IRS) and other tax authorities regarding amouhtaxes due. These challenges may alter the timiragnount of taxable income or
deductions, or the allocation of income among tabsgictions. As part of our calculation of the piglon for income taxes on earnings, we
record the amount we expect to incur as a reswtidits. Such accruals require management to nstkeates and judgments with respect to
the ultimate outcome of a tax audit. Actual resotisld vary materially from these estimates.

As discussed in Note 13, “Income Taxes,’hi@ Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsebriary 2005 we resolved all issues with
the IRS related to the 1998 and 2000 tax periaduding interest and penalties. In connection wlhth resolution of this audit, on February
2005 we paid $176 million (after utilization of alvailable federal net operating losses and altemeninimum tax credit carryforwards),
including interest through the date of payment. &hmunt we paid was consistent with our accruBlemiember 31, 2004 and was included in
“Accrued expenses and other current liabilities.2D05, the IRS began auditing our federal incama¢turns for 2001 to 2003. We believe
that Ryder has not entered into any other trarmagsince 2000 that raise the same type of issieasified by the IRS in its most recent au

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In December 2004, the Financial Accountingn8irds Board issued Statement of Financial Acaagi@tandards (SFAS) No. 123
(revised 2004) (SFAS No. 123R), “Share-Based Payhehich replaces SFAS No. 123, “Accounting foraséBased Compensation,” and
supersedes APB Opinion No. 25 (APB No. 25), “Acamfor Stock Issued to Employees” and amends SRASO5, “Statement of Cash
Flows.” SFAS No. 123R requires all share-based masto employees, including grants of employeekstptions, to be recognized in the
financial statements based on their fair valueg\gril 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commisé®#C) announced that the accounting
provisions of SFAS No. 123R are to be applied anftrst quarter of the fiscal year beginning aftene 15, 2005. As a result, we will adopt
SFAS No. 123R on January 1, 2006 and will recogsieek-based compensation expense using the mbgifespective method. The pro
forma disclosures previously permitted under SFAS N3 are no longer an alternative to financialeshent recognition. The impact of the
adoption of SFAS No. 123R depends on levels ofesbased payments granted in the future. Howevedrweadopted SFAS No. 123R in
prior periods, the impact of SFAS No. 123R woulddapproximated the impact of SFAS No. 123 as dmsttin the disclosure of pro forma
net earnings and earnings per share. See Noteiyrifary of Significant Accounting Policies — SharasBd Compensation” in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for the pro fonetaearnings and net earnings per share amouiite&ya$ad used a fair-value based
method.
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NON-GAAP FINANCIAL MEASURES

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includesoimhation extracted from consolidated financial mfiation but not required by generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) to be preskirt the financial statements. Certain of thigiinfation is considered “non-GAAP
financial measures” as defined by SEC rules. Sipatlif, we refer to FMS operating revenue, FMS N&Ta % of operating revenue, SCS
operating revenue, SCS NBT as a % of operatingwexeDCC operating revenue, DCC NBT as a % of dimgraevenue, free cash flow,
total obligations, total obligations to equity, as@imparable earnings and comparable earnings pez filom continuing operations excluding
tax benefits and headquarters complex sale. Weuethat the comparable earnings and comparabiegarper share from continuing
operations measures provide useful informatiomestors because they exclude significant itemtsatteaunrelated to our ongoing business
operations. As required by SEC rules, we have geaa reconciliation of each non-GAAP financial swea to the most comparable GAAP
measure and an explanation why management beliegepresentation of the non-GAAP financial meaguovides useful information to
investors. Non-GAAP financial measures should beswered in addition to, but not as a substituteofasuperior to, other measures of
financial performance prepared in accordance wi\B.

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Forward-looking statements (within the megrifithe Federal Private Securities Litigation RefdAct of 1995) are statements that relate
to expectations, beliefs, projections, future pland strategies, anticipated events or trends coimgematters that are not historical facts.

These statements are often preceded by or inchededrds “believe,” “expect,” “intend,” “estimate;anticipate,” “will,” “may,” “could,”

“should” or similar expressions. This Annual Repaohtains forward-looking statements including, ibott limited to, statements regarding:
e our expectations as to anticipated revenue andnggrgrowth across all business segme

e our ability to improve our competitive advargdmy leveraging our vehicle buying power, reduaiapicle downtime, providing
innovative broa-based supply chain solutions and increasing ouomes¢ competitive positions

» anticipated gains on the sale of used vehit
» the impact of the restructuring activities and gifovmitiatives on our FMS business segm

< our ability to successfully achieve the openadil goals that are the basis of our businessgies, including offering competitive
pricing, diversifying our customer base, optimizagset utilization, leveraging the expertise of\anious business segments, sen
our customer’ global needs and expanding our support serv

» impact of losses from conditional obligations argsfrom guarantee:
e number of NLE vehicles in inventory over the neant;

« our belief as to the adequacy of our insuramerages, funding sources and the effectivenesarahterest and foreign currency
exchange rate risk management progre

e our relationship with our employee

« our belief that we can continue to realize Bigant savings from our cost management initistiaad process improvement actions,
and that such initiatives and actions will mitigatecing pressures from our SCS custom

* estimates of free cash flow, leverage ratios ampitaleexpenditures for 2001
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» the adequacy of our accounting estimates asefves for pension expense, depreciation and @sidiue guarantees, self-insurance
reserves, goodwill impairment, accounting changekiacome taxes, and the future impact of FIN

« our belief that we have not entered into amebtransactions since 2000 that raise the saneedfyissues identified by the IRS in
their audit of the 1998 to 2000 tax perit

» our ability to fund all of our operations in 2006dugh internally generated funds and outside fum@burces; an
» the anticipated impact of fuel prices and costrofimnmental liabilities

These statements, as well as other forwarklithg statements contained in this Annual Repoetbmsed on our current plans and
expectations and are subject to risks, uncertaimtiel assumptions. We caution readers that cémaiortant factors could cause actual res
and events to differ significantly from those exgzed in any forward-looking statements. For a tetalescription of certain of these risk
factors, please see “ltem 1A. Risk Factors” of thismual Report.

The risks included in this Annual Report aot exhaustive. New risk factors emerge from timérhe and it is not possible for
management to predict all such risk factors orsseas the impact of such risk factors on our basin&s a result, no assurance can be given
as to our future results or achievements. You shoat place undue reliance on the forward-lookitagesnents contained herein, which speak
only as of the date of this Annual Report. We dbintend, or assume any obligation, to update wisesany forward-looking statements
contained in this Annual Report, whether as a tefuiew information, future events or otherwise.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK
The information required by ITEM 7A is incled in ITEM 7 (pages 43 through 44) of PART Il ofstheport.
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MANAGEMENT’'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANC IAL REPORTING

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF RYDER SYSTEM, INC.:

Management of Ryder System, Inc., togethén ks consolidated subsidiaries (Ryder), is resfima for establishing and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial reportasgdefined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) uriderSecurities Exchange Act of 1934.
Ryder’s internal control over financial reportirggdesigned to provide reasonable assurance regahdineliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of the consolidated financial stetets for external purposes in accordance withwatany principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Ryder’s internal control over financial refiog includes those policies and procedures thapéttain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assd®&ydér; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to perepagation of financial statements in accordanch getnerally accepted accounting
principles, and that our receipts and expenditaresdeing made only in accordance with authorinataf Ryder's management and directors;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regardingmptien or timely detection of unauthorized acqiosit use or disposition of Ryder’s assets
that could have a material effect on the consddiddihancial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, interoahtrol over financial reporting may not preventietect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenqaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness ofrRydiernal control over financial reporting asidécember 31, 2005. In making this
assessment, management used the criteria sebfotlie Committee of Sponsoring Organizations offtteadway Commission in “Internal
Control — Integrated Framework.” Based on our assest and those criteria, management determinédRifter maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of Batber 31, 2005.

Ryder’s independent registered public acdagrfirm has issued their report on managemenssssament of Ryder’s internal control over
financial reporting, which appears on page 53.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS OF
RYDER SYSTEM, INC.:

We have audited management’s assessmentdattin the accompanying Management’s Report arriat Control over Financial
Reporting, that Ryder System, Inc. maintained ¢iffednternal control over financial reporting asliecember 31, 2005, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framdwissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgaitnatof the Treadway Commission
(COSO0). Ryder System, Inc.’s management is resplenfir maintaining effective internal control ovi@rancial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting. Our responsibility isé¢gpress an opinion on management’s
assessment and an opinion on the effectivene$e @admpany'’s internal control over financial repagytbased on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withsthaedards of the Public Company Accounting Ovétsipard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing ahgaéug the design and operating effectivenessitefrnal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary airthenstances. We believe that our audit providesagonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financiaporting is a process designed to provide reasersgsurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over firgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainky reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financétkstents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (8jige reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companygseds that could have a material effect on then@izé statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, interoahtrol over financial reporting may not preventietect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periagssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessmenRpdér System, Inc. maintained effective internaitoal over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2005, is fairly stated, in all mategapects, based on criteria established in Iatefontrol —Integrated Framework issued
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of theativay Commission (COSO). Also, in our opinion, &y8ystem, Inc., maintained, in
material respects, effective internal control dirgaincial reporting as of December 31, 2005, basedriteria established in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Coremibf Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway @@sion (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance wittsthedards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdiglard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Ryder System, iacsabsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 20@4the related consolidated statements
of earnings, shareholders’ equity, and cash flaws#&ch of the years in the three-year period em@mber 31, 2005, and our report dated
February 15, 2006 expressed an unqualified opiaoiothose consolidated financial statements.

/sl KPMG LLP

February 15, 2006
Miami, Florida
Certified Public Accountants
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS OF
RYDER SYSTEM, INC.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidad¢ahce sheets of Ryder System, Inc. and subigisias of December 31, 2005 and 2004,
and the related consolidated statements of earnshgseholders’ equity, and cash flows for eacthefyears in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2005. In connection with our auditthefconsolidated financial statements, we alse lsamited the consolidated financial
statement schedule listed in the accompanying intleese consolidated financial statements anddhedtidated financial statement schet
are the responsibility of the Compaayhanagement. Our responsibility is to expresspaman on these consolidated financial statemeidk
consolidated financial statement schedule basexlpaudits.

We conducted our audits in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogbatdoard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindmecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on flasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptegused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thatadits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the consolidated financiatsements referred to above present fairly, in altarial respects, the financial position of Ryder
System, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 315 28d 2004, and the results of their operatiouistiagir cash flows for each of the year:
the three-year period ended December 31, 200@nfoanity with U.S. generally accepted accountiniggiples. Also in our opinion, the
related consolidated financial statement schedwen considered in relation to the basic consaid&inancial statements taken as a whole,
presents fairly, in all material respects, the infation set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance wittstandards of the Public Company Accounting Ovetdiglard (United States), the
effectiveness of Ryder System, Irscinternal control over financial reporting as afd@mber 31, 2005, based on criteria establishbdemal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Coremibf Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway @@sion (COSO), and our report
dated February 15, 2006 expressed an unqualifisdompon management’'s assessment of, and the ieffemperation of, internal control over
financial reporting.

As discussed in the notes to consolidateghfital statements, the Company changed its methaccounting for conditional asset
retirement obligations in 2005, and its methodawfoainting for variable interest entities and itd¢mod of accounting for asset retirement
obligations in 2003.

/sl KPMG LLP

February 15, 2006
Miami, Florida
Certified Public Accountants
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

Revenue

Operating expense (exclusive of items shown segls):
Salaries and employ-related cost

Subcontracted transportati

Depreciation expens

Gains on vehicle sales, r

Equipment rente

Interest expens

Miscellaneous income, n

Restructuring and other charges (recoveries)

Earnings from continuing operations before income$
Provision for income taxe

Earnings from continuing operatio

Earnings from discontinued operations, net of

Cumulative effect of changes in accounting priresplnet of ta:

Net earning:

Earnings per common shé— Basic:
Continuing operation
Discontinued operatior
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting prires;

Net earning:
Earnings per common she— Diluted:
Continuing operation
Discontinued operatior
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting prires;
Net earning:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financééstents.

Years ended December

2005 2004 2003
(In thousands, except per share amot

$5,740,84 5,150,271 4,802,29
2,572,24. 2,305,32 2,039,15I
1,262,16! 1,233,03 1,242,93I
638,31¢ 424,99: 414,28
740,41! 706,02¢ 624,58(
(47,099 (34,509 (15,780
102,81¢ 108,46¢ 200,86¢
120,47- 100,11« 96,16¢
(8,949 (6,625) (12,158
3,37¢ (17,676) (230
5,383,75! 4,819,15 4,589,811
357,08t 331,12: 212,47"
129,46( 115,51 76,91¢
227,62¢ 215,60¢ 135,55¢
1,741 — —
(2,440 — (4,129)
$ 226,92 215,60¢ 131,43¢
$ 357 3.3 2.1¢
0.0¢ — —
(0.09 — (0.06)
$ 3.5€ 3.3¢ 2.0¢
$ 35 3.2¢ 2.1z
0.0¢ — —
(0.09) — (0.06)
$ 3.52 3.2¢ 2.0€
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Assets:

Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel
Receivables, n¢
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current a:

Total current asse

Revenue earning equipment, net of accumulated diegian of $2,862,998 and
$2,845,842, respective

Operating property and equipment, net of accumdldépreciation of $748,604 an
$739,989, respective

Goodwill

Intangible assetl

Direct financing leases and other as:

Total asset

Liabilities and shareholde’ equity:
Current liabilities:
Shor-term debt and current portion of Ic-term debt
Accounts payabl
Accrued expenses and other current liabili
Total current liabilities
Long-term debi
Other noi-current liabilities
Deferred income taxe

Total liabilities

Shareholder equity:

Preferred stock of no par value per share — authdri3,800,917; none outstanding,
December 31, 2005 or 20

Common stock of $0.50 par value per share — auwbdyi400,000,000; outstandin:
2005— 61,869,473; 200— 64,310,85~

Additional paic-in capital

Retained earning

Deferred compensatic

Accumulated other comprehensive |i

Total shareholde’ equity

Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédstents.
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December 3.
2005 2004
(Dollars in thousand:
except per share amoul

$ 128,72 100,97:
820,82! 732,83!
59,57¢ 59,28
154,62 204,11
1,163,75! 1,097,20
3,794,411 3,506,63:
486,80: 480,36¢
155,78! 157,90
22,46 24,52(
410,05( 416,53:
$6,033,26- 5,683,16.
$ 269,43t 389,55(
414,33 358,40:
569,72: 706,90
1,253,49' 1,454,85!
1,915,92 1,393,66!
487,26¢ 408,55«
849,11 915,90(
4,505,80:! 4,172,97
30,93¢ 32,15¢
666,67- 668,15:
1,038,36- 963,48
(5,59¢) (4,18()
(202,919 (149,42))
1,527,45 1,510,18:
$6,033,26- 5,683,16.
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December

2005 2004 2003

(In thousands
Cash flows from operating activitie

Net earningt $ 226,92¢ 215,60¢ 131,43t
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting priresj 2,44( — 4,12:
Depreciation expens 740,41! 706,02¢ 624,58
Gains on vehicle sales, r (47,099 (34,509 (25,78()
Amortization expense and other I-cash charges (credits), t 14,35¢ (17,267 3,262
Deferred income tax (benefit) exper (24,910 9,81t 51,467
Tax benefit from employee stock optic 5,67( 21,07: 4,85
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, natqtiisitions

Receivable! (81,97 (71,037 10,92:
Inventories (5649 (4,137) 6,04¢
Prepaid expenses and other as 10,72¢ (14,86%) 7,82¢
Accounts payabl 51,08 5,72¢ 18,12¢
Accrued expenses and other -current liabilities (118,01 50,40( (43,249
Net cash provided by operating activit 779,06: 866,84¢ 803,61:

Cash flows from financing activitie
Net change in commercial paper borrowil 188,27: 79,03 (2,500
Debt proceed 762,12: 282,15: 105,11!
Debt repaid, including capital lease obligatis (543,93) (456,93) (340,43)
Dividends on common stoc (40,929 (38,73) (37,989
Common stock issue 28,29¢ 87,74 46,57¢
Common stock repurchas (152,326 (149,029 (3,570
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 241,50! (195,760 (232,799

Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property and revenue earning equig (1,399,37) (1,092,15)) (734,509
Sales of operating property and equipn 6,96: 42,83¢ 13,39:
Sales of revenue earning equipm 326,75: 288,67 196,19t
Sale and leaseback of revenue earning equip — 118,53: 13,18:
Acquisitions (15,110 (148,79) (96,51%)
Collections on direct finance leas 70,40¢ 63,79¢ 61,36¢
Other, primarily changes in restricted ci 21,51 6,99¢ 3,728
Net cash used in investing activiti (988,859 (720,119 (543,169
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ (3,956 9,36¢ 8,73¢
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equiv: 27,75¢ (39,65¢) 36,39(
Cash and cash equivalents at Janue 100,97: 140,62 104,23
Cash and cash equivalents at Decembe $ 128,72 100,97: 140,62

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informat
Cash paid during the period fc
Interest $ 116,78t 101,15: 93,80"
Income taxes, net of refun 289,61t 21,40t 26,95

Non-cash investing activitie:
Changes in accounts payable related to purchasesearfue earning

equipmen’ 11,59: 72,46 (9,379
Revenue earning equipment acquired under capéaét 432 54,09« 66,68

See accompanying notes to consolidated financééstents.
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Preferre Accumulatec
Stock Common Stocl Additional Other
Paid-In Retained Deferred Comprehensive
Amount Shares Par Capital Earnings Compensatiol Loss Total
(Dollars in thousands, except per share amol
Balance at January 1, 20 $ — 62,440,993 $31,22( 544,28 806,76 (3,429 (270,62¢) 1,108,21!
Components of comprehensive incor
Net earnings — — — — 131,43¢ — — 131,43¢
Foreign currency translation adjustme — — — — — — 52,30¢ 52,30¢
Additional minimum pension liability adjustment,tref
tax of $22,58¢ — — — — — — 41,37¢ 41,37¢
Unrealized gain related to derivatives accounted$o
hedges — — — — — — 28¢€ 28€
Total comprehensive incon 225,40t
Common stock dividends declar— $0.60 per shar — — — — (37,989 — — (37,989
Common stock issued under employee stock option ar
stock purchase plai®) — 2,233,901 1,117 47,24 — (1,789 — 46,57¢
Benefit plan stock purchas@ — (2,959 1) (74) — — — (75)
Common stock repurchas — (117,500 (59) (1,069 (2,372) — — (3,495
Tax benefit from employee stock optic — — — 4,852 — — — 4,852
Amortization and forfeiture of nonvested stc = (66,89¢) (33) (1,399 — 2,32( — 89C
Balance at December 31, 20 — 64,487,48  32,24¢ 593,84: 897,84 (2,887) (176,65¢) 1,344,38!
Components of comprehensive incor
Net earningt — — — — 215,60¢ — — 215,60¢
Foreign currency translation adjustme — — — — — — 27,98t 27,98
Additional minimum pension liability adjustment,traf
tax of $(2,186 — — — — — — (1,072 (1,072
Unrealized gain related to derivatives accounted$o
hedges — — — — — — 324 324
Total comprehensive incon 242,84
Common stock dividends declar— $0.60 per shar — — — — (38,73) — — (38,73))
Common stock issued under employee stock option and
stock purchase plai®) —  3,5638,23! 1,76¢  88,69: — (3,619 — 86,84¢
Benefit plan stock sale) — 20,94¢ 1C 884 — — — 894
Common stock repurchas —  (3,714,55) (1,857 (35,93) (111,23)) — — (149,02¢)
Tax benefit from employee stock optic — — — 21,071 — — — 21,07:
Amortization and forfeiture of nonvested stc = (21,25%) (11) (407) — 2,32( — 1,907
Balance at December 31, 20 — 64,310,85 32,15t 668,15 963,48: (4,180) (149,42) 1,510,18:i
Components of comprehensive incor
Net earnings — — — — 226,92¢ — — 226,92¢
Foreign currency translation adjustme — — — — — — (21,02¢) (21,029
Additional minimum pension liability adjustment,traf
tax of $(16,076 — — — — — — (32,169 (32,169
Unrealized loss related to derivatives accounte@$o
hedges — — — — — — (305) (30%)
Total comprehensive incon 173,43
Common stock dividends declar— $0.64 per shar — — — — (40,929 — — (40,929
Common stock issued under employee stock option ar
stock purchase plai® —  1,258,55! 62¢  33,31f — (5,64¢€) — 28,29¢
Benefit plan stock purchas(@ — (12,649 (6) (36¢) — — — (375)
Common stock repurchas —  (3,659,05) (1,829 (39,009 (112,119 — — (151,95)
Tax benefit from employee stock optic — — — 5,67( — — — 5,67(
Amortization and forfeiture of nonvested stc — (28,23%) (14) (1,090 — 4,22¢ — 3,124
Balance at December 31, 20 $ — 61,869,47 $30,93: 666,67: 1,038,36- (5,599 (202,919 1,527,451

(1) Net of common shares delivered as payment fort@ecise price or to satisfy the option holc’ withholding tax liability upon exercise of optiol
(2) Represents op-market transactions of common shares by the trust®yde’s deferred compensation plai

See accompanying notes to consolidated financééstents.
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements inclindeaccounts of Ryder System, Inc. and all estitievhich Ryder System, Inc. has a
controlling voting interest (“subsidiaries”) andriable interest entities (“VIE”") required to be mmtidated in accordance with U.S. GAAP
(collectively referred to as “Ryder”). All signifamt intercompany accounts and transactions betemesolidated companies have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

In January 2003, the Financial Accountingh8tads Board (FASB) issued FASB Interpretation (ftN) 46, “Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities,” (as revised by FIN 46-R issiiEtember 2003) that established accounting guedforddentifying VIEs, including
special-purpose entities, and when to include #sets, liabilities, noncontrolling interests ansules of activities of VIES in an enterprise’s
consolidated financial statements. Prior to FINwWRBich clarified the application of Accounting Raseh Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidated
Financial Statements,” a partially owned entity waly/ consolidated if we controlled it through owst@p of a majority voting interest in the
entity. FIN 46 requires consolidation of VIEs iktprimary beneficiary has a variable interest @nbination of variable interests) that will
absorb a majority of the entity’s expected los$éisay occur, receive a majority of the entity’pexted residual returns if they occur, or both.
The enterprise consolidating a VIE is the primagpéficiary of that entity. FIN 46 applied immedigteo VIEs created after January 31,
2003. For VIEs in existence before February 1, 2608 46 as amended applied to the first fiscalqueending after December 15, 2003,
although the FASB encouraged earlier application.

Effective July 1, 2003, we adopted FIN 46 aasla result of adopting FIN 46, we consolidatedd VIEs that were established in
connection with sale-leaseback transactions ofmes@arning equipment in which we sold revenueirguequipment to a special-purpose
entity and then leased the revenue earning equipbaahk as lessee under operating lease arrangemarpart of these transactions, we
provided credit enhancements and residual valueagtees that obligated us to absorb the majorith@kxpected losses from such entitie
any are realized. Therefore, FIN 46 required thasé entities be consolidated. The credit enhanutsiria the form of cash reserve deposits,
as well as the revenue earning equipment undeg lesxse as collateral for the VIES' long-term buarirgys. The creditors of the VIEs do not
have recourse to the general assets of Ryder.

The assets and liabilities of consolidate&8/are measured in the amounts at which they wraid been recorded in the consolidated
financial statements if FIN 46 had been effectivtha inception of the transactions. Accordinglffeetive July 1, 2003, we recorded
additional revenue earning equipment of $421 nmilkmd additional debt of $414 million, in addititmrecognizing a non-cash pre-tax
cumulative effect charge of $5 million ($3 milliam an aftetax basis, or $0.05 per diluted common share). Goant with the consolidatic
of the VIEs, we began recognizing depreciation agpeattributed to the revenue earning equipmetiteo¥/IEs and interest expense on the
additional debt of the VIEs in lieu of rent expenske cumulative effect charge primarily represdriepreciation and interest expense of the
VIEs that would have been recorded had FIN 46 lireeffect since lease inception, in excess of esipense recorded under operating leases
The charge is expected to reverse in operatingreggthrough 2006. The consolidation of the VIES bt have a significant impact on our
consolidated net earnings. However, both net ceshiged by operating activities and our free cdstvimeasure increased beginning July
2003 due to the add-back of depreciation expensbeWIES’ revenue earning equipment and net casl in financing activities also
increased due to principal payments on VIES' debt.
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated finanstatements requires management to make estimadessaumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statementsaccompanying notes. These estimates are basedrmagement’s best knowledge of
historical trends, actions that we may take infthare, and other information available when timaficial statements are prepared. Changes ir
estimates are recognized in accordance with theusmting rules for the estimate, which is typicatiythe period when new information
becomes available. Areas where the nature of tireas make it reasonably possible that actualltesould materially differ from the
amounts estimated include: depreciation and rebiduae guarantees, employee retirement plan otdigs, self-insurance accruals,
impairment assessments on long-lived assets (imgugbodwill and indefinite-lived intangible asget®venue recognition, income tax
liabilities, and contingent liabilities.

Cash Equivalents

All investments in highly liquid debt instr@mts with maturities of three months or less atidiee of purchase are classified as cash
equivalents.

Restricted Cash

We hold restricted cash in connection with gale-leaseback transactions of revenue earninigment with VIE'S that were consolidate
as part of the adoption of FIN 46. The restrictaslicis in the form of a cash collection accountctviolds cash that will be distributed as
part of the next scheduled debt payment, and aressive deposit, which serves as collateral ®®MHE’s borrowings. The restricted cash is
classified within “Prepaid expenses and other curassets” if it is of a short-term nature or withDirect financing leases and other asséts”
it is of a long-term nature. As of December 31,260d 2004, we classified $8 million and $20 millicespectively, of restricted cash within
“Prepaid expenses and other current assets” and#llédn and $25 million, respectively, within “Déct financing leases and other assets.”

Revenue Recognitior

We recognize revenue when persuasive evideihae arrangement exists, the services have legetered to customers or delivery has
occurred, the pricing is fixed or determinable, antectibility is reasonably assured. We are regglito make judgments about whether
pricing is fixed or determinable and whether or camitectibility is reasonably assured. Revenuewrded on a “gross” or “net” basis
depending on whether we are acting as “principal’agent.” We serve as the principal in those ageaments in which we have substantial
risks and rewards of ownership and, accordinglyoma revenue on a gross basis, without deductiing-pgarty services costs. For those
arrangements in which we do not have substansiké rind rewards of ownership, we are consideregyant in the contract and, accordingly,
record revenue net of third-party services costs.

In addition to the aforementioned generaigyolthe following are the specific revenue recdigni policies for our reportable business
segments by major revenue arrangement:
Fleet Management Solutions (FV

e Operating lease and rental revenue is recogrimea straight-line basis as vehicles are usedthegerms of the related agreements.
Lease and rental agreements do not provide fordsibde rent increases or escalations. However, legie=ments allow for rate
changes based upon changes in the Consumer Pdiee (GP1). Lease and rental agreements also prdeidefixed time charge plt
a fixed pe-mile charge. The fixed time charge, the fixed-mile charge and th
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RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

changes in rates attributed to changes in the &Rtansidered contingent rentals and recognizedased

< Contract maintenance revenue is recognizedsiraaght-line basis as maintenance services adered over the terms of the related
agreements. Contract maintenance agreements altowté changes based upon changes in the CPltéaince agreements also
provide for a fixed per-mile charge. The fixed peite charge and the changes in rates attributetidoges in the CPI are recognized
as earnec

« Direct financing lease revenue is recognizadgithe effective interest method, which provideastant periodic rate of return on
the outstanding investment on the le:

» Fuel services revenue is recognized when fuelligeted to customer:

Supply Chain Solutions (SCS) and Dedicated Contactiage (DCC)

« Revenue from service contracts is recognized ascesrare rendered in accordance with contractgewhich typically include discrete
billing rates for the service

Accounts Receivable Allowanc:

We maintain an allowance for uncollectiblstamer receivables and billing adjustments rel&tezbrtain discounts and billing
corrections. Estimates for credit losses and lgjladjustments are updated regularly based on tuat@xperience of bad debts and billing
adjustments processed, current collection trendsaging analysis. Accounts are charged againsilitbance when determined to be
uncollectible. The allowance is maintained at &leleemed appropriate based on loss experiencethadfactors affecting collectibility.

Inventories

Inventories, which consist primarily of fugtes and vehicle parts, are valued using the t@feost (specific identification or average
cost) or market.

Revenue Earning Equipment, Operating Property and uipment, and Depreciation

Revenue earning equipment, principally vetichnd operating property and equipment are stéteast including vendor rebates.
Revenue earning equipment and operating propedyegnipment under capital lease are stated abtherlof the present value of minimum
lease payments or fair value. The cost of vehigdatement tires and tire repairs are expensattaged. Vehicle repairs and maintenance
that extend the life or increase the value of dolefare capitalized, whereas ordinary maintenamekrepairs are expensed as incurred. D
costs incurred in connection with developing oraiiing internal-use software are capitalized. Costsrred during the preliminary project
stage, as well as maintenance and training cagt®x@ensed as incurred.

Provision for depreciation is computed udimg straight-line method on all depreciable ass&tder periodically reviews and adjusts the
residual values and useful lives of revenue earamgpment based on current and expected opettaginds and projected realizable values.
Gains and losses on operating property and equipsadgs are reflected in “Miscellaneous income,’net

We routinely dispose of revenue earning emeipt as part of our FMS business. Revenue eargjmigment held for sale is stated at the
lower of carrying amount or fair value less costseéll. Adjustments to the carrying value of asaetsreported as depreciation expense and
were $14 million, $8 million and $6 million in 2008004 and 2003, respectively. For revenue eamiugpment held for sale, we stratify our
fleet by vehicle type (tractors, trucks, trailensgight class, age and other characteristics,legamet, and create classes of similar assets for
analysis purposes. Fair value is
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determined based upon recent market prices fos sdleach class of similar assets and vehicle tondiThe net carrying value for revenue
earning equipment held for sale attributed to thtSFbusiness segment was $95 million and $76 milipBecember 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, and is classified within “Revenuengag equipment, net.”

While we believe our estimates of residudliga and fair values of revenue earning equipmentesasonable, changes to our estimates of
values may occur due to changes in the marketded wehicles, the condition of the vehicles, ameiant limitations in the estimation
process.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and intangible assets with inde#nitseful lives are not amortized, but rather, astetd for impairment at least annually (April 1
st). Recoverability of goodwill is evaluated usingng-step process. The first step involves a comspardf the fair value of each of our
reporting units with its carrying amount. If a refag unit’s carrying amount exceeds its fair valtree second step is performed. The second
step involves a comparison of the implied fair eatund carrying value of that reporting unit's goddwo the extent that a reporting unit's
carrying amount exceeds the implied fair valug®fjoodwill, an impairment loss is recognized. lf@ble intangible assets not subject to
amortization are assessed for impairment by comgdhe fair value of the intangible asset to itgydgag amount. An impairment loss is
recognized for the amount by which the carryingiea¢xceeds fair value.

In making our assessments of fair value iiear our knowledge and experience about past anemt events and assumptions about
conditions we expect to exist. These assumptiombased on a number of factors including futureatpey performance, economic
conditions, actions we expect to take, and pres&ne techniques. Rates used to discount cash #ioevdependent upon interest rates and the
cost of capital at a point in time. There are ieméuncertainties related to these factors and geanant’s judgment in applying them to the
analysis of goodwill impairment. It is possible tlaasumptions underlying the impairment analyslsakiange in such a manner that
impairment in value may occur in the future.

Intangible assets with finite lives are arized over their respective estimated useful livetheir estimated residual values. Identifiable
intangible assets that are subject to amortizatierevaluated for impairment using a process sirttl¢hat used to evaluate long-lived assets
described below.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets Other than Goodwill

Long-lived assets held and used, includintgrigible assets with finite lives, are tested &moverability when circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of assets may not be recover&acoverability of long-lived assets is evaludigatomparing the carrying amount of an
asset or asset group to management’s best estiindite undiscounted future operating cash flowsl(eking interest charges) expected to be
generated by the asset or asset group. If thesparigons indicate that the asset or asset grougtisecoverable, an impairment loss is
recognized for the amount by which the carryingieadf the asset or asset group exceeds fair vidhievalue is determined by quoted mai
price, if available, or an estimate of projectetlifa operating cash flows, discounted using attetereflects the related operating segment’s
average cost of funds. Long-lived assets to beogisg of, including indefinite-lived intangible atsere reported at the lower of carrying
amount or fair value less costs to sell.

Self-Insurance Accruals

Ryder retains a portion of the accident tisker vehicle liability, workers’ compensation aster insurance programs. Under our
insurance programs, we have traditionally retaithedrisk of loss in various amounts up to $1 millan a per occurrence basis. Effective
October 1, 2005, we adjusted our vehicle liabiligficies to retain the risk of loss in various amisuip to $3 million on a per occurrence
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basis. We also maintain additional insurance aazeamounts in excess of our respective underlggtgntion. Accruals are based primarily
on the actuarially estimated, undiscounted costaiins, which includes claims incurred but not mé@ad. Such liabilities are based on
estimates. While we believe that the amounts aeguaate, there can be no assurance that changeséstonates may not occur due to
limitations inherent in the estimation process. i@jes in the estimates of these accruals are chargeddited to earnings in the period
determined. Amounts estimated to be paid withinndet year have been classified as “Accrued expease other current liabilitiestith the
remainder included in “Other non-current liabiliie

Residual Value Guarantees and Deferred Gain

Ryder periodically enters into agreementdtiersale and operating leaseback of revenue epeqginipment. These leases contain purc
and (or) renewal options as well as limited guarasiof the lessor’s residual value (“residual vajuarantees”). We periodically review the
residual values of revenue earning equipment tlediease from third parties and our exposures uredédual value guarantees. The review is
conducted in a manner similar to that used to aealgsidual values and fair values of owned revemueing equipment. The amount of
residual value guarantees expected to be pai¢dgnized as rent expense over the expected rergairim of the lease. Adjustments in the
estimate of residual value guarantees are recogjpizespectively over the expected remaining leasa.tWhile we believe that the amounts
are adequate, changes to our estimates of residlus guarantees may occur due to changes in theetrfar used vehicles, the condition of
the vehicles at the end of the lease and inheiraitations in the estimation process.

Gains on the sale and operating leasebakvehue earning equipment are deferred and amdize straighline basis over the term
the lease as a reduction of rent expense.

Income Taxes

Our provision for income taxes is based qored earnings before income taxes. Deferred tasesecognized for the future tax effects
of temporary differences between the financialestetnt carrying amounts of existing assets anditiasiand their respective tax bases using
tax rates in effect for the years in which theefifinces are expected to reverse. Valuation alloggaae recognized to reduce deferred tax
assets to the amount that is more likely than mbietrealized. In assessing the likelihood of radilbn, management considers estimates of
future taxable income.

We are subject to tax audits in numerousglictions in the U.S. and around the world. Taxitauay their very nature are often complex
and can require several years to complete. Indheal course of business, we are subject to clgglefrom the IRS and other tax authorities
regarding amounts of taxes due. These challenggsah®a the timing or amount of taxable income edudctions, or the allocation of income
among tax jurisdictions. As part of our calculatmfrthe provision for income taxes on earningsyaaord the amount we expect to incur as a
result of tax audits as part of accrued incomedaS8ech accruals require management to make estraatl judgments with respect to the
ultimate outcome of a tax audit. Accruals for in@tax exposures expected to be settled within éxéyear are included in “Accrued
expenses and other current liabilities” with theaénder included in “Other non-current liabilities.

Environmental Expenditures

We record liabilities for environmental assasnts and (or) cleanup when it is probable aHassbeen incurred and the costs can be
reasonably estimated. Management works with indigrerthird-party specialists in order to effectivabsess our environmental liabilities.
Environmental liability estimates may include camish as anticipated site testing, consulting, ceatien, disposal, post-remediation
monitoring and legal fees, as appropriate. Théliigllloes not reflect possible recoveries fromuiresice companies or
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reimbursement of remediation costs by state agenoig does include estimates of cost sharing etftkr potentially responsible parties.
Estimates are not discounted, as the timing oftitipated cash payments is not fixed or read#gdninable. Claims for reimbursement of
remediation costs are recorded when recovery isidégrobable.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

We use financial instruments, including fordiaxchange contracts, futures, swaps and capragres to manage our exposures to
movements in interest rates and foreign currenchaxge rates. The use of these financial instruismantifies the exposure of these risks
with the intent to reduce the risk or cost to Rydge do not enter into derivative financial insteems for trading purposes. We limit our risk
that counterparties to the derivative contract$ aéfault and not make payments by entering intive&ve contracts only with counterparties
comprised of large banks and financial institutitms meet established credit criteria. We do mpeet to incur any losses as a result of
counterparty default.

On the date a derivative contract is entéremiwe formally document, among other items, titerided hedging designation and
relationship, along with the risk management oljestand strategies for entering into the derivationtract. We also formally assess, bot
the hedge’s inception and on an ongoing basis,ven¢he derivatives we used in hedging transactoasighly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flows of hedgedstamhen it is determined that a derivative is righly effective as a hedge or that it has
ceased to be a highly effective hedge, we discoatiredge accounting prospectively.

The hedging designation may be classifiefbéows:

No Hedging DesignatioThe gain or loss on a derivative instrument notgieded as an accounting hedging instrument isgreized
currently in earnings.

Fair Value HedgeA hedge of a recognized asset or liability or areangnized firm commitment is considered as aviaine hedge. For
fair value hedges, both the effective and ineffecportions of the changes in the fair value ofdbavative, along with the gain or loss on the
hedged item that is attributable to the hedged @sik recorded in earnings and reported in the @inladed Statements of Earnings on the
same line as the hedged item.

Cash Flow HedgeA hedge of a forecasted transaction or of the béitip of cash flows to be received or paid relatech recognized ass
or liability is considered as a cash flow hedgee €ffective portion of the change in the fair vatii@ derivative that is declared as a cash
hedge is recorded in “Accumulated other comprelvensiss” until earnings are affected by the valighin cash flows of the designated
hedged item.

Net Investment Hedga. hedge of a net investment in a foreign operaisoronsidered as a net investment hedge. The efgobrtion of
the change in the fair value of the derivative usea@ net investment hedge of a foreign operasioadorded in the currency translation
adjustment account within “Accumulated other corhpresive loss.” The ineffective portion, if any, ke hedged item that is attributable to
the hedged risk is recorded in earnings and regamtéhe Consolidated Statements of Earnings as¢®lianeous income, net.”

Foreign Currency Translation

Our foreign operations generally use thellogarency as their functional currency. Assets katuilities of these operations are translated
at the exchange rates in effect on the balancd gdage If exchangeability between the functionarency and the U.S. dollar is temporarily
lacking at the balance sheet date, the first sulisgqate at which exchanges can be made is ugehdate assets and liabilities. Income
statement items are translated at the average rgehates for the year. The impact of
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currency fluctuations is included in “Accumulatetti@ comprehensive loss” as a currency translaanstment. Gains and losses resulting
from foreign currency transactions, the amountsiuth are not material for any of the periods prése, are included in “Miscellaneous
income, net.”

Share-Based Compensatior

At December 31, 2005, Ryder had various shased employee compensation plans, which areidedanore fully in Note 22, “Share-
Based Compensation Plans.” We recognize share-ltasepensation using the intrinsic value method. &dridis method, we recognize
compensation cost based on the excess, if anfieajuoted market price of our common stock at #ie df grant (or other measurement d
and the amount an employee must pay to acquiredimenon stock. We recognize compensation expens®forested stock issued to
employees and directors.

The following table illustrates the effect wet earnings and earnings per common share ifageapplied the fair value method of
accounting to share-based employee compensati@faiitvalues of options granted were estimatatietiates of grant using the Black-
Scholes-Merton option-pricing valuation model.

Years ended December

2005 2004 2003
(In thousands, except per share amot
Net earnings, as report $226,92¢ 215,60¢ 131,43t
Add: Share-based employee compensation expensel@ttin reported net
earnings, net of ta 1,931 1,15¢ 52¢
Deduct: Total share-based employee compensaticenerpdetermined
under fair value method for all awards, net of (9,66€) (8,979 (5,699
Pro forma net earning $219,19: 207,79: 126,26!
Earnings per common sha
Basic:
As reportec $ 3.5€ 3.3t 2.0¢
Pro forma $ 3.4 3.2t 2.01
Diluted:
As reportec $ 352 3.2¢ 2.0¢
Pro forma $ 3.3¢ 3.1€ 1.9¢

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per common share is computetiMiding net earnings by the weighted-average Ioemof common shares outstanding.
Nonvested stock (restricted stock) granted to eygae and directors are not included in the comjmutaif basic earnings per common sk
until the securities vest. Diluted earnings per own share reflect the dilutive effect of potentaimmon shares from securities such as stock
options and unvested restricted stock. The dilutifect of stock options and restricted stock isipated using the treasury stock method,
which assumes any proceeds that could be obtainenl the exercise of stock options and vesting stficted stock would be used to
purchase common shares at the average marketforittee period.
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Share Repurchase:

Repurchases of shares of common stock are peribdically in open-market transactions usingkivg capital and are subject to market
conditions, legal requirements and other factong dost of share repurchases is allocated betwsamon stock and retained earnings based
on the amount of additional paid-in capital at tinge of the share repurchase.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) presents a meadall changes in shareholders’ equity exceptfanges resulting from transactions with
shareholders in their capacity as shareholderseRytbtal comprehensive income (loss) presenthsisis of net earnings, currency
translation adjustments associated with foreigmatns that use the local currency as their fumeti currency, adjustments for derivative
instruments accounted for as cash flow hedges amidhomm pension liability adjustments.

Reclassifications

In order to maintain consistency and compénalbetween periods, certain reclassification@nfounts previously reported have been
made to the accompanying Consolidated Financiaé®tnts and related notes at December 31, 200fbatitt years ended December 31,
2004 and 2003.

We previously allocated a portion of the dsifion costs of revenue earning equipment andisenehicles to tires in service (current
asset on our Consolidated Balance Sheets) andiaatbtires in service over the lives of the velda@d®d equipment. The cost of replacement
tires and tire repairs are expensed as incurre200®, we concluded that we should reclassify thrtign of the acquisition cost of revenue
earning equipment and service vehicles allocatdiles in service so that it would be classifiegdther with the related revenue earning
equipment and service vehicles (operating propart/equipment). We believe this classification iovess the transparency of our total
vehicle investment. The reclassification of tiresérvice to revenue earning equipment and sevebiles decreased current assets by
$176 million and increased revenue earning equipnmed by $175 million and operating property agdipment, net by $1 million at
December 31, 2004. The reclassification of tiresdrvice also impacted the classification of tHateel deferred taxes which increased pre
expenses and other current assets and deferredéntzxes by $45 million at December 31, 2004.

Our cash is impacted by fluctuations in exgjearates in the foreign countries in which we afgerDuring the years ended December 31,
2005, 2004 and 2003, our cash was impacted byi(dpn, $9 million and $9 million, respectively duo fluctuations in exchange rates.
Accordingly, certain amounts reflected in the acpanying Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows fertars ended December 31, 2004
and 2003 have been adjusted to separately cldbsifynpact of exchange rates on cash. We haveedtassified changes in restricted cash
balances from operating activities to investingwita¢s. These reclassifications did not have aamatimpact on the amounts reported for any
period or respective trend.

Recent Accounting Pronouncement

In December 2004, the FASB issued StatemfeRinancial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123iged 2004) (SFAS No. 123R),
“Share-Based Payment,” which replaces SFAS No. ‘l®8;ounting for Share-Based Compensation,” ancessgdes APB Opinion No. 25
(APB No. 25), “Accounting for Stock Issued to Emyes,” and amends SFAS No. 95, “Statement of ChshsE SFAS No. 123R requires
all share-based payments to employees, includiagtgiof employee stock options, to be recognizetéarfinancial statements based on their
fair values. The pro forma disclosures previousyngitted under SFAS No. 123 no longer will be @eraktive to financial statement
recognition. SFAS No. 123R also requires the bénefitax deductions in excess of recognized coisgi@n cost to be reported as a
financing cash flow, rather than as an operatirglh d®w as required under current
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literature. SFAS No. 123R was to be adopted no thgn July 1, 2005. However, in April 2005, thee@dties and Exchange Commission
(SEC) issued a release that amended the complites for SFAS No. 123R. Under the SEC’s new muewill be required to apply

SFAS No. 123R as of January 1, 2006. Under SFASIRBR, we must determine the appropriate fair valodel to be used for valuing
share-based payments, the amortization methodfopensation cost and the transition method to bd asdate of adoption. The transition
methods include modified prospective and modifigldaspective adoption options. For Ryder, the nmediprospective method requires
compensation cost to be recognized beginning Jariy&006 based on the requirements of SFAS NdR¥aBall share-based payments
granted after December 31, 2005 and based on go@eeents of SFAS No. 123 for all awards grantedrployees prior to January 1, 2006
that remain unvested on January 1, 2006. The neali&trospective method includes the requiremdrttseamodified prospective method
described above, but also permits companies tategdiased on the amounts previously recognizedr8@AS No. 123 for purposes of pro
forma disclosures. We plan to adopt SFAS No. 128Rgithe modified prospective method.

As permitted by SFAS No. 123, we currentlgamt for share-based payments to employees ustnigitrinsic value method of APB
No. 25 and, as such, generally recognize no conapienscost for employee stock options and stockimase plans. Accordingly, the adopt
of the fair value method from SFAS No. 123R willba significant impact on our results of operatiaithough it will have no impact on
our overall financial position. The impact of thdoation of SFAS No. 123R depends on levels of shased payments granted in the future.
However, had we adopted SFAS No. 123R in priorqoyi the impact of SFAS No. 123R would have appnaxed the impact of
SFAS No. 123 as described in the disclosure ofgnma net earnings and earnings per share. Thetiadag SFAS No. 123R will reduce net
operating cash flows and increase net financing flas/s in periods of adoption as a result of tlessification requirements of the benefit:
tax deductions in excess of recognized compensatish While we cannot estimate what those amawifitbe in the future (because they
depend on, among other things, when employeesisgestock options), the amount of operating cashSlrecognized in prior periods for
such excess tax deductions were $6 million, $2lianibnd $5 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003, resjvety.

In May 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Hori{FSP) No. FAS 109-2 (FSP 109-2), “Accounting &isclosure Guidance for the
Foreign Earnings Repatriation Provision within &merican Jobs Creation Act of 2004,” which providesdance under SFAS No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxesith respect to recording the potential impacthaf tepatriation provisions of the American Jobsa@ioa Act
of 2004 (the Jobs Act) on enterprises’ income tgpease and deferred tax liability. The Jobs Act eaacted on October 22, 2004. FSP 209-
allowed an enterprise for time beyond the finanelorting period of enactment to evaluate theceidé the Jobs Act on its plan for
reinvestment or repatriation of foreign earningsgorposes of applying SFAS No. 109. During 2008,completed our analysis of the costs
and benefits of repatriating funds under the Jotitsafvd decided not to repatriate foreign earnitiggsiefore, there was no impact from the
repatriation provisions of the Jobs Act.
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2.  ACCOUNTING CHANGES

The following table summarizes the after#t@ax-cash charges recorded in connection with adswustandards adopted in 2005 and
2003:

Years ende!
December 3:
2005 2003

(In thousands
FIN 47— Conditional asset retirement obligatic $(2,440) —
FIN 46 — Variable interest entities (See Note — (2,959
SFAS No. 14— Asset retirement obligatior — (1,169
Cumulative effect of changes in accounting prires; $(2,440 (4,129

Effective December 31, 2005, we adopted FIN‘Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement @hations,” which clarifies that the
term conditional asset retirement obligation agliseSFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Retirem@tiligations,” refers to a legal
obligation to perform an asset retirement actiirityvhich the timing and (or) method of settlemerg eonditional on a future event that may
or may not be within the control of the entity. Tdtgigation to perform the asset retirement agtiistunconditional even though uncertainty
exists about the timing and (or) method of settietnaccordingly, an entity is required to recogniz&ability for the fair value of a
conditional asset retirement obligation if the faatue of the liability can be reasonably estimatéicertainty about the timing and
(or) method of settlement of a conditional assgtexment obligation should be factored into the sugament of the liability when sufficient
information exists. FIN 47 also clarifies when antity would have sufficient information to reasohabstimate the fair value of an asset
retirement obligation. The adoption of FIN 47 imgatour accounting for the conditional obligatiorrémove underground storage tanks
located at our maintenance facilities. Upon adaptibthis standard, we recorded additional opeggpiroperty and equipment, net of
$2 million and additional current and non-curreabilities of $6 million, in addition to recognizina non-cash pre-tax cumulative effect
charge of $4 million ($2 million on an after taxdm or $0.04 per diluted common share). Adoptibthis standard would not have had a
material impact on our results of operations oafiicial condition for each of the earlier periodssanted.

Effective January 1, 2003, we adopted SFASIMG, “Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligatidnghich addresses financial
accounting and reporting for obligations associatl the retirement of tangible long-lived assatsl the associated asset retirement costs.
SFAS No. 143 requires that the fair value of ailigbfor an asset retirement obligation be recagui in the period in which it is incurred if a
reasonable estimate of fair value can be madetteridhe associated asset retirement costs beabagit as part of the carrying amount of the
long-lived asset. Upon adoption of this standarel recorded additional revenue earning equipmenbfri&l million and additional current
and non-current liabilities of $3 million, in adidit to recognizing a non-cash pre-tax cumulatifeatfcharge of $2 million ($1 million on an
after-tax basis, or $0.02 per diluted common sham)sisting primarily of costs associated with sigrement of certain components of
revenue earning equipment.

During 2004, Ryder did not record any cumuéaeffect charge in connection with the adoptibaeacounting standards.

3. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On September 13, 1999, we completed theodadar public transportation services business (BPWhich was accounted for as
discontinued operations. In connection with the RRfivestiture, we retained various RPTS insurataiendiabilities that related to pre-
divestiture operations. During the fourth quarte2@05, we adjusted our estimates of these inseraabilities based on revised actuarial
estimates and reduced the carrying amount of fiesiéties. We also recorded various immaterial
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amounts from the reversal of liabilities establiblas part of other business divestitures that legeh laccounted for as discontinued operations
in prior years. The aggregate impact of these aujersts was a pre-tax benefit of $3 million ($2 roill on an after-tax basis, or $0.03 per
diluted common share).

4. ACQUISITIONS

4G’s Acquisition— On March 7, 2005, Ryder acquired the fleet amgtamers of 4G’s Truck Renting Co. (4G’s), a prahkatowned local
truck leasing and rental company located in NewkYtor approximately $8 million in cash.

Ruan Acquisition— On March 1, 2004, Ryder completed an asset psechgreement with Ruan Leasing Company (Ruany wideh
we acquired Ruan’s fleet of approximately 6,400iclels, 37 of its 111 service locations and more th@0 customers. Ryder also acquired
full service contract maintenance agreements cogexpproximately 1,700 vehicles. The combined Ryaer Ruan network has allowed u
leverage our existing U.S. infrastructure in keyrkets while adding new infrastructure to strengtbanpresence in targeted areas of the
Midwest, Southeast, Mid-Atlantic and SouthwestD&cember 31, 2005, approximately $143 million & #udjusted purchase price of
$147 million had been paid with the remaining ami@xpected to be paid by the first quarter of 2006.

General Acquisition— On December 31, 2003, Ryder completed an asselh@se agreement with General Car and Truck Lgasin
System, Inc. (General) under which we acquired Geisdleet of approximately 4,200 vehicles, 15tef34 service locations and more than
700 customers. The combined Ryder and General nletras allowed us to leverage our existing U.Sastfucture in key markets while
adding new infrastructure to strengthen our presémtargeted areas of the Midwest and Southehastadjusted purchase price of
$108 million was substantially paid by DecemberZ&105.

Vertex Acquisition— On November 15, 2003, Ryder also acquired saobatty all of the assets of Vertex Services, LL\&Z(tex), an
environmental services firm providing fuel storagek management services, for approximately $2amilh cash.

The purchase price allocations and resultimgact on the corresponding Consolidated BalaneeStrelating to all acquisitions were as
follows:

Years ended December
2005 2004 2003
(In thousands

Assets:
Customer relationship intangibl $ 20C 5,35: 2,33(
Goodwill 82¢ 25¢ 1,55¢
Revenue earning equipme 5,75¢ 138,82: 98,23t
Other asset 38€ 3,69:¢ 8,78(
7,16¢ 148,12¢ 110,90:
Liabilities (160 1,039) 137%)
Purchase pric $ 7,00¢ 147,09: 110,76¢
Cash paid for acquisitior $15,11( 148,79: 96,51¢
Unpaid purchase pric $ 4,457 12,55: 14,25(
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Pro Forma Information— The operating results of the acquired compama® been included in the consolidated financakstents
from the dates of acquisitions. Pro forma resulesented exclude the 4G’s and Vertex businessesibeche effects of these acquisitions
were not significant. This pro forma informatiomist necessarily indicative either of the combinegllts of operations that actually would
have been realized had the acquisitions been canated during the periods for which the pro fornfaimation is presented, or of future
results. The pro forma results for 2003 includerapimately $27 million of asset impairment chargesorded by one of the acquired entities
in the period prior to the acquisition. The follagitable provides the unaudited pro forma reveaamings from continuing operations, net
earnings and earnings per diluted common sharfetlas iesults of Ruan and General had been inclidegderations commencing January 1,
2003.

Unaudited
December 3:
2004 2003
(In thousands, except per sh.
amounts’
Revenue $5,173,27! 5,044,30.
Earnings from continuing operatio $ 214,19 115,27:
Net earning: $ 214,19 111,15(
Earnings per common she— Diluted:
Continuing operation $ 3.2¢€ 1.8C
Net earningt $ 3.2¢€ 1.74

5. RESTRUCTURING AND OTHER CHARGES (RECOVERIE
The components of restructuring and othergeea(recoveries), net in 2005, 2004 and 2003 waerfellows:

Years ended December
2005 2004 2003
(In thousands

Restructuring charges (recoveries), |

Severance and employ-related costs (recoverie $2,44¢ (1,21¢) 4,90z
Facilities and related costs (recoveri 181 (79 (8)
2,63( (1,295 4,89
Other charges (recoveries), n

Asset writ-downs — (612) (1,182
Gain on sale of headquarters comg — (24,309 —
Contract termination and transition co 74¢€ 8,00( —
Insurance reserve— sold busines — — (42
Settlement of commercial dispt — (12 (3,900
Total $3,37¢ (17,67¢) (230)
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Allocation of restructuring and other chargezoveries), net across business segments in 2008 and 2003 was as follows:

Years ended December

2005 2004 2003
(In thousands
Fleet Management Solutio $2,752 4,317 (961)
Supply Chain Solution 677 1,937 53¢
Dedicated Contract Carriay 34 50z (311)
Central Support Services (CS (87) (24,429 50¢€
Total $3,37¢ (17,679 (230

2005 Activity

During 2005, Ryder approved a plan to elirteregpproximately 160 positions as a result of omgaiost management and process
improvement actions in Ryder’s domestic and intéonal FMS and SCS business segments and CSS hbingecrelated to these actions
included severance and employee-related costéngtiB million, relating primarily to the restruciog of our U.K. operations. Many of the
eliminated positions in our domestic operationsenerpacted by Ryder’s decision to outsource ceadministration finance and support
functions to lower-cost foreign providers. Whiled®y informed these employees of the transition fidaeliminating these positions by
December 31, 2005, actual transition plans willibég February 2006 and continue through the redeif 2006. During 2005, we also
reversed severance and employee-related costs®h#ilion that had been recorded in prior restudcigs due to refinements in estimates.

During 2005, we also closed two administetifices in the U.S. as a result of the reorgaitinaof our FMS domestic operations and
recorded a charge for future cash payments retattte contractual lease obligations.

Other charges during 2005 related to theiteation of certain telecommunication services ceddny an information technology contract.
As part of ongoing cost management and procesoweprent actions, Ryder management approved and ittedrio a plan to transition
certain outsourced telecommunication services eRgmployees. Under the terms of the agreemenieRyas obligated to pay termination
costs in the event of termination prior to the extion date of 2010. In accordance with the terfrth@ services agreement, Ryder notified
information technology services provider of itseint to terminate the services and recorded chaoggsg nearly $1 million for contract
termination costs.

2004 Activity

Restructuring recoveries, net during 2004tesl primarily to employee severance and benefitsrded in prior restructuring charges that
were reversed due to refinements in estimates.

Other recoveries, net during 2004 relatecharily to $24 million in gains from properties satdconnection with the relocation of our
headquarters. In May 2004, we completed the sabeio€orporate headquarters facility for $39 millia cash. In conjunction with this sale,
we entered into a lease agreement with the purchasease back the headquarters facility untirelecated to our new headquarters in 2005.
The terms of the leaseback agreement met theiarf@ra “normal leaseback” and full gain recogmitiof $22 million. Also during 2004, we
recognized gains totaling $2 million from the saleroperties ancillary to our main headquartecdlifg.
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Other charges during 2004 related to theiteation of certain services covered by an inforomatiechnology contract. As part of ongoing
cost containment initiatives, Ryder management@pga and committed to a plan to transition certaitsourced information technology
infrastructure services to Ryder employees. Unldetérms of the agreement, Ryder was obligatedydgrmination costs in the event of
termination prior to the expiration date of 2019 accordance with the terms of the services agregmRgder notified the information
technology services provider of its intent to teraie the services and recorded charges totalimgii8n for contract termination ($6 milliol
and transition costs incurred since terminationr(fifion). By December 31, 2004, all transitioniaittes were completed.

2003 Activity

During 2003, Ryder approved a plan to elirtérepproximately 140 positions as a result of omgaiost management and process
improvement actions in Ryder’'s FMS and SCS busisegments and CSS. The charge related to thesasaticluded severance and
employee-related costs totaling $6 million. Whilamg of these employees had not been terminatedebgmber 31, 2003, such actions were
substantially finalized by March 31, 2004. Durin@023, we also reversed severance and employeeddaasts totaling $1 million that had
been recorded in prior restructurings due to refieets in estimates.

Other recoveries during 2003 principally ud#d a settlement of a commercial dispute pertgitarprior billings with an information
technology vendor and gains on sales of owneditiasiidentified for closure in prior restructuriefarges.

The following table presents a roll-forwarfdioe activity and balances of our restructuringerge account for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004:

Deductions
Beginning Cash Non-Cash Ending
Balance Additions Payment Reductions®) Balance

(In thousands

Year Ended December 31, 200¢

Employee severance and benefi $1,12¢ 2,97¢ 1,047 527 2,52
Facilities and related costs 76C _46C 241 27¢ _70C
Total $1,88¢ 3.43¢ 1,28¢ _80¢ 3,22]

Year Ended December 31, 20!
Employee severance and bene $6,66¢ 271 4,32¢ 1,48 1,12¢
Facilities and related cos 1,322 101 __48¢ _18C 76(
Total $7,98i 372 4,807 1,667 1,88¢

(1)  Nor-cash reductions represent adjustments to thewesiring reserve as actual costs related to emmdgemination and other exit costs were less thagirmally
estimated

At December 31, 2005, outstanding restructuabligations are generally required to be paid ¢hre next two years.
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6. RECEIVABLES

December 3.
2005 2004

(In thousands
Trade $737,25: 654,75:
Financing leas 67,05¢ 67,671
Income tax — 3,88¢
Insurance 10,64¢ 1,52
Vendor rebate 8,88( 5,81¢
Other 10,20¢ 11,10¢
834,04¢ 744,75¢
Allowance (13,229 (11,929
Total $820,82! 732,83!

In September 2005, Ryder Receivable Fundingll.C. (RRF LLC), a bankruptcy remote, consotethsubsidiary of Ryder System, Inc.,
entered into a Trade Receivables Purchase andA\§edement (the Trade Receivables Agreement) wittoua financial institutions. Under
this 364-day program, Ryder sells certain of itmdstic trade accounts receivable to RRF LLC whmiin may sell, on a revolving basis, an
ownership interest in certain of these accountsiveble to a receivables conduit and (or) commiptecthasers. Under the terms of the
program, RRF LLC and Ryder have provided represients warranties, covenants and indemnities treatastomary for accounts receive
facilities of this type. Ryder entered into thi@gram to provide additional liquidity to fund itperations, particularly when the cost of such
sales is cost effective compared with other fungiregrams, notably the issuance of unsecured coniah@aper. This program will be
accounted for as a collateralized financing arramgg with the proceeds of receivables sold predeagalebt. The available proceeds that
may be received by RRF LLC under the program anédd to $200 million. RRF LLC's costs under thimgram may vary based on changes
in Ryder’s unsecured debt ratings and changes in intettest 1thno event occurs which would cause earlyieation, the program will expi
on September 12, 2006, unless extended by theepaBiuring 2005, no receivables were sold purstaetiite Trade Receivables Agreement.

Ryder previously participated in an agreentersell, with limited recourse, trade receivaldasa revolving and uncommitted basis, wt
expired in December 2004. Under the program, Rgdkt receivables from time to time in order to fuopkrations, particularly when the ¢
of such sales was cost effective compared withratteans of funding, notably, commercial paper. essm receivable sales and related ¢
associated with this program were $0.5 million @hb2004 and 2003 and included in “Miscellaneoesine, net.”

7. REVENUE EARNING EQUIPMENT

December 31, 2005 December 31, 200
Estimated
Useful Accumulated Net Book Accumulatec Net Book
Lives Cost Depreciation Value () Cost Depreciatior Value @)
(In years) (In thousands
Full service leas 3—12 $5,085,08: (2,113,49) 2,971,599 4,835,04! (2,126,92) 2,708,12
Commercial rente 45—12 1,572,32. (749,50/) 822,82( 1,517,42 (718,92)) 798,50t
Total $6,657,40: (2,862,99) 3,794,411 6,352,47! 52,845,841) 3,506,63:

Q) Revenue earning equipment, net includes vehiclgsid under capital leases of $17 million, lessumulated amortization of $11 million at Decembgy 2005, anc
$67 million, less accumulated amortization of $2liom at December 31, 2004. Amortization expensetated to vehicles acquired under capital leasesombined
with depreciation expens
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Revenue earning equipment captioned as “&ullise lease” and “commercial rental” is differeéd exclusively by the service line in
which the equipment is employed. Two core serviterimgs of Ryder's FMS business segment are iVise leasing and short-term
commercial rental. Under a full service lease, Ryfevides customers with vehicles, maintenangapkes (including fuel), ancillary
services and related equipment necessary for apeyathile our customers exercise control of tHatesl vehicles over the lease term
(generally three to seven years depending uponahee of the equipment). We also provide shoriteantals, which tend to be seasonal, to
customers to supplement their fleets during peakness periods.

8. OPERATING PROPERTY AND EQUIPMEN

December 3:
Estimated
Useful Lives 2005 2004

(In years) (In thousands
Land — $ 106,56: 105,82(
Buildings and improvemen 10— 40 587,28: 573,71
Machinery and equipme 3—10 471,69: 475,65:
Other 3—10 69,87( 65,16¢
1,235,401 1,220,35
Accumulated depreciatic (748,609 (739,989
Total $ 486,80: 480,36¢

9. GOODWILL

In 2005, we completed our annual goodwill @inment test and determined there was no impairnTdm carrying amount of goodwill
attributable to each reportable business segmehtclianges therein was as follows:

Fleet Supply Dedicatec
Managemen Chain Contract
Solutions Solutions Carriage Total
(In thousands

Balance at December 31, 2C $126,31¢ 24,41( 4,90( 155,62¢
Acquisitions(®) 26( — — 26(
Currency translation adjustme 751 1,268 — 2,01¢
Balance at December 31, 2C 127,32¢ 25,67¢ 4,90( 157,90:
Acquisitions 827 — 827
Currency translation adjustment (1,399 (1,557) — 2,94¢
Balance at December 31, 20C $126,76:. 24,12 4,90( 155,78!

(1) Amount represents purchase accounting adjustmefdasing to the November 2003 acquisition of Ver
(2)  Amount represents goodwill related to the acquisitf 4C's.
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10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

December 3.
2005 2004
(In thousands

Indefinite lived intangible assel

Trade nam: $ 8,68¢ 8,68¢
Pension intangibl 7,33: 8,80¢
16,01¢ 17,49(

Finite lived intangible asset
Customer relationship intangibl() 7,88: 7,68:
Accumulated amortizatia (1,440 (653)
6,44: 7,03(
Total $22,46: 24,52(

(1) Customer relationship intangibles are being amedion a straigl-line basis over their estimated useful lives of/&érs.

The Ryder trade name has been identified @isfpan indefinite useful life. We recorded amaatian expense associated with finite lived
intangible assets of approximately $1 million ir08Gand 2004. Based on the current amount of fiiviéel intangible assets, we estimate
amortization expense to be approximately $1 milflameach of the next five years.

11. DIRECT FINANCING LEASES AND OTHER ASSET

December 3:
2005 2004

(In thousands
Direct financing leases, n $321,05¢ 333,33¢
Restricted cash (vehicle securitization credit eckeanents 14,59: 24,537
Investments held in Rabbi Tru 24,22( 21,73
Insurance receivab 21,72¢ 7,27¢
Deferred debt issuance co 9,92 6,93¢
Swap and cap agreeme 39t 4,911
Other 18,13¢ 17,79¢
Total $410,05( 416,53:
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12. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

December 31, 200! December 31, 20C

Accrued Non-Current Accrued Non-Current
Expenses Liabilities Total Expense: Liabilities Total
(In thousands

Salaries and wag¢ $ 79,38¢ — 79,38¢ 82,61 — 82,61
Pension benefit 71,28¢ 166,38« 237,67: 39,18¢ 114,09¢ 153,28t
Deferred compensatic 3,13¢ 20,21: 23,34t 3,58¢ 20,70: 24,29(
Other postretirement benef 7,381 24,48 31,86¢ 7,441 27,32« 34,76:
Employee benefit 3,74¢ 3,74¢ 8,601 — 8,601
Insurance obligation(®) 111,16: 192,07 303,24( 108,33 167,88« 276,22:
Residual value guarante 3,627 1,67¢ 5,30( 3,61 2,58¢ 6,20¢
Vehicle rent 1,917 3,60¢ 5,52 1,501 3,08¢ 4,58
Deferred vehicle gair 1,087 2,45( 3,531 10,28¢ 1,48 11,76¢
Environmental liabilities 3,53¢ 12,97( 16,50¢ 5,51¢ 10,71 16,23:
Asset retirement obligatior 3,07t 10,18: 13,25¢ 78¢ 4,58( 5,36¢
Operating taxe 87,48¢ — 87,48¢ 81,98¢ — 81,98¢
Income taxe! 95,35: 26,97 122,32: 246,89t 29,09( 275,98t
Restructuring 2,71¢ 51:& 3,221 1,88¢ — 1,88t
Interest 17,91¢ — 17,91¢ 16,44: — 16,44:
Crost-currency swaj — 9,73¢ 9,73¢ — 15,94¢ 15,94¢
Customer deposit 19,59¢ — 19,59¢ 18,11°¢ — 18,11¢
Other 57,31¢ 16,00 73,32( 70,09! 11,06( 81,15!

Total $569,72: 487,26¢ 1,056,98! 706,90: 408,55 1,115,45

(1) Insurance obligations are primarily comprised offtinsurance accruals
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13. INCOME TAXES
The components of earnings from continuingrapons before income taxes and the provisiofnimrme taxes were as follows:

Years ended December
2005 2004 2003
(In thousands

Earnings from continuing operations before incomes:

United State: $307,85¢ 270,66t 155,37t
Foreign 49,23 60,45¢ 57,09¢
Total $357,08t¢ 331,12: 212 47!
Current tax expens

Federal® $133,45¢ 88,92( —
State@ 2,79i 3,95¢ 4,03¢
Foreign 18,11« 12,82( 21,41(
$154,37( 105,69¢ 25,44¢

Deferred tax (benefit) expens
Federal $(22,33)) (6,007 45,23(
State (40 9,51( 6,56
Foreign (2,539 6,30¢ (327)
(24,910 9,81¢ 51,461
Provision for income taxe $129,46( 115,51: 76,91¢

(1) Excludes federal and state tax benefits resultinmfthe exercise of stock options and vesting sifimked stock awards, which were credited direttl“Additional paid-
in capital”

A reconciliation of the federal statutory tate with the effective tax rate follows:

Years ended December

2005 2004 2003
(Percentage of p-tax earnings
Federal statutory tax ra 35.C 35.C 35.C
Impact on deferred taxes for changes in tax 1 (2.2 (0.2 0.7
State income taxes, net of federal income tax lie 2.7 2.9 3.2
Tax reviews and audi — (2.9 —
Miscellaneous items, n _0.8 = 2.9
Effective tax rate 36.5 34.¢ 36.2

The 2005 effective tax rate includes a taxdfie of $8 million associated with the State ofi©Bnacted tax legislation, which phases out
the Ohio corporate franchise (income) tax and phasa new gross receipts tax called the Commefaitvity Tax (CAT) over a five-year
period. While the corporate franchise (income)was generally based on federal taxable incomeC#iEis based on current-year sales and
rentals in Ohio. As required by Statement of Fiman&ccounting Standards (SFAS) No. 109, “Accougtfar Income Taxes,the eliminatior
of Ohio’s corporate franchise (income) tax overrlegt five years resulted in a favorable adjustmemteferred income taxes.

The 2004 effective tax rate includes a nebinefit of $9 million associated with the compatof the audit of our federal income tax
returns for the 1995 to 1997 period, partially effey provisions made for loss contingencies rdlédethe audit of the 1998 through 2000
period.
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The components of the net deferred incoméigaiity were as follows:

December 3.
2005 2004
(In thousands

Deferred income tax asse

Selfinsurance accrua $ 66,20: 74,14(
Net operating loss carryforwar 31,14 40,49
Accrued compensation and bene 32,06: 33,07
Pension benefit 64,67¢ 43,88
Miscellaneous other accruz 40,65¢ 65,21(
234,74« 256,80:
Valuation allowanct (12,369 (11,559
222,37 245,24«

Deferred income tax liabilitie:
Property and equipment bases differe (1,001,213 (1,063,59)
Other items (14,449 (15,559
(1,015,66, (1,079,15)
Net deferred income tax liabilif®) $ (793,28) (833,91)

Q) Deferred tax assets of $56 million and $82 millfmve been included “ Prepaid expenses and other current as” at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectiy

We do not provide for U.S. deferred incomestagn temporary differences related to our for@gestments that are considered perme
in duration. These temporary differences consisnaguily of undistributed foreign earnings of $304limn at December 31, 2005. A full
foreign tax provision has been made on these uittlittd foreign earnings. Determination of the aniaf deferred taxes on these temporary
differences is not practicable due to foreign teedits and exclusions.

At December 31, 2005, various subsidiarieselsate net operating loss carryforwards of $1ianiexpiring through tax year 2024. We
also have foreign net operating losses of $12 onilthat are available to reduce future income tpments in several countries, subject to
varying expiration rules. A valuation allowance haen established to reduce deferred income tatsagsincipally foreign tax loss
carryforwards to amounts expected to be realized.

We are subject to tax audits in numerousglictions in the U.S. and around the world. Taxitaual their very nature are often complex
and can require several years to complete. Then@t®evenue Service (IRS) has now closed auditsiof).S. federal income tax returns
through fiscal year 2000.

The audit of our federal income tax returmisf995 through 1997 was in the appeals processthdt IRS since 2002. In December 2004,
Ryder received notification that the Congressidméht Committee on Taxation (Joint Committee) hpdraved our claims for capital loss
refunds and carryforwards in connection with thditof these tax years. The tax benefit associatétthese claims was recognized upon
final approval by the Joint Committee.

In 2003, the IRS began auditing our fedarabime tax returns for the 1998 to 2000 tax pefiodNovember 2004, the IRS proposed
adjustments that challenged certain of our taxtjpos primarily related to (i) a capital loss om thale of a minority interest in our captive
insurance company, (ii) the tax treatment for & sald leaseback of certain revenue earning equipmé&899 and 2000 (not involving our
securitization activities), and (iii) the tax bafis certain revenue earning equipment acquiretP®8 and related depreciation for such assets.
The IRS also proposed penalties for the underpayofaax. In February 2005, we resolved all isswéh the IRS related to the 1998 to 2000
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tax period, including interest and penalties. Inreection with the resolution of this audit, on Redoy 22, 2005, we paid $176 million (after
utilization of all available federal net operatilngses and alternative minimum tax credit cdongvards), including interest through the dat
payment. The amount we paid was consistent witteoaruals as of December 31, 2004, and was inclind&tcrued expenses and other
current liabilities.”

In 2005, the IRS began auditing our federal incoaxereturns for 2001 through 2003. We believe Byder has not entered into any ot
transactions since 2000 that raise the same tyjswds identified by the IRS in the most recenlitau
14. LEASES
Direct Financing Leases

Ryder leases revenue earning equipment tomess as direct financing leases. During 2005nsignificant number of leases of used
revenue earning equipment to customers qualifieshbes-type leases and have been grouped togethatisect financing leases in the
following table. The net investment in direct ficémg leases consisted of:

December 3:
2005 2004

(In thousands
Total minimum lease payments receiva $ 632,19: 646,95(
Less: Executory cos (193,599 (193,89)
Minimum lease payments receival 438,59¢ 453,05¢
Less: Allowance for uncollectible (851 (782)
Net minimum lease payments receive 437,74 452,27t
Unguaranteed residue 73,147 86,32:
Less: Unearned incon (122,779 (137,589
Net investment in direct financing leas 388,11¢ 401,01(
Current portior (67,059 (67,677
Non-current portior $ 321,05¢ 333,33¢

Operating Leases as Lessee

Ryder leases vehicles, facilities and offgelipment under operating lease agreements. Gbneiicle lease agreements specify that
rental payments be adjusted periodically basechanges in interest rates and provide for early iteation at stipulated values. None of our
leasing arrangements contain restrictive finanmaenants.

We periodically enter into sale and leaseliesnksactions in order to lower the total costwfding our operations, to diversify our fund
among different classes of investors (e.g., redibaaks, pension plans, insurance companies,atd.}o diversify our funding among
different types of funding instruments. These dadeseback transactions are often executed with-pharty financial institutions that are not
deemed to be VIEs. In general, these sale-leasdlmtdactions result in a reduction in revenueiagrequipment and debt on the balance
sheet, as proceeds from the sale of revenue eaggiigment are primarily used to repay debt. Sedsdback transactions will result in
reduced depreciation and interest expense andasedeequipment rental expense. During 2004, we lepetptwo saldeaseback transactio
of revenue earning equipment with third-party ficiahinstitutions not deemed to be VIEs and theasedactions qualified for off-balance
sheet treatment. Proceeds from the sale-leasefzadattions totaled $97 million. In connection viliese leases we have provided limited
guarantees of
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the residual values of the leased vehicles (rekithlae guarantees) that are conditioned upon dipaf the leased vehicles prior to the er
their lease term. Proceeds from other sale-leakdbmtsactions that did not qualify for off-balarsteset treatment were $22 million.

As more fully described in Note 15, “Debtffextive July 2003 we consolidated two vehicle s@mation trusts that were considered
VIEs. These trusts were previously establishedsaisql sale-leaseback (vehicle securitization)seations that were originally afforded off-
balance sheet treatment. As part of the vehiclergeation transactions, we are obligated to mialese payments only to the extent of
collections on the related vehicle leases and lebkales. These payments are reflected as debtgragmmather than contingent rental
payments in the consolidated financial statemexgof December 31, 2005 only one vehicle secutitipatrust remains in existence.

As previously discussed, certain leases aoiptarchase and (or) renewal options, as wellragdd guarantees for a portion of the lessor’s
residual value. The amount of residual value guarmexpected to be paid is recognized as renhsgpever the expected remaining term of
the lease. Facts and circumstances that impactgearent’s estimates of residual value guaranteésdathe market for used equipment, the
condition of the equipment at the end of the leagkinherent limitations in the estimation proc&=e Note 17, “Guarantees,” for additional
information.

The following table presents the activitytioé reserve for residual value guarantees for ¢aesyended December 31, 2005, 2004 and
2003:

Beginning Charged tc Ending
Balance Earnings Deductions Balance

(In thousands
2005 $ 6,20¢ 39C 1,29¢ 5,30(
2004 $10,53¢ 1,25( 5,57¢ 6,20¢
2003 $27,77( 1,66¢ 18,90: 10,53

The overall decline in the reserve activéflects the decrease in the number of vehicles tnedigr operating leases. Additionally,
improved vehicle market prices resulted in highstineates of vehicle residual values than previoasijcipated. During 2005 and 2004, the
number of vehicles held under lease declined 2282886, respectively, in comparison to prior periods

During 2005, 2004 and 2003, rent expenséu(tieg rent of facilities included in “Operatinganse,” but excluding contingent rentals)
was $175 million, $171 million and $211 millionspectively. During 2003, contingent rentals on siéized vehicles were $52 million.
During 2005, 2004 and 2003, contingent rentals a@ag of residual value guarantees, payments basediles run and adjustments to rel
payments for changes in interest rates on all dd@sed vehicles were $(1) million, $(2) millionda®(3) million, respectively.
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Lease Payments

Future minimum payments for leases in eféédecember 31, 2005 were as follows:

As Lessor(®) As Lessee
Direct
Operating Financing Operating
Leases Leases Leases
(In thousands)
2006 $ 992,89t 138,99 102,47-
2007 749,60 124,80! 81,85¢
2008 577,84. 107,64 50,40(
2009 434,23¢ 87,45¢ 34,89¢
2010 284,05: 63,88: 27,642
Thereafter 189,58 109,40¢ 66,067
Total $3,228,22! 632,19: 363,33«

(1) Amounts do not include contingent rentals, whicly imareceived under certain leases on the bagisiles of use or changes in the Consumer Price Indertingen
rentals from operating leases included in revenuerg) 2005, 2004 and 2003 were $293 million, $28%on and $264 million, respectively. Contingeettals from
direct financing leases included in revenue du2@@5, 2004 and 2003 were $30 million, $29 milliord &30 million, respectivel

The amounts in the previous table are based the general assumption that revenue earningeeguit will remain on lease for the len
of time specified by the respective lease agreesndifie future minimum payments presented abovadtra projection of future lease
revenue or expense; no effect has been given &awvan, new business, cancellations, contingenalenot future rate changes. Total future
sublease rentals from revenue earning equipmergrperating leases as lessee of $69 million ataded within the future minimum rental
payments for operating leases as lessor.
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15. DEBT
Weighted
Average December 3:
Interest
Rate Maturities 2005 2004
(In thousands
Shor-term debt and current portion of Ic-term debt
Capital lease obligatior 5.42% 200¢ $ 137 907
Unsecured foreign obligatiol 6.81% 200¢ 26,08: 42,18¢
Current portion of lon-term debt, including capital leas 200¢ 243,21t 346,45:
Total shor-term debt and current portion of Ic-term debt 269,43¢ 389,55(
Long-term debt
U.S. commercial papt¢ 4.4(% 201(¢ 322,71 119,00(
Canadian commercial pag 3.32% 201(¢ 67,08( 80,86¢
Unsecured U.S. notdd):
Debenture: 9.3% 2007-201¢ 125,91! 325,87(
Mediumr-term notes 5.3(% 200¢€-202% 1,394,971 795,64(
Unsecured U.S. obligations, principally bank teaarls 4.61% 2007201C 56,20( 55,00(
Unsecured foreign obligatiol 5.9(% 200¢-201(¢ 118,27: 119,88:
Asse-backed securitie® 6.1&% 200€-201( 71,55 186,45
Capital lease obligatior 8.67% 2006201z 1,68: 52,49(
Total before fair market value adjustm: 2,158,38 1,735,20!
Fair market value adjustment on notes subject tiging () 75¢ 4,911
2,159,141 1,740,12
Current portion of lon-term debt, including capital leas (243,219 (346,459
Long-term debt 1,915,92 1,393,66!
Total debi $2,185,36! 1,783,211

Q) Ryder had unamortized original issue discountslé fillion at both December 31, 2005 and 2C

(2)  Asse-backed securities represent outstanding term débbnsolidated VIEs. Asset-backed securities allateralized by cash reserve deposits and revesanging

equipment of consolidated VIEs totaling $97 millaord $218 million at December 31, 2005 and 200dpeetively

(3) The notional amount of executed interest rate svigssgnated as fair value hedges was $185 millizsh $285 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, eetpely.
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Maturities of debt (including sinking fund régements) and minimum payments under capital kease as follows:

Capital Leases Debt
(In thousands)

2006 $ 844 268,71t
2007 58€ 322,38!
2008 387 116,49!
2009 154 200,02(
2010 27 665,81
Thereafter 60 610,11:

Total 2,05¢ 2,183,541
Imputed interest (239)

Present value of minimum capitalized lease paymen 1,82(
Current portion 722

Long-term capitalized lease obligations $1,09¢

Ryder can borrow up to $870 million througglabal revolving credit facility with a syndicaté lenders. The credit facility is used
primarily to finance working capital internationatind provide support for the issuance of commepaper. The credit facility can also be
used to issue up to $75 million in letters of ctéttiere were no facility-supported letters of dredtstanding at December 31, 2005). At
Ryder’s option, the interest rate on borrowingsairrttie credit facility is based on LIBOR, primedéeal funds or local equivalent rates.
During May 2005, the terms of the credit facilitgre amended thereby extending the expiration ofatiéty one year to 2010 and reducing
the current annual facility fee from 15.0 basisy®to 11.0 basis points. The annual facility fpplies to the total facility of $870 million, a
is based on Ryder’s current long-term credit rairighe credit facility contains no provisions riesing its availability in the event of a
material adverse change to Ryder’s business opagathowever, the credit facility does contain dead representatives and warranties,
events of default, cross-default provisions, anthae affirmative and negative covenants. In ottdemaintain availability of funding, Ryder
must maintain a ratio of debt to consolidated thiggnet worth, as defined in the agreement, oftleas or equal to 300%. The ratio at
December 31, 2005 was 128%. At December 31, 20054 #illion was available under the credit facilioreign borrowings of $67 million
were outstanding under the facility at December2805.

Commercial paper is supported by the longtegvolving credit facility previously discussedurQntent is to continue to renew the
revolving credit facility on a long-term basis, gedi to market conditions. As a result, the comnadmaper borrowings supported by the
long-term revolving credit facility are classified long-term debt.

During 2005, we issued $600 million of ungecumedium-term notes, of which $225 million maturdépril 2010, $175 million mature
in April 2011 and $200 million mature in June 20TRe proceeds from the notes were used for generpbrate purposes.

In September 2005, Ryder filed a new univeskalf registration statement with the Securiied Exchange Commission to issue up to
$800 million of securities, including $65 milliorf available securities that will be carried forwdrdm the existing shelf registration
statement. The universal shelf registration statérbhecame effective in November 2005. Proceeds ffebt issuances under the universal
shelf registration statement are expected to be fssegeneral corporate purposes, which may incagstal expenditures, share repurchases
and reduction in commercial paper borrowings. At
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December 31, 2005, Ryder had $800 million of debusties available for issuance under the latgistration statement.

Effective July 1, 2003, Ryder consolidated twehicle lease trusts that were considered VIEs. activities of each of the separately rated
vehicle lease trusts and related debt were orilyiaéflorded off-balance sheet treatment under egsdccounting rules. Each of these trusts
was established as part of vehicle securitizatiangactions. These vehicle securitization transastiypically involve the sale and leaseback
of revenue earning equipment under lease to odolgss to a vehicle lease trust (a special purpasity), which purchases the revenue
earning equipment with cash raised primarily thiotlge issuance of debt instruments in the publickata. Third-party investors have
recourse to the revenue earning equipment in tietstand benefit from credit enhancements provigeyder in the form of up-front cash
reserve deposits as additional security to thenéxkat delinquencies and losses on customer |leaskrelated vehicle sales are incurred. As
of December 31, 2005, only one trust remains isterice and the outstanding principal of asset-lshs&rior notes issued by the trust in
connection with this transaction was $72 million.D*ecember 31, 2005, the cash reserve deposit aaént by Ryder totaled $15 million.
Other than the credit enhancements, Ryder doeguasantee the third-party investors’ interestdhiatehicle lease trust.

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, Ryder hadrketif credit and surety bonds outstanding, whranarily guarantee various insurance
activities. See Note 17, “Guarantees,” for furttliscussion on outstanding letters of credit anétsuvonds.

December 3.
2005 2004
(In thousands
Letters of credi $213,97° 168,21:
Surety bond: 53,25¢ 85,46¢

16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Interest Rate Risk

From time to time, we enter into interesersivap and cap agreements to manage our fixedaaizble interest rate exposure and to better
match the repricing of debt instruments to thabwf portfolio of assets. We assess the risk thangés in interest rates will have either on the
fair value of debt obligations or on the amountutfire interest payments by monitoring changesterest rate exposures and by evaluating
hedging opportunities. Ryder regularly monitorerest rate risk attributable to both Rydesutstanding or forecasted debt obligations ab
as Ryder’s offsetting hedge positions. This risknagement process involves the use of analytichhigaes, including cash flow sensitivity
analysis, to estimate the expected impact of claimgmterest rates on Ryder’s future cash flows.

During 2004 and 2001, Ryder entered intoresttrate swaps with notional values of $27 millaard $22 million, respectively. The swaps
were accounted for as cash flow hedges wherebyeeaiwed foreign variable interest payments in ergedor having made fixed interest
payments. The 2004 swap agreement matures in 2Q0if and the 2001 swap agreement matured in 20@ciitical terms of the interest
rate swaps and the hedged interest payments wesathe. Accordingly, no ineffectiveness aroseirgjdab these cash flow hedges. The fair
value of the swaps was recognized as an adjustméAtcumulated other comprehensive losarly amounts that were reclassified or tha
expect to be reclassified to earnings in the negtwe months from “Accumulated other comprehen&igs” are immaterial.

During 2002, Ryder entered into interest stap agreements designated as fair value hedgaelmhwe received fixed interest rate
payments in exchange for having made variableéstente
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payments. The differential to be paid or received @ccrued and recognized as interest expensesderiber 31, 2005, these interest rate
swap agreements effectively changed $185 milliofixefd-rate debt instruments with a weighted-averfiged interest rate of 6.7% to
LIBOR-based floating-rate debt at a weighted-avenage interest of 6.2%. At December 31, 2004 dlieterest rate swap agreements
effectively changed $285 million of fixed-rate détdtruments with a weighted-average interestoa7% to LIBOR-based floating-rate
debt at a weighted-average rate of 4.6%. The cupmntion of the fair value of the interest rateapnagreements was classified in “Prepaid
expenses and other current assets” with the remaglassified in “Direct financing leases and othssets.” Changes in the fair value of the
interest rate swaps were offset by changes inainezélue of the debt instruments. Accordingly réheas no ineffectiveness related to these
interest rate swaps. During 2005 and 2004, theedserin the fair value of interest rate swapsedt&4 million and $9 million, respectively.
These contracts mature from January 2006 to Oc2®@r.

During 2002, Ryder also entered into tworiesé rate cap agreements covering a total notamalunt of $160 million. These cap
agreements expired in October and November of ZD@&.interest rate cap agreements served as anra@hedge against increases in
interest rates and were not designated as hedgasdounting purposes. During 2004 and 2003, tkkeedse in the fair value of interest rate
caps totaled approximately $0.1 million and $0.4iam, respectively, and was reflected as inteeagtense.

We estimate the fair value of derivativesdubsn dealer quotations.

Currency Risk

From time to time, we use forward foreignreacy exchange contracts and crosgency swaps to manage our exposure to moverire
foreign currency exchange rates.

During 2004, Ryder entered into forward fgrecurrency exchange contracts to mitigate theaidkreign currency movements on
intercompany transactions denominated in Britishrbsterling. These forward foreign currency exgfgacontracts were accounted for as
cash flow hedges and matured in February and M@%.28t December 31, 2004, the aggregate notiorlabvaf the outstanding contracts \
$3 million. The fair values of the forward foreigarrency exchange contracts were recognized adjastment to “Accumulated other
comprehensive loss.” Amounts reclassified from “dowlated other comprehensive loss” were immaterial.

In November 2002, Ryder entered into a fieety$78 million crossurrency swap to hedge our net investment in agorsubsidiary. Th
hedge was effective in eliminating the risk of igrecurrency movements on the investment and, @s, suas accounted for under the net
investment hedging rules. Losses (gains) assocwgtacchanges in the fair value of the crassrency swap for the years ended Decembe
2005, 2004 and 2003 were $(6) million, $7 millioxdeb6 million, respectively, and were reflectedhia currency translation adjustment
element within “Accumulated other comprehensives [oBy rule, interest costs associated with thessfourrency swap are required to be
reflected in “Accumulated other comprehensive lo€simulative interest costs associated with thessmurrency swap reflected in
“Accumulated other comprehensive loss” were $3iatriland $2 million at December 31, 2005 and 208dpectively, and will be recognized
in earnings upon sale or repatriation of our neédtment in the foreign subsidiary.

Fair Value

The following table represents the carryingpants and estimated fair values of certain of Rgdaancial instruments at December 31,
2005 and 2004. The fair value of a financial instemt is the amount at which the instrument couléXmhanged in a current transaction
between willing parties (fair
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values were based on dealer quotations that regréfsediscounted future cash flows through matwitexpiration using current rates):

December 3:
2005 2004
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
(In thousands
Assets:
Interest rate sway $ 75€ 75¢ 4,911 4,911
Forward foreign currency exchange contr: — — 10C 10C
Liabilities:
Total debi® 2,183,541 2,188,41I 1,729,81! 1,795,09:
Interest rate swa 18¢ 18¢ — —
Crost-currency swaj 9,73¢ 9,73¢ 15,94¢ 15,94¢

(1)  The carrying amount of total debt excludes capé@akes of $2 million and $53 million at December &105 and 2004, respective

The carrying amounts of all other instrumeagproximated fair value at December 31, 2005 are 20

17. GUARANTEES

Ryder has executed various agreements wittth plarties that contain standard indemnificatitrat may require Ryder to indemnify a
third party against losses arising from a varidtynatters such as lease obligations, financingexgents, environmental matters, and
agreements to sell business assets. In each &f ittances, payment by Ryder is contingent omther party bringing about a claim under
the procedures outlined in the specific agreemotmally, these procedures allow Ryder to disphédther party’s claim. Additionally,
Ryder’s obligations under these agreements maibetl in terms of the amount and (or) timing oy ataim. We cannot predict the
maximum potential amount of future payments un@etain of these agreements due to the contingéuatenaf the potential obligations and
the distinctive provisions that are involved in le@udividual agreement. Historically, no such paytsenade by Ryder have had a material
adverse effect on our business. We believe tratass were incurred in any of these matters,abkg Would not result in a material adverse
impact on our consolidated results of operationfin@ncial position.
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At December 31, 2005 and 2004, the maximutardenable exposure of guarantees and the corrdampiiability, if any, recorded on tl
consolidated balance sheet were as follows:

December 31, 200! December 31, 20C
Maximum Carrying Maximum Carrying
Exposure of Amount of Exposure o Amount of
Guarantee Guarantee Liability Guarantet Liability

(In thousands
Vehicle residual value guarantees:
Sales and leaseback arrangements — end of term

guarantees®) $ 62¢ 4 5,65t 22
Finance lease progran 3,83¢ 1,73(C 4,49¢ 1,344
Used vehicle financing 4,45( 1,197 4,101 1,57¢
Standby letters of credit 7,29¢ — 12,20¢ —
Total $16,21! 2,931 26,46( 2,94z

(1) Amounts exclude contingent rentals associated ieitllual value guarantees on certain vehicles helder operating leases for which the guaranteescaraitionec
upon disposal of the leased vehicles prior to the @f their lease term. At December 31, 2005 ar@28yder’'s maximum exposure for such guarantess wa
approximately $161 million and $222 million, respeely, with $5 million and $6 million, respectiyetecorded as a liability

Ryder has entered into transactions for thea@d operating leaseback of revenue earning eagrip In connection with the transactions,
Ryder provided the lessors with residual value guotees at the end of the lease term. Therefotteg ifales proceeds from the final disposi
of any such vehicle are less than the correspondisigual value guarantee, Ryder is required totpayifference to the lessor. Our
maximum exposure for such guarantees was approafyr®t million and $6 million at December 31, 200% 2004, respectively.

Ryder provided vehicle residual value guagastto independent third parties relating to custdinance lease programs. If the sales
proceeds from the final disposition of the assegdess than the residual value guarantee, Rydeqisred to pay the difference to the
independent third party. At December 31, 2005 a&@42our maximum exposure for such guarantees p@®smately $4 million with
$2 million and $1 million, respectively, recordeslaliability. The major finance lease program wegsaced with a new program in 2003,
where we no longer provide any form of residualieaguarantee.

Ryder maintains agreements with independerd parties for the financing of used vehicle guases by customers. Certain agreements
require that Ryder provide financial guaranteesl@iaulted customer contracts up to a maximum exgasmount. At December 31, 2005 .
2004, our maximum exposure for such guaranteesapaoximately $4 million with $1 million and $2 tidin, respectively, recorded as a
liability.

At December 31, 2005, Ryder had letters eflitrand surety bonds outstanding, which primagilgrantee the payment of insurance
claims. Certain of these letters of credit and tsubends guarantee insurance activities assocwitbdnsurance claim liabilities transferred
conjunction with the sale of our automotive tramspaoisiness, reported as discontinued operatiopsevious years. The entity that assumed
these liabilities filed for protection under Chapté of the United States Bankruptcy Code on Jaly2B®05. To date, the insurance claims,
representing per-claim deductibles payable unded-ffarty insurance policies, have been paid amdicoe to be paid by the company that
assumed such liabilities. However, if all or a portof the estimated outstanding assumed clainappfoximately $7 million at December
2005 are unable to be paid, the third-party insunesly have recourse against certain of the outistahetters of credit provided by Ryder in
order to satisfy the unpaid claim deductibles. e to reduce our potential exposure to thesenslaive have received an irrevocable lett
credit from the
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purchaser of the business referred to above tgt&@nmillion at December 31, 2005. Periodically jraependent actuarial valuation will be
made in order to better estimate the amount oftadéng insurance claim liabilities. At December 3004, the estimated outstanding
assumed claims were $12 million for which we hazkieed approximately $8 million in letters of criedi

18. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

In the normal course of business, Ryder aeguangible long-lived assets that require spetifiatment at the end of their useful lives or
related contractual period. SFAS No. 143, “Accougfior Asset Retirement Obligations,” prescribes dlacounting treatment to be followed
for these asset retirement obligations. We havetasrement obligations recorded in accrued egesmmnd other non-current liabilities
related to the removal of underground fuel stotagés and leasehold improvements, and the retireafe®@rtain components of revenue
earning equipment. We have no assets legally cestirfor purposes of settling asset retiremengakins.

The aggregate carrying amount of our assieéneent obligations with changes therein durin@2Was as follows:

In

thou(sands)

Beginning balance $ 5,36¢
Liabilities incurred 1,80z
Liabilities settled (747)
Accretion expense 33¢
Adoption of FIN 47 5,58(
Revisions to estimate 91€
Ending balance $13,25¢

19. SHAREHOLDERY¢ EQUITY
Share Repurchase Program:

In October 2005, our Board of Directors auited a $175 million share repurchase program aygeriod not to exceed two years. Share
repurchases of common stock are made periodigathpéen-market transactions and are subject to medkelitions, legal requirements and
other factors. At December 31, 2005, we had re@seth and retired approximately 2.6 million shareden the October 2005 program at an
aggregate cost of $109 million. Management hadksieed a prearranged written plan under Rule 1Dbbthe Securities Exchange Act of
1934 as part of the October 2005 program, whiadwalfor share repurchases during Ryder’s quarkdalgkout periods as set forth in the
trading plan.

In July 2004, our Board of Directors authedza two-year share repurchase program intendedtigate the dilutive impact of shares
issued under our various employee stock optionsémek purchase plans. Under the July 2004 progshares of common stock were
purchased in an amount not to exceed the numishrasés issued to employees upon the exercisealf sptions or through employee stock
purchase plans since May 1, 2004, which totaledcqpately 2.4 million shares at December 31, 200% July 2004 program limited
aggregate share repurchases to no more than 3ignnsihares of Ryder common stock. During the fogpaarter of 2005, we replaced the
July 2004 program with the October 2005 prograneaqreviously. In 2005 and 2004, we repurchasedetivéd approximately 1.0 million
and 1.4 million shares, respectively, under thg 2004 program at an aggregate cost of $43 millioth $62 million, respectively.
Management was granted the authority to establisfiding plan under Rule 10b5-1 as part of the 2004 program.
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In 2003, our Board of Directors authorizetva-year share repurchase program intended to aiétjgn part, the dilutive impact of shares
issued under our various employee stock optionsémek purchase plans. Under the 2003 program, sledi@mmon stock were purchases
a dollar amount not to exceed the proceeds gemefia the issuance of common stock to employeesesianuary 1, 2003 up to
$90 million. During the second quarter of 2004,amenpleted the 2003 program. In 2004 and 2003, werohased and retired approximately
2.4 million and 117,500 shares, respectively, utider2003 program at an aggregate cost of $87omiind $3 million, respectively.

20. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The following summary sets forth the compdaef other comprehensive income (loss), net aofaagumulated in shareholders’ equity:

Additional Accumulatec
Currency Minimum Unrealizec Other
Translatior Pensior Gain (Loss) Comprehensiv:
Adjustments Liability on Derivative Loss
(In thousands
Balance at January 1, 20 $(41,31YH (228,819 (499 (270,626
2003 Activity 52,30¢ 41,37¢ 28€ 93,97(
Balance at December 31, 2C 10,99: (187,44 (207) (176,65¢)
2004 Activity 27,98: (1,072 324 27,23t
Balance at December 31, 2C 38,97¢ (188,51 117 (149,42)
2005 Activity (21,029 (32,169 (305 (53,499
Balance at December 31, 2005 $ 17,95: (220,68) (189 (202,919

21. EARNINGS PER SHARE INFORMATIO"

A reconciliation of the number of shares ugedomputing basic and diluted EPS follows:

Years ended December

2005 2004 2003
(In thousands
Weightec-average shares outstand— Basic 63,75¢ 64,28( 62,954
Effect of dilutive options and nonvested st 802 1,391 917
Weightec-average shares outstand— Diluted 64,56( 65,67 63,87
Anti-dilutive options not included abo 1,17¢ 93 3,231

22. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS

Stock Option Plans

Ryder sponsors various stock option and itieeiplans that are shareholder-approved and peheigrant of share options and shares to
our employees for up to 8 million shares of comratmtk. Option awards are generally granted to eya@e and directors for purchase of
common stock at prices equal to the market prideyafer’'s stock at the time of grant. Options grdntader all plans generally vest one-third
each year based on three years of service andnwawmre than 10-year contractual terms.
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The following table summarizes the statuswfstock option plans:

Years ended December

2005 2004 2003

Weighted- Weightec- Weightec-

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

(Shares in thousand

Beginning of yea 4,49t $28.6( 6,80¢ $25.4¢ 8,61¢ $25.1¢
Granted 1,24¢ 44.3¢ 1,23¢ 37.8: 1,15C 22.3¢
Exercisec (992 26.0: (3,309 25.67 (1,700 22.2¢
Forfeited (212) 38.61 (239) 27.71 (1,269 25.07
End of yeal 4,53¢ $33.0: 4,49¢ $28.6( 6,80¢ $25.4¢
Exercisable at end of ye 2,30¢ $27.2¢ 2,15k $25.94 4,57¢ $26.4(
Available for future gran 4,98¢ NA 3,36( NA 4,481 NA

Information about options in various pricagas at December 31, 2005 follows:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Remaining Weighted- Weighted-

Life Average Average
Price Ranges Shares (In years) Price Shares Price

(Shares in thousands)

$15.0(-20.00 357 4.€ $17.47 357 $17.47
20.00-25.00 691 4.4 21.9¢ 39C 21.71
25.0(-35.00 1,04: 3.1 27.6( 99C 27.3¢
35.0(-40.00 1,26¢ 4.4 36.7¢ 554 36.52
40.00-45.00 1,12¢ 6.1 44.7¢ 1 43.3¢
45.0(-55.00 50 5. 50.4¢ 16 50.4¢
Total 4,53¢ 4.€ $33.02 2,30¢ $27.2¢

Stock Purchase Plan:

The Employee Stock Purchase Plan providepddpdic offerings to substantially all U.S. andr@adian employees to subscribe to shares
of Ryder’s common stock at 85% of the fair market valueitreethe date of offering or the last day of theghase period, whichever is le
The stock purchase plan currently in effect prosifter quarterly purchase periods and stock purchasest be held for 90 days. The U.K.
Share Investment Plan provides for periodic offgsito substantially all U.K. employees to subsctishares of Ryder's common stock at
the fair market value on the date of the offering.
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The following table summarizes the statuRydler’'s stock purchase plans:

Years ended December

2005 2004 2003

Weighted- Weightec- Weightec-

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price

(Shares in thousand

Beginning of yea — — — — — $ —
Granted 251 31.21] 41¢ 33.5¢ 547 19.9(
Exercisec (251) 31.21 (41¢) 33.5¢ (547) 19.9(
Forfeited — — = — = —
End of yeal = $ — _— $__— — $_—
Exercisable at end of ye — NA — NA = NA
Available for future gran 1,06t NA 31¢ NA 73: NA

Share-Based Compensation Fair Value Assumption

The fair value of each option award is estedan the date of grant using the Black-Scholestdheoption-pricing valuation model. The
following table sets forth the weighted-averageuagstions used in Ryder’s valuation of stock optipants for pro forma disclosures of
share-based compensation determined under theafaig method of accounting:

Years ended December

2005 2004 2003
Dividend yield 1.5% 1.7% 2.6%
Expected volatility 25.1% 30.7% 29.7%
Option plans
Risk-free interest rat 3.6% 3.0% 3.3%
Expected tern 4 years 4 year 6 year:
Gran-date fair value per optic $9.7: $9.6( $5.74
Purchase plan:
Risk-free interest rat 2.8% 1.2% 1.2%
Expected tern 0.25 yea 0.25 yes 0.25 yes
Gran-date fair value per optic $7.5( $8.1¢ $4.7¢

Nonvested Stock Plan:

Key employee plans also provide for the isseaof nonvested stock (restricted stock) or stotits at no cost to the employee. The value
of nonvested stock, equal to the fair market valihe time of grant, is recorded in shareholdegsiity as deferred compensation and
recognized as compensation expense as the nonwtstkdvests over the periods established for geat generally ratably over three years.
Awards under a non-employee director plan may lésgranted in tandem with nonvested stock unit®atost to the grantee. The value of
nonvested stock units is recognized as compensexjpense ratably over the vesting period of therdwa
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The following table summarizes informatioroabnonvested stock awards:

Years ended December

2005 2004 2003

Weighted- Weightec- Weightec-

Average Average Average

Grant Date Grant Date Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value

(Shares in thousand

Beginning of yea 27E $28.1¢ 297 $21.3¢€ 341 $20.8¢
Granted 16C 39.4¢ 94 40.97 79 23.7¢
Vested (110) 24.2¢ (90) 20.87 (46) 22.57
Forfeited (28 42.0% (21 21.72 (82 20.8i
End of yeal 297 $34.4¢ 27¢ $28.1¢ 29z $21.3¢€

Annual compensation expense of nonvested stdaled approximately $3 million, $2 million afd million in 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

23. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
Pension Plans

Ryder sponsors several defined benefit pangd@ns covering most employees not covered byrnsadministered plans, including certain
employees in foreign countries. These plans gelggradvide participants with benefits based on ge#rservice and career-average
compensation levels. The funding policy for thelsmp is to make contributions based on annual a@osts plus amortization of unfunded
past service liability, but not greater than theximaim allowable contribution deductible for fedeimtome tax purposes. The majority of the
plans’ assets are invested in a master trustithatrn, is primarily invested in listed stocks dmahds.

Ryder also participates in multiemployer glémat provide defined benefits to certain emplsyamvered by collective-bargaining
agreements. Such plans are usually administereddmard of trustees comprised of the managemehegdarticipating companies and labor
representatives. The net pension cost of these gagqual to the annual contribution determineacicordance with the provisions of
negotiated labor contracts. Assets contributedith plans are not segregated or otherwise regtriotprovide benefits only to employees of
Ryder.
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Pension Expens
Pension expense was as follows:

Years ended December
2005 2004 2003
(In thousands

Compan-administered plan:

Service cos $ 37,25: 36,47 34,14
Interest cos 76,51: 71,46¢ 66,68’
Expected return on plan ass (90,65%) (82,317 (64,250)
Amortization of transition ass (29 (29 (26)
Recognized net actuarial lo 30,03: 31,63¢ 39,94
Amortization of prior service co: 1,421 2,18¢ 2,27¢
54,52¢ 59,42; 78,77
Union-administered plan 4,69¢ 4,012 3,671
Net pension expen: $ 59,227 63,43¢ 82,44¢
Compan-administered plan:
u.sS. $ 39,59¢ 44,48 61,94:
Non-U.S. 14,93: 14,93¢ 16,83(
54,52¢ 59,42: 78,77
Union-administered plan 4,69¢ 4,012 3,671
$ 59,22° 63,43¢ 82,44¢

The following table sets forth the weighteaiage actuarial assumptions used for Ryder’s pargans in determining annual pension
expense:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
Years ended December Years ended December
2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003
Discount rate 5.90% 6.00% 6.50% 5.58% 5.61% 5.68%
Rate of increase in compensation le\ 4.00% 5.00% 5.00% 3.50% 3.50% 3.50%
Expected lon-term rate of return on plan ass 8.50% 8.50% 8.50% 7.92% 7.92% 8.40%
Transition amortization in yea 8 9 9 7 7 8
Gain and loss amortization in yei 8 9 9 8 8 8

The return on plan assets assumption refthetsveighted-average of the expected long-teresrat return for the broad categories of
investments held in the plans. The expected long-tate of return is adjusted when there are furetdal changes in expected returns in the
plan assets.
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Obligations and Funded Status

The following table sets forth the balanceettimpact, as well as the benefit obligationsetssand funded status associated with Ryder’s

pension plans:

Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligations at January
Service cos
Interest cos
Actuarial loss
Benefits paic
Transfers
Foreign currency exchange rate char

Benefit obligations at December

Change in plan asse

Fair value of plan assets at Janua
Actual return on plan asse
Employer contributiot
Plan participan’ contributions
Benefits paic
Transfers
Foreign currency exchange rate char

Fair value of plan assets at Decembe

Funded statu

Unrecognized transition ass

Unrecognized prior service cc

Unrecognized net actuarial lo
Net amount recognize

Amounts recognized in the balance sheet sboki

Accrued benefit liability

Intangible asset

Accumulated other comprehensive loss -tax)
Net amount recognize

December 3.
2005 2004
(In thousands
$1,330,35! 1,202,95.
37,25: 36,47:
76,51: 71,46¢
96,59 47,48¢
(45,340 (44,59
(5,019 —
(22,479 16,57¢
1,467,89 1,330,35!
1,106,38! 964,89(
94,74¢ 101,07¢
12,28¢ 69,68
2,22€ 2,42:
(45,340) (44,59))
(5,019 —
(17,759 12,90¢
1,147,53 1,106,38
(320,359 (223,97()
(179 (221)
7,33: 8,80«
427,58 370,76t
$ 114,39¢ 155,37
2005 2004

$(237,67Y) (153,289
7,338 8,80¢
344,73t 299,86.

$ 114,39¢ 155,37
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Our annual measurement dates are Decembs&io8both U.S. and non-U.S. pension plans. Thetailhg table sets forth the weighted-
average actuarial assumptions used for Ryder'sigreiptans in determining funded status:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans

December 3: December 3:
2005 2004 2005 2004
Discount rate 5.65% 5.90% 5.00% 5.58%
Rate of increase in compensation le\ 4.00% 4.00% 3.62% 3.50%

For funded plans, our pension accumulatefitesbligation has exceeded the fair value of plan assets since 2002. At December 31,
2005 and 2004, our pension obligations were grehar the fair value of our plan assets for our. @&l non-U.S. plans as follows:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans Total
December 3: December 3: December 3.
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
(In thousands
Projected benefit obligatic $1,187,16 1,082,32 280,72« 248,02¢ 1,467,89. 1,330,35!I
Fair value of plan asse 939,72 912,49: 207,81¢ 193,89 1,147,53 1,106,38!I
Funded statu $ (247,44 (169,83) (72,90 (54,139 (320,35 (223,970)
Accumulated benefit obligatic $1,116,03: 1,021,09:i 269,17¢ 238,57t 1,385,211 1,259,67.

Plan Asset:

The percentage of fair value of total asbgtasset category and target allocations is asvisti

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
Actual December 3 Target Actual December 3 Target
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
Asset category

Equity securitie: 76% 75% 70% 70% 76% 76% 7% 7%
Debt securitie: 21% 22% 26% 26% 23% 23% 23% 23%
Other 3% 3% 4% 4% 1% 1% 0% 0%
100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Ryder’s investment strategy for the pensilamgis to maximize the long-term rate of returrptan assets within an acceptable level of
risk in order to minimize the cost of providing g@n benefits. The plans utilize several investnséraitegies, including actively managed
equity and fixed income strategies and index fuiitie investment policy establishes a target allondbr each asset class. Deviations
between actual pension plan asset allocationsaagdted asset allocations may occur as a resinvestment performance during a month.
Rebalancing of our pension plan asset portfoliasmceach month based on the prior month’s enditanloes.
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The following table details pension benedxpected to be paid in each of the next five figears and in aggregate for the five fiscal y
thereafter:

Benefits
(In thousands)
2006 $ 51,75
2007 54,18¢
2008 57,63¢
2009 61,49¢
2010 65,85¢
2011-2015 408,43t

For 2006, pension contributions to Ryder'S Lpension plans and non-U.S. pension plans ameast to be $65 million and $6 million,
respectively.

Savings Plans

Ryder also has defined contribution savinigagthat are available to substantially all U1gl €anadian employees. Costs recognized for
these plans equal to Ryder’s total contributionsictv are based on employee classification and reay dtombination of fixed contributions,
employee contributions and the level of Ryder'dgmanance, totaled $11 million in 2005, $19 million2004 and $15 million in 2003.

Supplemental Pension, Deferred Compensation and Lg-Term Compensation Plans

Ryder has a non-qualified supplemental penglan covering certain U.S. employees, which mtesifor incremental pension payments
from Ryder’s funds so that total pension paymenqtsakthe amounts that would have been payable Rgder’s principal pension plans if it
were not for limitations imposed by income tax dagjons. The accrued pension expense liabilityteeldo this plan was $29 million and
$26 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respelgti

Ryder also has deferred compensation platgptrmit eligible U.S. employees, officers anabdiors to defer a portion of their
compensation. The deferred compensation liabiligluding Ryder matching amounts and accumulatewirgs, totaled $23 million and
$24 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respelgti

Ryder also has long-term compensation pladgiuwhich the Compensation Committee of the Bo#iirectors is authorized to reward
key executives with additional compensation corgirtgupon attainment of critical business objecti¥s plan years prior to 2005,
performance is measured each year of the planithgilly against an annual performance goal. Achiset of the performance target or
failure to achieve the performance target in orer yioes not affect the target, performance goat®mpensation for any other plan year. The
amounts earned under the plan vest six and eighteaths subsequent to the end of the plan’s theee-gycle. For the 2005 plan year,
performance is measured based on achieving céetagis of net operating revenue growth, earningsspare growth and return on capital
over an approximate three-year period. If cert@rigrgmance levels are achieved, the amounts earméer the plan vest six months
subsequent to the end of the plan’s cycle. Compiemsaxpense under the plan is recognized in egsniver the vesting period. Total
compensation expense recognized under the plasdvasllion, $2 million and $0.6 million in 2005, 28 and 2003, respectively. The
accrued compensation liability related to thesaplaere $5 million and $3 million at December 3102 and 2004, respectively.

Ryder has established grantor trusts (Rahist$) to provide funding for benefits payable urttie supplemental pension plan, deferred
compensation plans and long-term compensation pldresassets

96




Table of Contents

RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

held in the trusts at December 31, 2005 and 20Guated to $27 million and $25 million, respectivelfhe Rabbi Trusts’ assets consist of
short-term cash investments and a managed portdbkguity securities, including Ryder's commoncétoThese assets, except for the
investment in Ryder's common stock, are includetDimect financing leases and other assets” bectheeare available to the general
creditors of Ryder in the event of Rydgisolvency. The equity securities are classifiedrading assets and stated at fair value. Baiizeg
and unrealized gains and losses are included is¢®lianeous income, net.” The Rabbi Trusts’ investiof $3 million in Ryder's common
stock, at both December 31, 2005 and 2004 is teffeat historical cost and included in shareholdegaity.

Other Postretirement Benefits

Ryder sponsors plans that provide retiredleyses with certain healthcare and life insuranmesfiits. Substantially all employees not
covered by union-administered health and welfaa@phre eligible for the healthcare benefits. Hhealte benefits for Ryder’s principal plans
are generally provided to qualified retirees uratpe 65 and eligible dependents. Generally theses péjuire employee contributions that
vary based on years of service and include prawssibat limit Ryder contributions.

Total periodic postretirement benefit expewss as follows:

Years ended December

2005 2004 2003
(In thousands

Service cos $ 1,007 964 957

Interest cos 2,122 2,29t 2,54¢

Recognized net actuarial lo 282 441 564

Amortization of prior service crec (1,15% (1,159 (1,159

Postretirement benefit exper $ 2,254 2,54 2,91(C
Compan-administered plan:

u.S. $ 1,86¢ 2,21¢ 2,70¢

Non-U.S. 38€ 32¢ 20z

$ 2,25¢ 2,54 2,91(

The following table sets forth the weightaaiage discount rates used in determining annuadgie postretirement benefit expense:

U.S. Plans Non-U.S. Plans
Years ended December Years ended December
2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003
Discount rate 5.90% 6.00% 6.50% 6.00% 6.25% 6.75%
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Ryder’s postretirement benefit plans arefantied. The following table sets forth the balasleeet impact, as well as the benefit
obligations and rate assumptions associated witteRy postretirement benefit plans:

December 3:
2005 2004

(In thousands
Benefit obligations at January $ 39,14 42,46¢
Service cos 1,001 964
Interest 2,12: 2,29t
Actuarial loss (gain 2,14t (2,259
Benefits paic (5,237) (4,072)
Decrease due to Medicare Subs — (42t
Foreign currency exchange rate char 102 171
Benefit obligations at December 39,28t¢ 39,14
Unrecognized prior service cre: 2,92¢ 4,081
Unrecognized net actuarial lo (10,346 8,45¢
Accrued postretirement benefit obligati $ 31,86¢ 34,76:

Our annual measurement dates are Decemis&ioBboth U.S. and non-U.S. postretirement bemméihs. Assumptions used in
determining accrued postretirement benefit oblayatiare as follows:

U.S. Plar Non-U.S. Plar
December 3. December 3.
2005 2004 2005 2004

Discount rate 5.65% 5.90% 5.00% 6.00%
Rate of increase in compensation ley 4.00% 4.004 3.50% 3.50%
Healthcare cost trend rate assumed for next 9.00% 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed tiinge@ltimate trend rate 6.00% 6.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend 201( 201( 2014 201¢

Changing the assumed healthcare cost treées by 1% in each year would not have a materfatebn the accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation at December 31, 2005 or annoatnetirement benefit expense for 2005.

The following table details other postretimrhbenefits expected to be paid in each of théfinexfiscal years and in aggregate for the
five fiscal years thereafter:

Benefits
(In thousands)

2006 $ 3,631
2007 3,462
2008 3,37¢
2009 3,28:¢
2010 3,202
2011-2015 16,96!
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24. ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

Our operations involve storing and dispengiagoleum products, primarily diesel fuel. In 1988 U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA) issued regulations that establishgdirements for testing and replacing undergrounthge tanks. During 1998, we
completed our tank replacement program to comptii thie regulations. In addition, Ryder has recewetices from the EPA and others that
it has been identified as a potentially respongialgy under the Comprehensive Environmental Respddompensation and Liability Act,
the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Adtsémilar state statutes and may be required teeshahe cost of cleanup of 25
identified disposal sites.

Ryder’s environmental expenses, which inatbidenediation costs as well as normal recurringeagps such as licensing, testing and
waste disposal fees, were $9 million, $10 milliorl &12 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectivélye carrying amount of Ryder’s
environmental liabilities was $17 million and $1@limn at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectivielyder's asset retirement obligations,
which are described in Note 18, “Asset Retiremelnligations,” are not included above.

The ultimate cost of Ryder’s environmentabllities cannot presently be projected with cettatdue to the presence of several unknown
factors, primarily the level of contamination, thffectiveness of selected remediation methodsstége of investigation at individual sites,
the determination of Ryder’s liability in propontido other responsible parties and the recovetalfisuch costs from third parties. Based on
information presently available, management betighat the ultimate disposition of these mattdthpagh potentially material to the results
of operations in any one year, will not have a matadverse effect on Ryder’s financial conditmmliquidity.

25. OTHER MATTERS

Ryder is a party to various claims, legalatt and complaints arising in the ordinary cowkusiness. While any proceeding or
litigation has an element of uncertainty, managerbetieves that the disposition of these mattetbnet have a material impact on the
consolidated financial position, liquidity or resubf operations of Ryder.

26. SEGMENT REPORTINC

Ryder’s operating segments are aggregatedéportable business segments based primarily sipgitar economic characteristics,
products, services, customers and delivery methHoyder operates in three reportable business segn{@éh FMS, which provides full
service leasing, commercial rental and contrachteaance of trucks, tractors and trailers to custsrm the U.S., Canada and the U.K;;

(2) SCS, which provides comprehensive supply chamsulting and lead logistics management solutibassupport customershtire supply
chains, from inbound raw materials through disttiitiru of finished goods throughout North Americalatin America, Europe and Asia; and
(3) DCC, which provides vehicles and drivers as pha dedicated transportation solution in Nortineéxica.

Ryder’s primary measurement of segment firperformance, defined as “Net Before Taxes” (NHicludes an allocation of CSS and
excludes restructuring and other (charges) recesgeniet. CSS represents those costs incurred pougll business segments, including sales
and marketing, human resources, finance, corpsetaces, shared management information systeratgroer solutions, health and safety,
legal and corporate communications. The objectitb@®NBT measurement is to provide clarity on pnefitability of each business segment
and, ultimately, to hold leadership of each busireesgment and each operating segment within eashdas segment accountable for their
allocated share of CSS costs. Certain costs agdamed to be overhead not attributable to any segand as such, remain unallocated in
CSS. Included among the unallocated overhead rémgaivithin CSS are the costs for investor relatjiamgporate communications, public
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affairs and certain executive compensation. CS& @aizibutable to the business segments are dbnellacated to FMS, SCS and DCC as
follows:

« Sales and marketing, finance, corporate serviceshaalth and safety— allocated based upon estimated and plannednesou
utilization;

* Human resource — individual costs within this category are allterhin several ways, including allocation base@stimated
utilization and number of personnel suppor

» Information technolog — allocated principally based upon utilizationateld metrics such as number of users or minut€sbf
time. Custome-related project costs and expenses are allocatie fousiness segment responsible for the pr@ad

» Other — represents purchasing, legal, and other cemdhicosts and expenses including certain perforeshased incentive
compensation costs. Expenses, where allocatetbyages primarily on the number of personnel supdo

Segment results are not necessarily indieaifthe results of operations that would have mecbhad each segment been an independent
stand-alone entity during the periods presentedh Basiness segment follows the same accountinggmhs described in Note ISdmmary
of Significant Accounting Policies.”
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Business segment revenue and NBT are presbatew:

Years ended December
2005 2004 2003
(In thousands

Revenue from external custome
Fleet Management Solutior

Full service leas $1,655,28! 1,633,66! 1,522,46.
Contract maintenanc 133,26t 135,00° 141,11!
Contrac-related maintenanc 176,54 160,55¢ 145,34
Commercial rente 639,23 607,86" 503,32
Other 63,77 69,69( 75,717
Fuel services revent 891,64 683,38 537,17:
Total Fleet Management Solutio 3,559,75: 3,290,17! 2,925,13
Supply Chain Solution 1,637,82 1,354,00: 1,362,42
Dedicated Contract Carrial 543,26 506,10( 514,73
5,740,84 5,150,27: 4,802,29.

Intersegment revenu
Fleet Management Solutiol 361,43t 312,66 306,54(
Eliminations (361,439 (312,669 (306,540
Total revenue $5,740,84 5,150,27: 4,802,29.

NBT:

Fleet Management Solutiol $ 354,35 312,70t 194,94(
Supply Chain Solution 39,39: 37,07¢ 40,06¢
Dedicated Contract Carrial 35,12¢ 29,45( 35,25¢
Eliminations (32,660 (32,729 (33,58¢)
396,21! 346,50° 236,67
Unallocated Central Support Servic (35,75) (33,06) (24,437
Restructuring and other (charges) recoveries (3,379 17,67¢ 23C
Earnings from continuing operations before income$ $ 357,08! 331,12: 212,47!

Our FMS segment leases revenue earning eguipamd provides fuel, maintenance and other angiiervices to the SCS and DCC
segments. Inter-segment revenue and NBT are aambfmt at approximate fair value as if the transast were made with independent third
parties. NBT related to inter-segment equipmentsardices billed to customers (equipment contrdntis included in both FMS and the
business segment which served the customer, theimated (presented as “Eliminations”). The follogitable sets forth equipment
contribution included in NBT for our SCS and DC@sents:

Years ended December
2005 2004 2003
(In thousands

Equipment contributior

Supply Chain Solution $15,86( 14,97: 15,31¢
Dedicated Contract Carrias 16,80( 17,757 18,267
Total $32,66( 32,72¢ 33,58¢
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The following table sets forth depreciatiompense, gains on vehicle sales, net, other nondfzesiyes (credits), net, interest expense
(income) and capital expenditures for the yeargdridecember 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectiaetytotal assets at December 31, 2005
and 2004, respectively, as provided to the chiefajing decision-maker for each of Ryder’s repdetdlnsiness segments:

FMS SCS DCC CSS Eliminations Total
(In thousands

2005

Depreciation expense®) $ 718,92¢ 19,98¢ 1,44( 61 — 740,41!
Gains on vehicles sales, ni $ (47,099 — — — — (47,099
Other non-cash charges (credits), ne@ $ 12,23 67C 58 1,39: — 14,35¢
Interest expense3) $ 116,19 6,31( (2,280) 251 — 120,47:
Total assets $5,461,82. 494,13¢ 117,81¢ 136,62t (177,14) 6,033,26.
Capital expenditures® $1,342,90! 23,39« 1,12¢ 31,95 — 1,399,37!
2004

Depreciation expens®) $ 680,67¢ 23,591 1,46¢ 29¢€ — 706,02¢
Gains on vehicle sales, r $ (34,509 — — — — (34,509
Other noi-cash charges (credits), 12).(5) $ 4,3 80z 39 (22,429 — (17,267)
Interest expens®) $ 98,60¢ 3,824 (2,39%) 77 — 100,11
Total asset $5,174,601 394,19! 104,62¢ 143,24 (133,509 5,683,16
Capital expenditure® $1,062,42; 15,45¢ 53: 13,74t — 1,092,15!
2003

Depreciation expens®) $ 594,95( 27,10: 1,97( 55¢ — 624,58(
Gains on vehicle sales, r $ (15,78() — — — — (15,780)
Other nol-cash charges (credits), 1@ $ 93 373 (34) 2,831 — 3,26°
Interest expens®) $ 94,60( 3,69¢ (2,579 452 — 96,16¢
Capital expenditure® $ 713,79¢ 14,66¢ 732 5,31: — 734,50¢

Q) Depreciation expense associated with CSS assetllamated to business segments based upon estirmateplanned asset utilization. Depreciation exggetotaling
$13 million, $13 million and $16 million during 2802004 and 2003, respectively, associated with &S38ts was allocated to other business segn

2) Includes amortization expens

(3) Interest expense is primarily allocated to the F&8ment since such borrowings are used princigalfynd the purchase of revenue earning equipmsed in FMS
however, with the availability of segment balanieeet information (including targeted segment legeraatios), interest expense (income) is also cédidin SCS and
DCC.

(4)  Excludes FMS acquisitions of $15 million, $149 imilland $97 million in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respwety, primarily comprised of lor-lived assets
(5) 2004 includes CSS gains from properties sold imeation with the relocation of our headquarters pben.

102




Table of Contents

RYDER SYSTEM, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Geographic Information

Years ended December
2005 2004 2003
(In thousands

Revenue
United State: $4,722,02! 4,226,17! 3,933,28:
Foreign:
Canads 483,69¢ 411,84 362,41
Europe 343,22¢ 360,20: 364,22¢
Latin America 172,25! 120,59( 102,75:
Asia 19,64 31,46: 39,617
1,018,82 924,09¢ 869,01:
Total $5,740,84 5,150,27! 4,802,29:
Long-lived assets
United State: $3,498,44; 3,190,45. 3,029,38:i
Foreign:
Canads 380,88: 336,94 282,71¢
Europe 350,64 420,07" 360,83
Latin America 30,44¢ 17,25: 17,38¢
Asia 20,79¢ 22,27 22,630
782,77( 796,54¢ 683,56¢
Total $4,281,21; 3,987,00: 3,712,95

We believe that our diversified portfolio@fstomers across a full array of transportationlagistics solutions and across many indus
will help to mitigate the impact of adverse dowmtiin specific sectors of the economy in the neanédium term. Our portfolio of full
service lease and commercial rental customerstisar@entrated in any one particular industry argyaphic region; however, the largest
concentration is in non-cyclical industries sucticaxl, groceries and beverages. While Ryder deavagnificant portion of its SCS revenue
(slightly over 60% in 2005) from the automotive ustiy, the business is derived from numerous matwfars and suppliers of original
equipment parts. Our largest customer, General idorporation, accounted for approximately 10%mfsolidated revenue in 2005.
General Motors Corporation also accounted for axprately 35%, 30%, and 32% of SCS total revenu20id5, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
None of our customers constituted more than 10%oonéolidated revenue in 2004 or 20
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27. QUARTERLY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Earnings fronm

Continuing Net Earnings
Operations pe per Commor
Earnings fron Common Shar Share
Continuing
Revenue Operations Net Earnings Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
(In thousands, except per share d
2005
First quarter $1,315,61! 41,48¢ 41,48¢ 0.6& 0.64 0.6t 0.64
Second quarter 1,389,811 63,29¢ 63,29¢ 0.9¢ 0.9¢ 0.9¢ 0.9¢
Third quarter 1,490,62: 63,34 63,34 0.9¢ 0.9¢ 0.9¢ 0.9¢
Fourth quarter 1,544,79 59,50( 58,80: 0.94 0.9¢ 0.9¢ 0.97
Full year $5,740,84 227,62 226,92¢ 3.57 3.5¢ 3.5¢€ 3.52
2004
First quarte! $1,212,25! 35,04 35,04: 0.54 0.5¢ 0.54 0.5¢
Second quarte 1,268,91! 63,64¢ 63,64¢ 0.9¢ 0.97 0.9¢ 0.97
Third quartet 1,305,91. 54,28: 54,28 0.8t 0.8: 0.8t 0.8<
Fourth quarte 1,363,19 62,64 62,64 0.9¢ 0.9¢ 0.9¢ 0.9¢
Full year $5,150,27: 215,60! 215,60¢ 3.3 3.2¢ 3.3¢ 3.2¢

Quarterly and year-to -date computationsesfghare amounts are made independently; theréf@eum of per-share amounts for the
guarters may not equal per-share amounts for tae ye

Earnings in 2005 were impacted, in part, Isyade income tax benefit of $8 million (or $0.1 giluted common share), recognized in the
second quarter, associated with the reduction fefrdel income taxes due to the phaseout of incaestfor the State of Ohio.

Earnings in 2004 were impacted, in part, tbgratax gains from properties sold in connectidthvthe relocation of our headquarters of
$0.6 million (or $0.01 per diluted common sharejhe first quarter, $14 million (or $0.21 per dddtcommon share) in the second quarter
and $0.07 million (or $0.01 per diluted common sham the third quarter. Earnings in 2004 were @ispacted, in part, by a net income tax
benefit of $9 million (or $0.14 per diluted commsimare), recognized in the fourth quarter, assatiaith the resolution of various tax
matters.
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Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
Additions
Balance a Transferrec Balance
Beginning Charged tc (from) to Othet at End
Description of Period Earnings Accounts®) Deductions? of Period
(In thousands

2005
Accounts receivable allowanci $ 11,928 8,06¢ — 6,76¢ 13,22
Reserve for residual value guarantee $ 6,20¢ 39C — 1,29¢ 5,30(
Self-insurance accruald® $265,70¢ 147,42 — 147,72: 265,40¢
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assel $ 11,55¢ 103 (705) — 12,36
2004
Accounts receivable allowan: $ 9,361 9,54t — 6,98: 11,92:
Reserve for residual value guarant $ 10,53« 1,25( — 5,57¢ 6,20¢
Self-insurance accrua® $258,29¢ 151,67! — 144,26¢ 265,70t
Valuation allowance on deferred tax as: $ 10,33! 1,024 (204) — 11,55¢
2003
Accounts receivable allowan: $ 8,00: 8,461 — 7,10z 9,361
Reserve for residual value guarant $ 27,77( 1,66¢ — 18,90: 10,53¢
Self-insurance accrua® $241,35( 147,04! — 130,09¢ 258,29¢
Valuation allowance on deferred tax ast $ 14,39 (30%) 3,75¢ — 10,33:

Q) Transferred (from) to other accounts includeguatments (from) to the deferred tax valuatiomwatnce for the effect of foreign currency translatiwhich is recorded in
shareholder equity througt* Accumulated other comprehensive I”

(2) Deductions represent receivables wri-off, lease termination payments and insurance cladlyments during the perio
(3) Seltinsurance accruals include vehicle liability, worg’ compensation, property damage and cargo, which cisaphe majority of our seinsurance programs
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

During 2005, the Audit Committee solicitedposals from the four major accounting firms anddiated an extensive evaluation process
in connection with the selection of the independartitor for the Company for the fiscal year endirgcember 31, 2006. Following this
process, on September 22, 2005, the Audit Comnditeaissed KPMG LLP as its independent auditotlierCompany’s fiscal year ending
December 31, 2006 and appointed Pricewaterhous&@®bpP to serve as the Company’s independent@uit 2006. KPMG LLP, which
served as the Company’s independent auditor fotwbemost recent fiscal years, continued as the [@my's independent auditor for the
remainder of the fiscal year ended December 315200

KPMG LLP’s audit reports on the Compasngonsolidated financial statements for the figealrs ended December 31, 2005 and 200
not contain an adverse opinion or disclaimer ohiag, nor were they qualified or modified as to etainty, audit scope or accounting
principles, except that KPMG LLP’s audit reportethFebruary 15, 2006 included an explanatory papdgrelated to the change in method
of accounting for conditional asset retirement gddiions in 2005 and methods of accounting for Wdeinterest entities and asset retirement
obligations in 2003 and the report dated Febru@r\2005 included an explanatory paragraph relateéde change in methods of accounting
for variable interest entities and asset retirenobtigations in 2003 and method of accounting feodvill and other intangible assets in 2C
The audit reports of KPMG LLP on management’s assest of the effectiveness of internal control direancial reporting and the
effectiveness of internal control over financighoeting as of December 31, 2005 did not contaiadvrerse opinion or disclaimer of opinion,
nor were they qualified or modified as to uncertygiaudit scope or accounting principles. During @ompany’s two most recent fiscal years
and through the date of this report, (i) there weralisagreements between the Company and KPMGolnLéhy matters of accounting
principles or practices, financial statement disale or auditing scope or procedure, which disamesds, if not resolved to the satisfaction of
KPMG LLP, would have caused KPMG LLP to make refiersto the subject matter of the disagreemensirejtort on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements, and (ii) theegeanno “reportable events” as that term is defindtem 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation
S-K. During the two most recent fiscal years andubh the date hereof, neither the Company nor@mpeting on behalf of the Company
consulted PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP regardingthe matters or events set forth in Item 304(adfRegulation S-K.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by tkjzart, Ryder carried out an evaluation, under thperrision and with the participation of
Ryder’'s management, including Ryder’s Chief Exaaufficer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effiveness of the design and operation
of Ryder’s disclosure controls and procedures éised in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(ryler the Securities Exchange Act of 1934). B
upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officed &hief Financial Officer concluded that, at Debem31, 2005, Ryder’s disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rules Bfa}hnd 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchang®ft934) were effective in ensuring
that information required to be disclosed in theonts Ryder files and submits under the Exchangeaferecorded, processed, summarized
and reported as and when required.

Managemen’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management's Report on Internal Control dvi@ancial Reporting and the Report of Independagifered Public Accounting Firm
thereon are set out in Item 8 of Part Il of thisrRo10-K Annual Report.
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Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reportng

During the quarter ended December 31, 20@3etwere no significant changes in Ryder’s intecoatrol over financial reporting or in
other factors that could materially affect or iagenably likely to materially affect such intereahtrols over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.

PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE RE GISTRANT
The information required by Item 10 regardix@gcutive officers is set out in Item 1 of Paof this Form 10-K Annual Report.

Other information required by Item 10 is inporated herein by reference to Ryder’s definifivexy statement, which will be filed with
the Commission within 120 days after the closeheffiscal year.

Ryder has adopted a code of ethics applidatits Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financialfi@er, Controller and Senior Financial
Management. The Code of Ethics forms part of RygRrinciples of Business Conduct which are postethe Corporate Governance pag
Ryder’s website at www.ryder.com.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information required by Item 11 is incorp@diherein by reference to Ryder’s definitive pretgtement, which will be filed with the
Commission within 120 days after the close of ibedl year.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by Item 12 is incorgted herein by reference to Ryder’s definitivexgrstatement, which will be filed with the
Commission within 120 days after the close of fkedl year.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS

Information required by Item 13 is incorp@adiherein by reference to Ryder’s definitive pretgtement, which will be filed with the
Commission within 120 days after the close of fkedl year.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information required by Item 14 is incorp@gherein by reference to Ryder’s definitive preigtement, which will be filed with the
Commission within 120 days after the close of ibedl year.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) Items A through G and Schedule Il are preseotetthe following pages of this Form 10-K Annuad®rt:

Page No.
1. Financial Statements for Ryder System, Inc.@odsolidated Subsidiarie
A) Managemer's Report on Internal Control over Financial Repay 52
B) Reports of Independent Registered Public Antiog Firm 53
C) Consolidated Statements of Earni 55
D) Consolidated Balance She 56
E) Consolidated Statements of Cash FI 57
F) Consolidated Statements of Shareho’ Equity 58
G) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem 59
2. Consolidated Financial Statement Schedule far¥&nded December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2
Schedule — Valuation and Qualifying Accoun 10t

All other schedules are omitted because #neynot applicable or the required informationhievsn in the consolidated financial
statements or notes thereto.

Supplementary Financial Information consigtiri selected quarterly financial data is includtettem 8 of this report.
3. Exhibits:

The following exhibits are filed with thisgert or, where indicated, incorporated by refergfff@@ms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K referenced
herein have been filed under the Commission’sNite 1-4364). Ryder will provide a copy of the extsliled with this report at a nominal
charge to those parties requesting them.
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Exhibit
Number

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

3.1(a)

3.1(b)

3.2

4.1

4.2(a)

4.2(b)

4.3

4.4

101

10.2

10.3(f)

10.4(a)

10.4(b)

The Ryder System, Inc. Restated Articles of Inccaifon, dated November 8, 1985, as amended thrislaghl8,
1990, previously filed with the Commission as ahibit to Ryder’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for thear
ended December 31, 1990, are incorporated by refenato this repor

Articles of Amendment to Ryder System, Inc. Restateticles of Incorporation, dated November 8, 1985
amended, previously filed with the Commission onilA, 1996 as an exhibit to Ryder's Form 8-A are
incorporated by reference into this rep

The Ryder System, Inc. By-Laws, as amended thréwdfiuary 16, 2001, previously filed with the Comsios
as an exhibit to Ryder’s Annual Report on Form 16Kthe year ended December 31, 2000, are incatpdhby
reference into this repoil

Ryder hereby agrees, pursuant to paragraph(b)j4)iitem 601 of Regulation S-K, to furnish the @mission
with a copy of any instrument defining the right$olders of long-term debt of Ryder, where sudtriiment
has not been filed as an exhibit hereto and tta amhount of securities authorized thereunder doégxceed
10% of the total assets of Ryder and its subs&barh a consolidated bas

The Form of Indenture between Ryder System, Ind.Tdre Chase Manhattan Bank (National Associatiatgdl
as of June 1, 1984, filed with the Commission ow&ber 19, 1985 as an exhibit to Ryder's Regisinati
Statement on Form-3 (No. 3:-1632), is incorporated by reference into this rég

The First Supplemental Indenture between RydereBysinc. and The Chase Manhattan Bank (National
Association) dated October 1, 1987, previoushdfilgth the Commission as an exhibit to Ryder’'s AairReport
on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 1994, is incatear by reference into this repc

The Form of Indenture between Ryder System, Ind.Tdre Chase Manhattan Bank (National Associatiatgal
as of May 1, 1987, and supplemented as of Novei®et990 and June 24, 1992, filed with the Comraissin
July 30, 1992 as an exhibit to Ryder’s Registragtatement on Form S-3 (No. 33-50232), is incorjeatdy
reference into this repoil

The Form of Indenture between Ryder System, Ind.JaR. Morgan Trust Company, National Associatiated
as of October 3, 2003 filed with the Commissionfargust 29, 2003 as an exhibit to Ryder’'s Regigirati
Statement on Form-3 (No. 33:-108391), is incorporated by reference into thiorg|

The form of change of control severance agreenweréxXecutive officers effective as of January Q@0
previously filed with the Commission as an exhibiRyder’'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
December 31, 2003, is incorporated by referenaethis report

The form of severance agreement for executive @ffieffective as of January 1, 2000, previoussdfivith the
Commission as an exhibit to Ryder's Annual ReparForm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2603, i
incorporated by reference into this rep

The Ryder System, Inc. 2005 Management Incentivagamsation Plan, previously filed with the Comnugsas
an exhibit to Ryder’s Current Report on Form 8-iédiwith the Commission on February 16, 2005, is
incorporated by reference into this rep

The Ryder System, Inc. 1980 Stock Incentive Plararaended and restated as of August 15, 1996 ousyi
filed with the Commission as an exhibit to Rydekisnual Report on Form 1B-for the year ended December
1997, is incorporated by reference into this reg

The form of Ryder System, Inc. 1980 Stock InceniNan, United Kingdom Section, dated May 4, 1995,

previously filed with the Commission as an exhtbiRyder’'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
December 31, 1995, is incorporated by referenaethis report
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.4(c)

10.4(f)

10.4(g)

10.4(h)

10.4(i)

10.4()

10.4(K)

10.4()

10.4(m)

10.4(n)

10.5(b)

10.5(c)

10.6(a)

The form of Ryder System, Inc. 1980 Stock IncenNan, United Kingdom Section, dated October 35199
previously filed with the Commission as an exhtbiRyder’'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeaded
December 31, 1995, is incorporated by referenaethis report

The Ryder System, Inc. 1995 Stock Incentive Plararaended and restated at May 4, 2001, previoilsty\With
the Commission as an exhibit to Ryder’s report omi10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2601,
incorporated by reference into this rep

The Ryder System, Inc. 1995 Stock Incentive Plararaended and restated as of July 25, 2002, pyibled
with the Commission as an exhibit to Ryder's AnnRaport on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31
2003, is incorporated by reference into this reg

The Ryder System, Inc. 2005 Equity Compensation,Rieeviously filed with the Commission on March 30
2005 as Appendix A to the Proxy Statement for th@2Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Company,
incorporated by reference into this rep

Terms and Conditions applicable to ngumalified stock options granted under the Rydett&ysinc. 2005 Equit
Compensation Plan, previously filed with the Conrsign as an exhibit to Ryder’s Current Report omf-8rK
filed with the Commission on May 11, 2005, are mpavated by reference into this rep«

Terms and Conditions applicable to restricted stigikts granted under the Ryder System, Inc. 20f&itE
Compensation Plan, previously filed with the Consiua as an exhibit to Ryder’s Current Report omi-8rK
filed with the Commission on May 11, 2005, are mpawated by reference into this rep«

Terms and Conditions applicable to restricted statks granted under the Ryder System, Inc. 2005tq
Compensation Plan, previously filed with the Conrsign as an exhibit to Ryder’s Current Report omfr8rK
filed with the Commission on May 11, 2005, are mpawated by reference into this rep«

Terms and Conditions applicable to the 2005 lomgrtiecentive cash awards granted under the Rydste8y
Inc. 2005 Equity Compensation Plan, previouslydfireith the Commission as an exhibit to Ryder’s @ntr
Report on Form -K filed with the Commission on May 11, 2005, aredrporated by reference into this rep

Terms and Conditions applicable to annual incentagh awards granted under the Ryder System, 00& 2
Equity Compensation Plan, previously filed with themmission as an exhibit to Ryder’'s Current Repart
Form &K filed with the Commission on February 15, 200& imcorporated by reference into this rep

Terms and Conditions applicable to performancebasstricted stock rights and related cash awarasted
under the Ryder System, Inc. 2005 Equity Compemsdlan, previously filed with the Commission aseahibit
to Ryder’'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed witlet@ommission on February 15, 2006, are incorporayed
reference into this repoil

The Ryder System, Inc. Directors Stock Award Pénamended and restated at February 10, 2005ppstyi
filed with the Commission as an exhibit to Rydekisnual Report on Form 1B-for the year ended December
2004, is incorporated by reference into this reg

The Ryder System, Inc. Directors Stock Plan, asa®e and restated at May 7, 2004, previously fivéd the
Commission as an exhibit to Ryder’'s Annual ReparfForm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2G04, i
incorporated by reference into this rep

The Ryder System Benefit Restoration Plan, effeciianuary 1, 1985, previously filed with the Consiois as

an exhibit to Ryder’'s Annual Report on Form 10-K fiee year ended December 31, 1992, is incorpoiated
reference into this repoil
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Exhibit
Number Description
10.6(b) The First Amendment to the Ryder System Benefit®aton Plan, effective at December 16, 1988, joresty
filed with the Commission as an exhibit to Rydekisnual Report on Form 1B-for the year ended December
1994, is incorporated by reference into this reg
10.9(a) The Ryder System, Inc. Stock for Merit IncreaselBesgment Plan, as amended and restated as of Alfgust
1996, previously filed with the Commission as ahibit to Ryder’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for thear
ended December 31, 1997, is incorporated by rederarto this repori
10.10 The Ryder System, Inc. Deferred Compensation Rislamended and restated at January 1, 2005, psivided
with the Commission as an exhibit to Ryder's AnnRaport on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31
2004, is incorporated by reference into this reg
10.12 The Asset and Stock Purchase Agreement by and betiRgder System, Inc. and First Group Plc. dateaf as
July 21, 1999, filed with the Commission on Septent, 1999 as an exhibit to Ryder’s report on F&fK is
incorporated by reference into this rep
10.13 The Ryder System, Inc. Long-Term Incentive Plafeative as of January 1, 2002, as amended on MaQ@,
previously filed with the Commission as an exhibiRyder’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed witreth
Commission on May 11, 2005, is incorporated byrexfee into this repor
10.14 Global Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of May 2004 among Ryder System, Inc., certain whollyreg
subsidiaries of Ryder System, Inc., Fleet Natidehk, individually and as administrative agent, aadain
lenders, previously filed with the Commission asahibit to Ryder’'s Quarterly Report on Form 106D the
period ended June 30, 2004, is incorporated byaerée into this repor
10.15 Amendment Agreement No. 1 to $870 million Global&eing Credit Agreement dated May 11, 2005,
previously filed with the Commission as an exhtbiRyder’'s Current Report on Form 8-K filed witheth
Commission on May 11, 2005, is incorporated byrefee into this repor
21.1 List of subsidiaries of the registrant, with thatetor other jurisdiction of incorporation or orgaation of each,
and the name under which each subsidiary doesdsss
231 Auditors’ consent to incorporation by referencedéntain Registration Statements on Forms S-3 a@ad&heir
reports on consolidated financial statements ahddides of Ryder System, Inc. and its subsidia
24.1 Manually executed powers of attorney for eact
John M. Berra David |. Fuente
L. Patrick Hassey Lynn M. Martin
Daniel H. Mudd Eugene A. Renna
Abbie J. Smith E. Follin Smith
Hansel E. Tookes, Christine A. Varney
311 Certification of Gregory T. Swienton pursuant to&i3e-15(e) or Rule 15-15(e).
31.2 Certification of Tracy A. Leinbach pursuant to Ralg-15(e) or Rule 15-15(e).
32 Certification of Gregory T. Swienton and Tracy Aeihbach pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d51ad

18 U.S.C. Section 135

(b) Executive Compensation Plans and Arrangements:

Please refer to the description of Exhib@slithrough 10.10 and 10.13 set forth under Itefa)B5of this report for a listing of all
management contracts and compensation plans aartjaments filed with this report pursuant to 1ted (®)(10) of Regulation S-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 1B5¢d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, rdwstrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

Date: February 17, 2006 RYDER SYSTEM, INC.
By: /s/ QREGORY T. SWIENTON

Gregory T. Swienton
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offi

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secsriiichange Act of 1934, this report has been sitpedmlv by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#iies indicated.

Date: February 17, 2006 By: /s/ QREGORY T. SWIENTON

Gregory T. Swienton
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

Date: February 17, 2006 By: /s/ TRACY A. LEINBACH

Tracy A. Leinbach
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
(Principal Financial Officer

Date: February 17, 2006 By: /s/ ART A. GARCIA

Art A. Garcia
Senior Vice President and Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer

Date: February 17, 2006 By: JoHN M. BERRA*

John M. Berra
Director

Date: February 17, 2006 By: DaviD |. FUENTE*

David |. Fuente
Director

Date: February 17, 2006 By: L. PATRICK HASSEY*

L. Patrick Hassey
Director

Date: February 17, 2006 By: LYNN M. MARTIN*

Lynn M. Martin
Director

Date: February 17, 2006 By: DaNIEL H. MuDD*

Daniel H. Mudd
Director
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Date: February 17, 2006

Date: February 17, 2006

Date: February 17, 2006

Date: February 17, 2006

Date: February 17, 2006

Date: February 17, 2006

113

By: EUGENE A. RENNA*

Eugene A. Renna
Director

By: ABBIE J. SNTH*

Abbie J. Smith
Director

By: E. FOLLIN SMITH*

E. Follin Smith
Director

By: HanseL E. Tookes II*

Hansel E. Tookes, I
Director

By: CHRISTINE A. VARNEY*

Christine A. Varney
Director

*By: /s/ FLoRA R. FEREZ

Flora R. Perez
Attorney-in-Fact






EXHIBIT 21.1

The following list sets forth (i) all subsidies of Ryder System, Inc. at December 31, 200)3h¢ state or country of incorporation or
organization of each subsidiary, and (iii) the nameder which certain subsidiaries do business.

State or Country of

Name of Subsidiary Incorporation or Organization
1318359 Ontario Limite(l) Canad
Ascent Logistics (Taiwan) Company Lt Taiwar
Associated Ryder Capital Services, It Floride
CRTS Logistica Automotiva S.A Brazil
Far East Freight, Inc Floride
Globe Master Insurance Compe Vermon
Logicair Limited United Kingdon
Mitchell Self Drive Limited Englanc
Network Vehicle Central, Inc Floride
Phaseking Limite« Englanc
Road Master, Limite: Bermudi:
RSI Acquisition Corp. Delawart
RSI Holding B.V. Netherland
RSI Purchase Corg Delawart
RTI Argentina, S.A. Argentine
RTRC Finance LI Canad
RTR Holdings (B.V.l.) Limitec British Virgin Island:
RTR Leasing I, Inc. Delawart
RTR Leasing Il, Inc. Delawart
Ryder Airport Operations Corf. Floride
Ryder Argentina S.A Argenting
Rydel-Ascent Logistics Pte Ltd Singapor
Ryder Asia Pacific Pte Ltd Singapor
Ryder Australia Pty Ltd. Australie
Ryder Capital Irelan: Englanc
Ryder Capital Ireland Holdings I LL Delawart
Ryder Capital Ireland Holdings Il LL: Delawart
Ryder Capital S.A. de C.V Mexica
Ryder Capital Services Corporati Delawart
RYDERCORF Floride
RYDERCORP, Inc. Delawart
Ryder de Mexico S.A. de C.\ Mexica
Ryder Dedicated Logistics, In Delawart
Ryder Deutschland Gmb West German
Ryder Distribution Services Limite Englanc
Ryder do Brasil Ltda Brazil
Ryder Energy Distribution Corporatic Floride
Ryder Europe B.V. Netherland
Ryder FleetProducts.com, In Tennesse
Ryder Fuel Compliance Services, LI Delawart
Ryder Funding LF Delawart




State or Country of

Name of Subsidiary Incorporation or Organization
Ryder Funding Il LF Delawart
Ryder Holding, LLC Delawart
Ryder Hungary Logistics LL¢ Hungan
Ryder, Inc. of Florid: Floride
Ryder Integrated Logistics, In® Delawart
Ryder International Acquisition Cory Floride
Ryder International, Inc Floride
Ryder Logistica Ltda. Brazil
Ryder Mexican Holding B.V. Netherland
Ryder Mexican Investments | LL Delawart
Ryder Mexican Investments Il LL Delawart
Ryder Mexican Investments | L Delawart
Ryder Mexican Investments Il L Delawart
Ryder Mexicana, S.A. de C.\ Mexica
Ryder Offshore Holdings | LL( Delawart
Ryder Offshore Holdings Il LL( Delawart
Ryder Offshore Holdings Il LLC Delawart
Ryder Offshore Holdings L Delawart
Ryder Pension Fund Limite Englanc
Ryder Polska Sp. z 0.c Polanc
Ryder Public Limited Compar Englanc
Ryder Puerto Rico, Inc Delawart
Ryder Purchasing LL¢ Delawart
Ryder Realty, Inc. Delawart
Ryder Receivable Funding, L.L.C Floride
Ryder Receivable Funding II, L.L.C Delawart
Ryder Services Corporatic3) Floride
Ryder Servicios do Brasil Ltde Brazil
Ryder Servicios S.A. de C.\ Mexica
Ryder (Shanghai) Logistics Co., Lt Chine
Ryder Singapore Pte Ltc Singapor
Ryder Sistemas Integrados de Logistica Limit® Chile
Ryder St. Louis Redevelopment Corporal Missour
Ryder Sweden Al Swedel
Ryder System B.V Netherland
Ryder System Holdings (UK) Limite Englanc
Ryder System Ltd Englanc
Ryder Thailand I, LLC Floride
Ryder Thailand I, LLC Floride
Ryder Thailand Ill, LLC Floride
Ryder Thailand 1V, LLC Floride
Ryder Thailand V, LLC Floride
Ryder Thailand VI, LLC Floride
Ryder Truck Rental Holdings Canada LI Canad

Ryder Truck Rental, In«®) Floride




State or Country of

Name of Subsidiary Incorporation or Organization
Ryder Truck Rental | LLC Delawari
Ryder Truck Rental Il LLC Delawar:
Ryder Truck Rental Il LLC Delawari
Ryder Truck Rental IV LLC Delawari
Ryder Truck Rental I LI Delawari
Ryder Truck Rental Il Lf Delawari
Ryder Truck Rental Canada Li®) Canad
Ryder Truck Rental L~ Delawari
Ryder Truckstops, Inc Floride
Ryder Vehicle Lease Trust 1¢-A Delawart
Ryder Vehicle Lease Trust 2C-A Delawar:
Sistemas Logisticos Sigma S.. Argentine
Spring Hill Integrated Logistics Management, It Delawari
Surplus Property Holding Cory Floride
Tandem Transport, L.F Georgit
Translados Americanos S De RL De | Mexica
TTR Logistics, LLC Delawar:
Truck Transerv, Inc. Delawari
Unilink Contract Hire Limitec Englanc
UniRyder Limited Englanc

(1) Ontario, Canada: d/b/a Ryder Grocery Servi

2) Florida: d/b/a UniRydel

(3) Ohio and Texas: d/b/a Ryder Claims Services Corfame
(4)  Chile: d/b/a Ryder Chile Limitad

(5) Alabama, Alaska, Arizona, Arkansas, California, @aHo, Connecticut, Delaware, District of Columbkdorida, Georgia, Hawaii, Idaho, lllinois, Indiandowa, Kansas
Kentucky, Louisiana, Maine, Maryland, Massachuséfishigan, Minnesota, Mississippi, Missouri, Moméa Nebraska, Nevada, New Hampshire, New Jersay
Mexico, New York, North Carolina, North Dakota, ®hDklahoma, Oregon, Pennsylvania, Rhode Island{tS0arolina, South Dakota, Tennessee, Texas, Utah,
Vermont, Virginia, Washington, West Virginia, Wissim and Wyoming: d/b/a Ryder Transportation Se&s

Maryland and Virginia: d/b/a Ryder/ Jacobs
Michigan: d/b/a Atlas Trucking, Inc.
Michigan: d/b/a Ryder Atlas of Western Michi¢

(6) French Name: Location de Camions Ryder du Canada.

Canada: d/b/a Ryder Integrated Logistic
Ryder Dedicated Logistic
Ryder Canadi






EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Ryder System, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by referandée following Registration Statements on For88 and S-8 of Ryder System, Inc. of our
report dated February 15, 2006, with respect tatmsolidated balance sheets of Ryder Systemahttsubsidiaries as of December 31, 2
and 2004, and the related consolidated statemértroings, shareholders’ equity and cash flows#wrh of the years in the thrgear perioc
ended December 31, 2005, and the related consadidimancial statement schedule, management’'ssiases of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting as of December &105, and the effectiveness of internal contr@rdinancial reporting as of December 31,
2005, which reports appear in the December 31, 2005ial report on Form 10-K of Ryder System, land refers to a change in method of
accounting for conditional asset retirement oblayat in 2005 and method of accounting for variabterest entities and method of
accounting for asset retirement obligations in 2003

Form S-3:

* Registration Statement N33-1623covering $500,000,000 aggregate principal amoundebt securities

* Registration Statement N33-13962covering $500,000,000 aggregate principal amoudiebt securities

* Registration Statement N33-20359covering $1,000,000,000 aggregate principal amofidebt securities
* Registration Statement N33-58667covering $800,000,000 aggregate principal amoudebt securities

* Registration Statement N333-63049covering $800,000,000 aggregate principal amounebt securities
* Registration Statement N333-108391covering $800,000,000 aggregate amount of secsu

* Registration Statement N333-128661covering $800,000,000 aggregate amount of secsu

Form S-8:

* Registration Statement N33-20608covering the Ryder System Employee Stock Purchise

* Registration Statement N33-4333covering the Ryder Employee Savings P

* Registration Statement Nc-4364 covering the Ryder System Profit Incentivecktelan.

» Registration Statement N33-69660covering the Ryder System, Inc. 1980 Stock Incenflian.

» Registration Statement N33-63990covering the Ryder System, Inc. Directors StockF

» Registration Statement N33-58001covering the Ryder System, Inc. Employee Savings Rl

» Registration Statement N33-58003covering the Ryder System, Inc. Employee Savings Bl

* Registration Statement N33-61509covering the Ryder System, Inc. Stock for Meritreasse Replacement Plz
» Registration Statement N33-62013covering the Ryder System, Inc. 1995 Stock Incenflian.

» Registration Statement N333-19515covering the Ryder System, Inc. 1997 Deferred Carsation Plan

* Registration Statement N332-26653covering the Ryder System, Inc. Board of Direc®tsck Award Plan




» Registration Statement N333-57593covering the Ryder System, Inc. Stock Purchase felaBmployees

» Registration Statement N333-57595covering the Ryder System, Inc. 1995 Stock Incenfilan.

» Registration Statement N333-69626covering the Ryder System, Inc. 1995 Stock Incenfilan.

» Registration Statement N333-69628covering the Ryder System, Inc. Directors StoclF

* Registration Statement N333-108364covering the Ryder System, Inc. Board of Direc®ieck Award Plan

» Registration Statement No. 333-124828 coveltiegRyder System, Inc. 2005 Equity Compensatiam Bhd the Ryder System, Inc.
Stock Purchase Plan for Employe

/s/ KPMG LLP

February 15, 2006
Miami, Florida
Certified Public Accountants






EXHIBIT 24.1
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that eachtbé undersigned, being directors of Ryder System, b Florida corporation,
hereby constitutes and appoints Robert D. Fat®¥@a R. Perez and John D. Montanti, and eacheshtthis or her true and lawful
attorney-in -fact and agent, with full power of stitution and resubstitution, for the undersigned & his or her name, place and stead, in
any and all capacities, to sign the Ryder System,Form 10-K (Annual Report pursuant to the SiiesrExchange Act of 1934) for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2005 (the “FormK)0and any and all amendments thereto, and ¢otffie same, with all exhibits thereto
and other documents in connection therewith, with$ecurities and Exchange Commission and wittN#we York Stock Exchange and any
other stock exchange on which the Company’s comstack is listed, granting unto each said attormeyfact and agent full power and
authority to perform every act requisite and nesgst be done in connection with the execution fdimdy of the Form 10-K and any and all
amendments thereto, as fully for all intents angppses as he or she might or could do in persaepleaatifying all that each said
-fact and agent, or his or her substitute or stuis, may lawfully do or cause to be done by eittiereof.

This Power of Attorney may be signed in anynber of counterparts, each of which shall constitin original and all of which, taken
together, shall constitute one Power of Attorney.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the undersignas lhereunto set his or her hand effective theday of February, 2006.

/s/ DHN M. BERRA

/s/ Davip |. FUENTE

John M. Berre

/sl L. PATRICK HASSEY

David |. Fuente

/s/ LyNN M. MARTIN

L. Patrick Hasse

/s/ DaNIEL H. MupD

Lynn M. Martin

/s/ BUGENE A. RENNA

Daniel H. Mudd

/sl ABBIE J. SAITH

Eugene A. Renn

/sl E. FOLLIN SMITH

Abbie J. Smitt

/s/ HANSEL E. TookEs, Il

E. Follin Smith

/s/ CHRISTINE A. VARNEY

Hansel E. Tookes,

Christine A. Varney






EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Gregory T. Swienton, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on FolC-K of Ryder System, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does antain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmislieading with respect to the
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial stateémemd other financial information included insthéport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this rep

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportifag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13&-15(f) and15c-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and proesdote designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

b) designed such internal control over finangéplorting, or caused such internal control ovearitial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuram@ading the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presentad report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgatures, as of the end of the period coveredibydport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) disclosed in this report any change in thésteant’s internal control over financial reportittgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct(@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a) all significant deficiencies and material weasses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refptahcial information; an

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisatifole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: February 17, 2006 /sl GREGORY T. SWIENTON

Gregory T. Swienton
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offi






EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Tracy A. Leinbach, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Fol1GC-K of Ryder System, Inc

Based on my knowledge, this report does aotain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmislieading with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statésjemd other financial information included insthéport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))1%nd internal control over financial reportifag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13&-15(f) and15c-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) designed such disclosure controls and proesdor caused such disclosure controls and proesdote designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pneszh

b) designed such internal control over finangéplorting, or caused such internal control ovearitial reporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuram@ading the reliability of financial reporting attte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting princip

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntad report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgatures, as of the end of the period coveredibydport based on such
evaluation; ant

d) disclosed in this report any change in thésteant’s internal control over financial reportittgat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo&) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; a

The registrant’s other certifying officer anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct(@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a) all significant deficiencies and material weasses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refptahcial information; an

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that imesl management or other employees who have aisatifole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: February 17, 2006 /sl TRACY A. LEINBACH

Tracy A. Leinbach
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi






EXHIBIT 32

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Ry@stem, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for trear ended December 31, 2005, as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the “Report”), Gregory T. SwientChief Executive Officer of the
Company, and Tracy A. Leinbach, Chief Financiali€ff of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S5€ction 1350, as adopted pursuar
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementseéttion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Reportlfapresents, in all material respects, the findnmadition and results of operations of
the Company

/s/ GREGORY T. SWIENTON

Gregory T. Swienton

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
February 17, 2006

/s/ TRACY A. LEINBACH

Tracy A. Leinbach

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
February 17, 200




